
 

 
 

 

 
To: Councillor Taylor, Convener; Councillor Carle, Vice Convener; Councillors 

Boulton, Cooney, Copland, Donnelly, Lesley Dunbar, Flynn, Greig, Hutchison, 
Len Ironside CBE, Laing, Malik, Nicoll, Noble, Samarai, Jennifer Stewart, 
Townson and Young; and Mrs A Bowyer (Parent Representative (Primary 
Schools and ASN)), Mr S Duncan (Teacher Representative - Primary Schools), 
Reverend E McKenna (Church of Scotland Religious Representative), Mr M Paul 
(Teacher Representative (Secondary Schools)), Mr A Rafferty (Parent 
Representative (Secondary Schools)), Mrs A Tree (Third Religious 
Representative) and Mrs I Wischik (Roman Catholic Religious Representative) 

 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN 25 May 2016 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 

 The Members of the EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 

are requested to meet in Council Chamber - Town House on THURSDAY, 2 JUNE 2016 
at 1.00 pm. 
 

  

 
FRASER BELL 

HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 
B U S I N E S S 

 

1 REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATION   
 

 1.1  None received at this stage   
 

2 MINUTES   
 

 2.1  Minute of Meeting of 24 March 2016 - for approval  (Pages 5 - 22) 
 

3 COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT AND MOTIONS LIST   
 

 3.1  Committee Business Statement  (Pages 23 - 28) 
 

 3.2  Motions List  (Pages 29 - 30) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 
 

4 REFERRALS   
 

 4.1  None received at this stage   
 

5 EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES FINANCE, PERFORMANCE AND 
SERVICE WIDE ISSUES   
 

 5.1  2015/16 Revenue Budget Monitoring - to follow   
 

 5.2  Education and Children's Services Directorate Performance Report / 
Children and Young People (Scotland) 2014 Act Update  (Pages 31 - 66) 
 

 5.3  Education and Children's Services Directorate Business and Service Plans 
2016-17  (Pages 67 - 72) 
 

 5.4  PVG Check - Cross Service Recruitment Procedures - to follow   
 

6 EDUCATION   
 

 6.1  Statutory Consultation - Consultation Reports on the Proposals to Make 
Changes to the School Zone Boundary for Airyhall School and Hazlehead 
School, and to Remove an Area of Dual Zoning Between Sunnybank 
School and Hanover Street School  (Pages 73 - 100) 
 

 6.2  Interim Report on Review of Bookings and Lettings  (Pages 101 - 108) 
 

 6.3  Culture Programme 2016/17  (Pages 109 - 118) 
 

 6.4  The Strategy for an Active Aberdeen, 2016-20  (Pages 119 - 164) 
 

 AT THIS JUNCTURE, EXTERNAL MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE WILL 
DEPART 

 

7 CHILDREN   
 

 7.1  Update on Readiness for Full Implementation of Parts 4, 5 and 18 of the 
Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014  (Pages 165 - 180) 
 

 
To access the Information Bulletins for this Committee please use the following link: 

Education & Children's Services Committee Information Bulletin 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Allison 
Swanson, tel 01224 522822 or email aswanson@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



 
 

 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 

ABERDEEN, 24 March 2016.  Minute of Meeting of the EDUCATION AND 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE.  Present:-  Councillor Taylor, Convener; 
Councillor Donnelly, Vice-Convener;  and Councillors Boulton (to article 12), 
Carle, Cooney, Copland, Lesley Dunbar, Finlayson (as a substitute for Councillor 
Boulton from article 13 onwards), Greig, Hutchison, Len Ironside CBE, Laing, 
Malik, Nicoll, Noble, Samarai, Sandy Stuart (as a substitute for Councillor Flynn), 
Townson, Young and Yuill (as a substitute for Councillor Jennifer Stewart).  
External Members (to article 12 only):- Ms Angela Bowyer (Parent Representative 
(Primary Schools and ASN)), Mr Mike Paul (Teacher Representative (Secondary 
Schools) (up to part of article 12)), Mr Anthony Rafferty (Parent Representative 
(Secondary Schools)) and Mrs Irene Wischik (Roman Catholic Religious 
Representative). 

 
 

The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be located 
at the following link:- 
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=504&
MId=3820&Ver=4 
 
Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point 
of approval, these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and 
this document will not be retrospectively altered 

 
 
GOOD NEWS STORIES 
 
1. The Convener and Vice Convener advised the Committee as to a number of 
good news stories as follows – 
 

• Middleton Park School  
Middleton Park School had received an unprecedented excellent in 11 out of 12 quality 
indicators, which determined the success in meeting the Curriculum for Excellence.  
The school had been hailed as one of the best in the country after its pioneering Head 
Teacher, Jenny Watson, transformed its curriculum for the modern age.  Outdoor 
learning, multi-media courses and film-making were all part of the curriculum for 
youngsters at Middleton Park School. 
 
The Head Teacher had been praised for her forward-thinking approach to education 
and for putting technology and creativity at the heart of the school's vision for learning. 
Innovative initiatives such as 'Live Learning' saw pupils create feature films and 
animations using the latest digital technology.  One feature in particular – Macbeth in 
Mandarin - was shared with their partner school in China last week. 
 
The report released was a testament to the leadership and vision of Jenny Watson and 
also showed that not only were pupils striving academically – but confirmed how well-
adjusted, confident and happy the children were. The emotional well-being of pupils in 
schools was as important as their academic achievements – and this glowing report 

Agenda Item 2.1

Page 3



2 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

reflected that. The education of young people remained a top priority and the Council 
was committed to delivering and replicating the outstanding work being done at 
Middleton Park School across the city. 
 

• Hazlehead Academy 
Hazlehead Academy was the first secondary school in the city to have been awarded 
Cycle Friendly Secondary School status. The Cycle Friendly School Award rewarded 
secondary schools, teachers and volunteers who were committed to increasing cycling 
to, from and around schools. 
 
By enabling young people to cycle to school in a safe manner with proper equipment 
this encouraged them to be active and aware of their own health and fitness. Cycling 
was a fantastic mode of transport which also helped to reduce traffic congestion on the 
roads and decreased the carbon emissions count.  
 
To achieve the award, schools had to show commitment to cycling by providing 
facilities such as bicycle parking, changing facilities and Bikeability Scotland cycle 
training. Hazlehead Academy  implemented measures such as creating a school travel 
plan, including creating safe routes to school from each of the Academy's four feeder 
primary schools. In addition, S3 pupils had taken part in the Go Mountain Bike 
programme, with the help of Adventure Aberdeen, while safe cycle parking was put in 
place, including a special cycle rack commemorating the 2014 Glasgow 
Commonwealth Games. 
 

• Greenbrae School extension 
On 19 February 2015 myself, the Vice convener and the Convener of Finance Policy 
and Resources, along with local Councillors, attended the turf cutting for the £5 million 
pound extension at Greenbrae School, Bridge of Don. The extended school would 
provide 330 more places for primary pupils as well as offering an additional 80 nursery 
places. 
 
The ground floor of the extension would include classrooms, a games hall, a medical 
room and dining facilities. A library and new toilets for both pupils and staff would also 
be created. The first floor would also consist of classrooms, an outdoor classroom as 
well as another medical room. 
 

• Stoneywood School   
Following public consultations, a detailed planning application had been officially 
submitted to the Council for the £13 million Stoneywood School. Designed by 
architectural firm Scott Brownrigg, the new facility would be constructed on the grounds 
of the former Bankhead Academy.    
 
 
 

Page 4



3 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

• Riverbank School – a UNICEF Right’s Respecting School 
Riverbank School had its second Level 2 RRSA reaccreditation assessment last week.  
Level 2 of the Rights Respecting Schools Award was the highest level a school could 
achieve. A school that achieved Level 2 had fully embedded the principles of the 
Convention into its ethos and curriculum. Schools had also to be able to show how they 
would maintain these rights-based values and principles.  
 
To achieve accreditation, the school self-evaluated progress and when they believed 
they had met the four RRSA standards and criteria at Level 2, an 
external assessment took place. The Unicef UK representative would then write a 
report. At Level 2, a committee of experts (including Head Teachers and Unicef UK 
staff) decided whether to grant a Level 2 Award. 
 
It was a very positive assessment, and the assessment team were recommending that 
the award was given. If approved by the Assessment Standards Committee at Unicef. 
Riverbank would be the only school in Scotland, and indeed the UK to be awarded 
Level 2 three times.   Congratulations to Riverbank School on this achievement. 
 

• Children’s Services  
A new £3million overhaul of social work services, which would cut down on red tape 
and allow staff to spend more time with families, was launched on Monday 29 February. 
 
Aberdeen City Council was the first local authority in Scotland to fully implement the 
Reclaiming Social Work model, which was aimed at reducing the number of children in 
care and delivering more positive outcomes for children and families across the city. 
 
The service, which had about 440 staff and 1,880 clients, had required a significant 
restructure, moving from a traditional team system with individual social workers, 
managed by a team manager to small units with a small number of staff working with a 
number of children and families. The adoption of the small unit meant that there were 
no families dependent on the service provided by just one practitioner. 
 
There was a huge desire within the service to improve on what was already there and 
since we put our city’s children and young people high on our list of priorities, we were 
more than willing to invest the money to make this work here in Aberdeen. 
 
Council staff had undergone additional training as part of the ongoing transformation of 
the service, with further sessions planned this year. In addition, staff engagement was a 
huge big part of the process and started right at the beginning. Officers ensured that 
communication was at the top or their agenda with regular staff events and briefings. 
 
A reorganisation of this scale could be a risk, as staff continued to run a statutory social 
work service, whilst implementing a whole new structure. Ensuring no children and 
families suffered disruption or risk had been crucial, but what had shone threw was the 

Page 5



4 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

commitment, agility and sheer professionalism of staff. It was anticipated that the new 
system could increase the amount of time spent by social workers directly with families 
and children by two or three times. 
 

• Flooding  
Aberdeen City health and social care workers, had been highly commended in a 
national awards scheme for their prompt evacuation of almost 100 care home residents 
during January's floods. The Aberdeen City Council team involved in the evacuations 
from the Grandholm, Persley and Woodside care homes won the accolade in the 
Scottish Association of Social Workers national awards. The team was competing in the 
'Best Example of Collaborative Working in an Integrated Setting' category and received 
the commendation at a gala dinner in Edinburgh in March 2016. 
 
City health and social care staff were called into action on 7 January 2016 in the wake 
of warnings from the Scottish Environment Protection Agency (SEPA) that a flood surge 
was heading down the River Don towards Aberdeen following a week's record-breaking 
rainfall. Council officials quickly realised that the three care homes were in the path of 
the surge and at severe risk of inundation and power cuts and of being cut off by the 
rising water. 
 
The pre-prepared emergency plan swung into action. An emergency was declared as 
soon as the level of risk became evident – and the huge task of evacuating scores of 
care home residents then began as darkness gathered and road conditions worsened 
in the driving rain. 
 
The care homes had only limited numbers of staff with which to manage the situation 
and so the City Council deployed all available social work staff and care managers to 
help co-ordinate the evacuations. Flooded roads forced some staff to abandon their 
cars and walk to the sites to give assistance. 
 
The social work and community health teams worked in close collaboration with SEPA, 
the emergency services from Police Scotland and Scottish Fire and Rescue, and staff 
from Bon Accord Care to co-ordinate their emergency response, which involved some 
85 older residents in the three homes. Transport was mustered to help with the 
evacuations, including taxis and minibuses. The massive exercise involved moving not 
just the care home residents but also in many cases their specialised beds, hoists and 
other personalised equipment. 
 
All available bed spaces in care homes across the city were used to re-house most of 
the residents for the night. But that left 21 people still to be evacuated, who were 
accommodated in a mothballed hospital ward which was rapidly re-opened and 
comfortably fitted out. 
 

Page 6



5 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

The effort lasted from early evening into the small hours of the following morning – and 
was later described by the Scottish Government as "unprecedented" in Scotland in its 
scale and efficiency. 
 
The floods receded after stopping just short of the three properties, and the entire 
evacuation was then put into reverse through the following day to ensure all the 
residents were transported back to the familiar surroundings of their own homes. 
Simultaneously, the same group of managers also began co-ordinating further potential 
evacuations from communities in the west of the city, included vulnerable people in 
their own homes, following warnings that the River Dee could burst its banks. 
 
This was a hugely complicated exercise, undertaken at very short notice and in 
extremely difficult conditions.  Despite the complexity of the task, no older people were 
injured or adversely affected. The whole city should be proud of what our staff 
achieved. They showed great bravery, sensitivity and dedication to duty. They were a 
credit to Aberdeen and to their profession. 
 

• Team Zariba to Team GB 
A local Ice Skating Team was set to represent their country at a prestigious competition 
in Hungary. Team Zariba of Aberdeen Synchronised Ice Skating Club, had been called 
up to represent Great Britain at the World Synchronised Skating Championships in 
Budapest, 6 – 9 April 2016. 
 
This came after a highly successful season for the squad, who were based at the Linx 
Ice Arena, as they clinched the Scottish, Welsh and British Championships. Governing 
body, NISA (National Ice Skating Association) unanimously agreed that the Aberdeen 
team should represent Great Britain at the competition which would host some of the 
world’s best Synchronised Skating Teams. 
 
Planning was well underway for the team as they prepared for the big competition and 
continued their search for sponsorship. The standard of the upcoming competition 
meant weeks of intense preparation and practice for Zariba and Sport Aberdeen were 
quick to offer their congratulations and assistance by arranging more time on the ice for 
the club.  
 
It was refreshing to hear of a team who were so focused and committed to their sport 
that they had managed to shine not only in national competitions but also across the 
UK and now on a global scale. All involved were not only fantastic ambassadors for 
their country but also for Sport Aberdeen and Aberdeen City. Good luck to Team Zariba 
as they go forward in the competition. 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



6 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

• SPECTRA  
Tens of thousands turned out to see world-class art installations illuminate Aberdeen in 
February 2016. The city centre became a playground full of swirling lights, playful art, 
ghostly illuminations and magical exhibitions of digital innovation. 
 
SPECTRA – Aberdeen's Festival of Lights – attracted just over 35,000 people, a 
dramatic rise on the previous year when visitor numbers reached 10,000. Friends and 
families braved sleet and snow over that weekend to experience stunning visuals and 
play with the more creative digital pieces. 
 
The festival had grown significantly in size and stature since its inception in 2014 and 
this year, the festival moved from just one site to four key locations around the city 
centre. Visitors followed a trail to view installations at Marischal College, Union Terrace 
Gardens, Seventeen on Belmont Street and St Nicholas Kirkyard – taking in much of 
Aberdeen's historic architecture. 
 
Many of the 20 original works were created by artists who had displayed in Scotland for 
the first time in celebration of the 2016 Scottish Year of Innovation, Architecture and 
Design. 
 
This year, SPECTRA proved to be a cutting-edge festival which had linked culture, 
science and history together. Both interactive and inspiring, the festival had led the way 
in showcasing the best of what Aberdeen had to offer as a cultural destination.  
SPECTRA certainly created a real buzz in the city, with those who attended having 
nothing but praise for the event. 
 
Thereafter, Councillor Hutchison advised that Colin Lemmon, Northfield Academy’s 
Youth Work Development officer, had won a 2016 National Youth Worker of the Year 
Award for “Supporting the Curriculum for Excellence and Attainment” at the annual 
Youth Link Scotland Awards Ceremony, held at the Crown Plaza in Glasgow.  
 
 
DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 
2. The Convener proposed that item 10.1 (Procurement of Furniture for the 
Extension of Greenbrae Primary School) of today’s agenda (article 20 of this minute) be 
considered with the press and public excluded. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, to exclude 
the press and public from the meeting during consideration of the aforementioned item 
of business (article 20 of this minute refers) so as to avoid disclosure of exempt 
information of the classes described in paragraph 8 of Schedule 7(A) of the Act. 
 

Page 8



7 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

MINUTE OF MEETING OF 28 JANUARY 2016 
 
3. The Committee had before it the minute of its meeting of 28 January 2016. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
to approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT 
 
4. The Committee had before it a statement of pending and outstanding committee 
business which had been prepared by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
(i) to remove items 5, first section, (GIRFEC/Children and Young People Act - 

Update), and 7 (Early Learning and Nursery Admissions Policy); and  
(ii) to remove items 1 (Knowledge Transfer Partnership), 3 (System of Risk 

Management), and 6 (Joint Inspection of Children’s Services Action Plan) subject 
to the decision taken; and  

(iii) to otherwise note the updates contained therein. 
 
 
MOTIONS LIST 
 
5. The Committee had before it a list of motions prepared by the Senior Democratic 
Services Manager. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
to note the list. 
 
 
2015/16 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING - ECS/16/014 
 
6. With reference to article 7 of the minute of the meeting of the Education and 
Children’s Services Committee of 28 January 2016, the Committee had before it a 
report by the Director of Education and Children’s Services and the Head of Finance 
which advised members of the current year revenue budget to date for the Education 
and Children’s Service, and outlined any areas of risk, and management action being 
taken in this regard.  
 
The report recommended –  
that the Committee - 
(a) note the projected variance of £349K less than budget; 
(b) instruct officers to continue to review budget performance and report on service 

strategies; 

Page 9



8 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

(c) approve the virements outlined in section 5.3.1 of the report; and 
(d) approve the ring fencing of the Developing Young Workforce monies from 

Council underspends. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
(i) to approve recommendations (a), (b) and (c) as contained in the report; 
(ii) to support the ring fencing of the Developing Young Workforce monies from 

Council underspends and to refer this matter to the Finance, Policy and 
Resources Committee for approval;  

(iii) in relation to out of authority placements, to request officers to submit a report 
detailing: (a) the Council’s current position in respect of such placements; (b) 
what actions the service was taking to address such placements and mitigate the 
impacts; (c) the cost per child, regardless of location, and how this was 
calculated; and (d) what improvements were envisaged from the development of 
the Centre for Excellence and inclusion review, to a future meeting of the 
Committee; and 

(iv) to request officers to supply the energy management usage figures across the 
service to Councillor Yuill. 

 
 
EDUCATION AND CHILDREN’S SERVICES DIRECTORATE PERFORMANCE 
REPORT / CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE (SCOTLAND) 2014 ACT UPDATE - 
ECS/16/007 
 
7. With reference to (1) article 11 of the minute of its meeting of 3 September 2015 
and (2) article 5 of the minute of its meeting of 28 January 2016, the Committee had 
before it a report by the Director of Education and Children’s Services which provided a 
summary of quarterly Education and Children’s Services Directorate performance 
outcome data up to and including 31 December 2015 and other most recent 
performance measures information. The Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 
2014 Implementation Action Plan update was appended to the report.  
 
The report recommended – 
that the Committee  note the Education and Children’s Service Directorate performance 
report for the quarterly period to 31 December 2015. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
(i) to approve the recommendation; 
(ii) to request officers to include baseline figures for performance indicators in future 

Directorate performance reports;  
(iii) in relation to table 15 (Total Number of Library Visits – Person/Virtual), to request 

that the figures on the number of visits by person or virtual be reported separately 
for future performance reports;  

(iv) to request officers to provide details of the impact of the change in library opening 
hours on visitor numbers to Councillor Hutchison by email;  

Page 10



9 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

(v) in relation to table 8 (The Number of Referrals of Children’s Cases in a Quarter), 
to request officers to detail the actual number of referrals which proceed to being 
processed as a children’s case in future performance reports; and 

(vi) in relation to table 24 (Average Number of Days Lost Through Sickness Absence), 
to request officers to review the longer trend for this performance indicator and 
include this in the narrative of the next performance report. 

 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT - REVIEW OF BUSINESS CONTINUITY ARRANGEMENTS - 
ECS/16/020 
 
8. With reference to article 10 of the minute of the Audit and Risk Committee of 26 
June 2014, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education and 
Children’s Services which advised on the review of the Education and Children’s 
Services business continuity arrangements.  
 
The report recommended – 
that the Committee to note the information provided in the report. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
to approve the recommendation.  
 
 
ALEO GOVERNANCE (SPORT ABERDEEN) - ECS/16/019 
 
9. With reference to article 10 of the minute of the meeting of the Education and 
Children’s Services Committee of 3 September 2015, the Committee had before it a 
report by the Director of Education and Children’s Services which reported the outcome 
of the most recent ALEO Governance Hub Committee meeting in relation to Sport 
Aberdeen. 
 
The report recommended –  
that the Committee note the contents of the minute of the ALEO Governance Hub 
Committee meeting of 14 December 2015 in relation to Sport Aberdeen. 
 
The Committee resolved: 

(i) to approve the recommendation; 
(ii) to request officers to clarify with Sport Aberdeen the actual posts created and the 

resulting 8% increase in payroll costs and that this information be emailed to 
Councillor Sandy Stuart; and 

(iii) to request officers to clarify with Sport Aberdeen the position in relation to 
procurement arrangements, including the rationale for the approach taken, and 
that this information be emailed to Councillor Hutchison. 

 
  

Page 11



10 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

ALEO GOVERNANCE (ABERDEEN SPORTS VILLAGE) - ECS/16/018 
 
10. With reference to article 9 of the minute of the meeting of the Education and 
Children’s Services Committee of 3 September 2015, the Committee had before it a 
report by the Director of Education and Children’s Services which reported the outcome 
of the most recent ALEO Governance Hub Committee meeting in relation to Aberdeen 
Sports Village. 
 
The report recommended –  
that the Committee note the contents of the minute of the ALEO Governance Hub 
Committee meeting of 7 December 2015 in relation to Aberdeen Sports Village. 
 
The Committee resolved: 

(i) to approve the recommendation; 
(ii) to request officers to clarify with Aberdeen Sports Village the current position in 

respect of the action proposed that it scale back or terminate services currently 
delivered as a risk and that these be included into their risk register and risk 
management strategy and that this information be emailed to Councillor 
Hutchison; and 

(iii) to request officers to clarify with Aberdeen Sports Village the position with Sport 
Scotland funding provided to the Aberdeen Sports Village for the development of 
football pitches and that this information be emailed to Councillor Noble. 

 
 
EVALUATION OF KNOWLEDGE TRANSFER PARTNERSHIP (KTP) BETWEEN 
UNIVERSITY OF ABERDEEN AND ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL.(DATA 
OBSERVATORY PROJECT) - ECS/16/012 
 
11. With reference to article 10 of the minute of the meeting of the former Education, 
Culture and Sport Committee of 27 March 2014, the Committee had before it a report 
by the Director of Education and Children’s Services which provided an update on the 
progress to date of the Knowledge Transfer Partnership (KTP) between the University 
of Aberdeen and Aberdeen City Council (Data Observatory Project).  
 
The report recommended –  
that the Committee –  
(a) note progress and evaluation of the KTP project to date; and  
(b) approve the continued partnership arrangements with the University of Aberdeen 

to develop the Aberdeen City Council Data Observatory and continuing the 
employment of the KTP Research Associate post, graded at G13. 

 
The Committee resolved: 
to approve the recommendations.  
 
 

Page 12



11 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

STATUTORY CONSULTATION - CONSULTATION REPORTS ON THE 
PROPOSALS TO CREATE NEW PRIMARY AND SECONDARY SCHOOL ZONES IN 
THE AREA OF THE PLANNED NEW HOUSING DEVELOPMENT AT 
COUNTESSWELLS, AND TO CREATE A NEW PRIMARY SCHOOL ZONE IN THE 
AREA OF THE PLANNED NEW HOUSING DEVELOPMENT IN LOIRSTON AND 
COVE - ECS/16/006 
 
12. With reference to article 3 of the minute of the meeting of the former Education, 
Culture and Sport Committee of 7 February 2013, the Committee had before it a report 
by the Director of Education and Children’s Services which advised on the outcome of 
recent statutory consultations on the proposals to create new school zones at 
Countesswells and at Loirston / Cove, in preparation for the creation of new schools 
which were planned as part of forthcoming housing developments in these areas of the 
city. 
 
The report recommended –  
that the Committee –  
(a) agree to implement the following proposals: 

1. For the Countesswells rezoning proposal: 
(a) to create a new primary school zone to serve primary education provision 

in the Countesswells development, with effect from August 2016;  
(b) to create a new secondary school zone to serve secondary education 

provision in the Countesswells development, with effect from August 
2016, and to include the zone of Kingswells School within the zone of the 
new secondary school, with effect from the time of opening of the new 
school; and  

(c) to put in place arrangements for interim education provision until a primary 
school and a secondary school were constructed within the Countesswells 
development. For secondary pupils from Countesswells this would involve 
the use of Hazlehead Academy until a new secondary school had been 
constructed. For primary school pupils from Countesswells the 
arrangements would be as follows: 

• pupils living in the new Countesswells primary school zone would be 
registered at a new school from the outset; 

• whilst the number of pupils registered to the new school remained at 
25 or below, the new school would operate from a separate classroom 
within the Airyhall School building; 

• when the number of pupils registered to the new school exceeded 25, 
all of these pupils and any new pupils subsequently moving into the 
new Countesswells primary school zone would be educated from the 
Braeside School building, until a new school building at Countesswells 
has opened; and 

• whilst the new school was operating from the Airyhall building and 
subsequently from the Braeside building, places at the new school 

Page 13



12 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

would be reserved entirely for children living within the new 
Countesswells school zone. 

(d) in the unlikely event that the Countesswells housing development did not 
go ahead, then the existing school zone arrangements would prevail; 

2. For the Loirston / Cove rezoning proposal:  
(a) to create a new primary school zone to serve primary education provision 

in the South-East of the City, including the new housing development in 
the Loirston / Cove area, with effect from August 2016;  

(b) to amend the existing Charleston School, Kirkhill School, and Abbotswell 
School zones to contribute to the proposed new school zone;  

(c) to rezone an area of the existing Kirkhill School zone, east of the A956 
trunk road, to the Loirston School zone; and 

(d) in the unlikely event that the Loirston / Cove housing development does 
not go ahead, then the existing school zone arrangements would prevail; 
and 

(b) instruct officers to make the necessary arrangements to ensure successful 
implementation of the above recommendations by the indicated times.  

 
At this juncture the Committee received legal advice regarding the competency of the 
recommendations proposed in respect of the Countesswells rezoning following the 
statutory consultation process which had been undertaken.  
 
The Convener, seconded by Councillor Yuill moved:- 

that the Committee approve the recommendations in the report. 
 

Councillor Nicoll, seconded by Councillor Townson moved as an amendment:- 
that the Committee –  
(1) agree to implement the following proposals for the Countesswells rezoning: 

(a) to create a new primary school zone to serve primary education 
provision in the Countesswells development, with effect from August 
2016;  

(b) to create a new secondary school zone to serve secondary education 
provision in the Countesswells development, with effect from August 
2016, and to include the zone of Kingswells School within the zone of 
the new secondary school, with effect from the time of opening of the 
new school;  

(c) request officers as a matter of urgency undertake a review of the cost 
implications and work that was necessary to be undertaken in order to 
potentially open Braeside Primary School to pupils in August 2016 
and to report back to this Committee in May 2016; 

(d) should (c) above, not be achievable, request officers as a matter of 
urgency to make contingency arrangements for the education of 
pupils from the new Countesswells development; 

(e) request officers to put in place interim education provision until a new 
secondary school was constructed within the Countesswells 

Page 14



13 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

development for secondary pupils from Countesswells that involved 
the use of Hazlehead Academy until a  new secondary school had 
been constructed; and  

(f) in the event that the Countesswells housing development did not go 
ahead as scheduled to undertake an urgent review of accommodation 
provision at Airyhall Primary School; and  

(2) approve the recommendations as proposed for the Loirston / Cove rezoning. 
 
On a division, there voted:- for the motion (15) – the Convener; the Vice Convener and 
Councillors Boulton, Carle, Cooney, Lesley Dunbar, Greig, Ironside CBE, Laing, Malik, 
Yuill and Young and Angela Bowyer, Anthony Rafferty and Irene Wischik; for the 
amendment (7) – Councillors Copland, Hutchison, Nicoll, Noble, Samarai, Sandy Stuart 
and Townson. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
(i) to adopt the motion; and  
(ii) to request officers to submit a report detailing the costs of opening the Braeside 

building to a future meeting of the Committee. 
 
 

At this juncture the external members of the Committee departed. 
 

 
JOINT INSPECTION OF CHILDREN'S SERVICES UPDATE - ECS/16/011 
 
13. With reference to item 12 of the minute of the meeting of the Education, and 
Children’s Services Committee of 28 January 2016, the Committee had before it a 
report by the Director of Education and Children’s Services which provided an update 
on the progress made on implementing the Action Plan resulting from the joint 
inspection of services for children and young people in the Aberdeen City Community 
Planning Partnership area. 
 
The report recommended –  
that the Committee –  
(a) note the update on the multi-agency Action Plan; and  
(b) request a final report back on progress against actions in the Action Plan in June 

2016. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
to approve the recommendations and to request that officers again review the 
information contained in the Action Plan to ensure that sufficient detail was provided. 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



14 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

RECLAIMING SOCIAL WORK UPDATE - ECS/16/008 
 
14. With reference to article 1 of the minute of the meeting of the Education and 
Children’s Services Committee of 28 January 2016, the Committee had before it a 
report by the Director of Education and Children’s Services which provided an update 
on progress made on implementation of the Reclaiming Social Work programme. 
 
The report recommended –  
that the Committee - 
(a) continue to support the implementation of Reclaiming Social Work with no 

substantive changes to the plans originally submitted; 
(b) agree to  be updated  by bulletin reports on a regular basis on the 

implementation of Reclaiming Social Work;  
(c) agree to extend the review of Residential Children’s Services until the November 

Committee to allow full consideration of the Scottish Government announcement 
in March 2016 on the SCQF Level 9 qualification for the residential child care 
sector as this would impact upon the proposed structure and grading of posts. 
 

The Committee resolved: 
(i) to approve the recommendations; and  
(ii) to request officers to submit a report detailing the number and cost of outside 

agency staff used by Children’s Services, as well as the % of staff turnover and 
comparator figures from other councils for each of the aforementioned indicators 
to a future meeting of the Committee.  

 
 
PAYMENT CONTROLS IN CHILDREN’S SOCIAL WORK - REPORT BY THE 
INTERNAL AUDITOR - REFERRED FROM THE AUDIT, RISK AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE OF 9 MARCH 2016 
 
15. The Committee had before it by way of referral, a report from the Audit, Risk and 
Scrutiny Committee of 9 March 2016 relating to payment controls in Children’s Social 
Work. 
 
The Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee had resolved: 
(a) in relation to a question from Councillor Yuill regarding when the urgent notice 

was issued to budget holders and the time that had passed before a further 
notice was issued, to note that the Performance and Delivery Manager from 
Education and Children’s Services would provide details to Councillor Yuill and 
the Committee; 

(b) to refer the audit report to the next meeting of the Education and 
Children’s Services Committee for their consideration; and 

(c) to otherwise note the content of the report and endorse the recommendations for 
improvement. 

 

Page 16



15 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

The Committee resolved: 
(i) to note the report submitted to the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny Committee on 9 

March 2016;  
(ii) to note the new Head of Services contribution in identifying Children’s Social 

Work only had a limited number of services on a formal contract which in some 
cases were historical. The remainder of the services were being provided on the 
basis of a long expired contract, or simply with no contract in place, providing an 
unacceptably high level of organisational risk to the Council; 

(iii) to note that the Service had a detailed project plan with 7 work streams 
addressing each of the areas of improvement identified by internal audit and 
ourselves and had set up a programme board to provide the necessary 
governance; and  

(iv) to agree that an updated report detailing the 13 recommendations and their 
implementation dates be submitted to Committee’s meeting on 17 November 
2016 in order to provide Members with progress on how the service had 
implemented the recommendations within the Audit, Risk and Scrutiny report. 

 
 
ADULT SERVICES PERFORMANCE REPORT - ECS/SCW/026 
 
16. With reference to article 14 of the minute of the meeting of the Education and 
Children’s Services Committee of 28 January 2016, the Committee had before it a 
report by the Chief Officer – Adult Health and Social Care which provided information 
relating to the performance of the Adult Social Work Service against its agreed 
indicators.  Appended to the report was an update on associated performance 
measures. 
 
The report recommended –  
that the Committee –  
(a) approve the Adult Social Work performance report; and  
(b) note that a Health and Social Care Partnership Integration Performance 

workstream was in place developing a suite of indicators (including social work 
performance indicators) which would be reported through Audit and Systems 
Performance Committee from 1 May 2016. 

 
The Committee resolved: 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
2015/16 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING (ADULT SOCIAL CARE) - 
ECS/SCW/025 
 
17. With reference to article 13 of the minute of the meeting of the Education and 
Children’s Services Committee of 28 January 2016, the Committee had before it a 
report by the Chief Officer – Adult Health and Social Care and the Head of Finance 

Page 17



16 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

which advised members of the current year revenue budget to date for Adult Services, 
and outlined any areas of risk, and management action being taken in this regard. 
 
The report recommended –  
that the Committee –  
(a) note the report on the forecast outturn on the revenue budget and the 

information on areas of risk and management action that was  contained therein; 
(b) instruct officers to continue to review budget performance and report on service 

strategies; and  
(c) approve the virements outlined in section 5.3.1 of the report.  
 
The Committee resolved: 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
REMOVAL OF TORRY YOUTH CAFÉ, 258 NORTH BALNAGASK ROAD  
ABERDEEN FROM ADULT SOCIAL WORK SERVICES PORTFOLIO - 
ECS/SCW/024 
 
18. The Committee had before it a report by the Chief Officer – Adult Health and 
Social Care which reported on the future requirement by Adult Social Work Services of 
the property at 258 North Balnagask Road (Torry Youth Café), Aberdeen, AB11 8RX. 
 
The report recommended –  
that the Committee –  
(a) note the content of the report; 
(b) declare 258 North Balnagask Road, Aberdeen surplus to Adult Social Work 

Services’ requirements and confirm its removal from the Adult Social  Work 
Services account portfolio; and 

(c) instruct the Head of Land and Property Assets to review the property and in 
conjunction with the SIP and Capital Review Group to determine its future use. 

 
The Committee resolved: 
to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
ALEO GOVERNANCE (BON ACCORD CARE) - ECS/SCW/027 
 
19. With reference to article 20 of the minute of the meeting of the Education and 
Children’s Services Committee of 3 September 2015, the Committee had before it a 
report by the Chief Officer – Adult Health and Social Care which reported the outcome 
of the most recent ALEO Governance Hub Committee meeting in relation to Bon 
Accord Care. 
 
 

Page 18



17 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

The report recommended –  
that the Committee note the contents of the minute of the ALEO Governance Hub 
Committee meeting of 8 December 2015 in relation to Bon Accord Care. 
 
The Committee resolved: 
to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
ABERDEEN CITY HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE PARTNERSHIP (ACHSCP) 

20. At this juncture the Convener advised that Aberdeen City Health and Social Care 
Partnership (ACHSCP) would be launched on 1 April 2016, bringing NHS and 
Aberdeen City Council services together to benefit local communities. The new 
Partnership would deliver adult primary health care and adult social care to the people 
of Aberdeen.  

The Partnership would be overseen by an Integration Joint Board (IJB), made up of 
representatives from the local authority and the NHS, along with voluntary sector, carer, 
patient and service-user representatives. Therefore, this Committee would no longer 
consider reports on adult services matters. She commended Judith Proctor, ACHSCP 
Chief Officer and Tom Cowan, ACHSCP Head of Joint Operations and wished them 
well on the launch on 1 April 2016. 

 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
In accordance with the decision taken at article 2 of this minute, the 
following item of business was considered with the press and public 
excluded. 
 

 
PROCUREMENT OF FURNITURE FOR THE EXTENSION OF GREENBRAE 
PRIMARY SCHOOL - ECS/16/016 
 
21. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education and Children’s 
Services which sought approval to proceed with the procurement of new furniture for 
the extension of Greenbrae Primary School.  
 
The report recommended –  
that the Committee authorise officers to carry out a mini-competition exercise with an 
estimated expenditure of up to the value detailed in the report, under the Scotland 
Excel Framework Agreement for the supply, delivery and installation of education and 
office furniture (Schedule 03/12), in order to procure appropriate classroom furniture for 
the new classrooms to be created at Greenbrae School. 
 

Page 19



18 

 
 

EDUCATION AND CHILDREN'S SERVICES COMMITTEE 
24 March 2016 

 
 
 

 
 

 

The Committee resolved: 
to approve the recommendation. 
- COUNCILLOR ANGELA TAYLOR, CONVENER 
 
 

Page 20



  
E

D
U

C
A

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
’S

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

 
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 
 

2
 J

U
N

E
 2

0
1
6
 

 
P

le
a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

 n
o

te
 o

f 
e
v
e
ry

 r
e
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

s
tr

u
c
te

d
 f

o
r 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 

A
ll

 o
th

e
r 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

s
tr

u
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

, 
a
s
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 d

e
e
m

e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

. 
 R

e
p

o
rt

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 o

v
e
rd

u
e
 a

re
 s

h
a
d

e
d

. 

 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
 U

p
d

a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 D
u

e
  

 

1
. 

S
o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
a
n
d
 W

e
llb

e
in

g
 

1
6
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
3
 

(A
rt

ic
le

 7
) 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

A
n

d
 R

e
d

e
s
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 

T
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
, 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 

re
q

u
e
s
t 

a
 

fi
n
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 
o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

b
e
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 

to
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 

 

A
 

re
p
o
rt

 
w

a
s
 

d
e
fe

rr
e
d
 
a
t 

th
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 o
n
 2

8
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
6
. 

 A
t 

it
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 
o
n
 

2
4
 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
, 

th
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 t

o
 e

x
te

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

u
n
ti
l 

th
e
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

to
 

a
llo

w
 

fu
ll 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

S
c
o
tt

is
h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
n
o
u
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 o

n
 t

h
e
 S

C
Q

F
 

L
e
v
e
l 

9
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

c
h
ild

 
c
a
re

 
s
e
c
to

r 
a
s
 
th

is
 
w

o
u
ld

 
im

p
a
c
t 

u
p
o
n
 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 g

ra
d
in

g
 o

f 
p
o
s
ts

. 
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
7
/1

1
/1

6
 

2
. 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 2

 

J
u
n
e
  

2
0
1
5
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
1
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 
In

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

Y
o

u
th

 
F

e
s
ti

v
a
l 

–
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

 

T
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
, 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 
to

: 
(i
) 

re
q

u
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
p
ro

v
id

e
 

re
g

u
la

r 
u
p
d
a
te

s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

b
u
lle

ti
n
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
; 

a
n
d
 

(i
i)
 

re
c
e
iv

e
 

a
 

re
p
o
rt

 
fr

o
m

 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
o
n
 

th
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 

o
f 

th
e
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

re
v
ie

w
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 
th

e
 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 
o
f 

th
e
 
B

o
a
rd

 
o
f 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 I

n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
Y

o
u
th

 F
e
s
ti
v
a
l.

 

F
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 b
u

ll
e
ti

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
w

h
ic

h
 
w

a
s
 
s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 
to

 
th

e
 
m

e
e
ti

n
g

 
o

f 
th

e
 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 
a
n

d
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 
o

n
 
2
8
 
J
a
n

u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
6
, 

m
a
tt

e
rs

 
c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 

to
 

b
e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e
d

 
a
n

d
 

a
 

fu
ll
 

re
p

o
rt

 i
s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 a
t 

th
e
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 m

e
e
ti

n
g

 o
n

 8
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
. 
 

 

H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
8
/0

1
/1

6
 

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 21



3
. 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 3

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 a

rt
ic

le
 

1
4
 

G
IR

F
E

C
/C

h
il

d
re

n
 
A

n
d

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

 
A

c
t 

–
 U

p
d

a
te

 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
, 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 

to
 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
to

 r
e
p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 
to

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 
o
n
 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 
a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

a
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 
b
y
 

m
e
a
n
s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
a
lo

n
g

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 

c
o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 i

m
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 

A
n
 

u
p
d
a
te

 
w

a
s
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

in
 

th
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt

 
to

 
th

e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 o
n
 2

4
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
. 
 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

u
p

d
a
te

, 
c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
ta

il
e
d

 
c
o

s
ts

 a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
th

e
 
A

c
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
’s

 m
e
e
ti

n
g

 o
n

 2
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1
6
. 

 A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n

d
a
. 

 

H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 

0
2
/0

6
/1

6
 

4
. 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 3

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 a

rt
ic

le
 

1
7
 

J
o

in
t 

In
s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
, 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
 o

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

in
 

th
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 

a
s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

b
y
 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
5
 

b
e
in

g
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

to
 

th
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

a
t 

it
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 
o
n
 

2
8
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
6
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e
r 

o
f 

th
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 i
ts

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
n
 2

4
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
. 

 

A
t 

it
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 

o
n
 

2
8
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
6
, 

th
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
: 

(i
) 

to
 

 
n
o
te

 
th

e
 

u
p
d
a
te

 
o
n
 

th
e
 

m
u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y
 
A

c
ti
o
n
 
P

la
n
 
(a

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 
1
) 

in
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

to
 

th
e
 

a
re

a
s
 

o
f 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 
th

e
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

; 
a
n
d
  

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
 o

n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

s
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

, 
n
o
ti
n
g

 
th

a
t 

a
 

re
p
o
rt

 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

a
t 

it
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g

 o
n
 2

4
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 a

n
d
 

th
a
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
w

o
u
ld

 
e

n
d
e
a
v
o
u
r 

to
 

p
re

s
e
n
t 

th
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 

in
 

a
 

m
o
re

 
s
im

p
lif

ie
d
 m

a
n
n
e
r.

  
 A

t 
it
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 
o
n
 

2
4
 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
, 

th
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
: 

(i
) 

to
 

re
q

u
e
s
t 

a
 

fi
n
a
l 

re
p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 

o
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
6
; 

a
n
d
  

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
g

a
in

 r
e
v
ie

w
 

th
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

c
o
n
ta

in
e
d
 

in
 

th
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 
P

la
n
 
to

 
e
n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

d
e
ta

il 
w

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 

 A
 

re
p

o
rt

 
w

il
l 

b
e
 

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 

to
 

th
e
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
’s

 
m

e
e
ti

n
g

 
o

n
 

8
 

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
. 

 

H
e
a
d
 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

0
2
0
/6

/1
6
 

Page 22



5
. 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

B
u
d
g

e
t 

M
e
e
ti
n
g

 2
5
 

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 

2
0
1
6
 

N
o

n
-H

o
u

s
in

g
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

–
 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

 
 T

h
e
 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 
to

 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
 
th

e
 
N

o
n
-

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

C
a
p
it
a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

a
s
 

a
tt

a
c
h
e
d
 

a
n
d
 i

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 

in
 

th
e
 

T
ill

y
d
ro

n
e
 

a
n
d
 

T
o
rr

y
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

re
c
o
g

n
is

in
g

 
th

e
 
ri
s
in

g
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 

a
g

e
d
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 n
e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 
b
ir
th

 
ra

te
s
 
in

 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
a
s
, 

re
p
o
rt

in
g

 b
a
c
k
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i

n
 

th
e
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 c

y
c
le

 o
f 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

s
 w

it
h
 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
ls

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
ta

ils
 

o
n
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 
s
it
e
s
, 

p
ro

je
c
t 

ti
m

e
lin

e
s
 

a
n
d
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 
fu

ll 
c
o
s
t 

o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
la

n
d
 

a
c
q

u
is

it
io

n
, 

b
u
ild

in
g

 
d
e
m

o
lit

io
n
, 

g
ro

u
n
d
 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

; 
 

 
H

e
a
d
 

o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

0
8
/0

9
/1

6
 

6
. 

A
u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 

a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 9

 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
 

C
ro

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 -

 R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 -

 
R

e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 t

h
e
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
o

r 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 

to
 

in
s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e
 

In
te

ri
m

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

h
e
 E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

o
n
 

2
 

J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
6
 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 

F
in

a
n
c
e
, 

P
o
lic

y
 

a
n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

o
n
 

7
 

J
u
n
e
 

2
0
1
6

 
in

 
re

s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

o
b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 I

n
te

rn
a
l 

A
u
d
it
 o

n
 

P
V

G
 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 

in
 

th
e
ir
 

in
te

rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 

re
p
o
rt

 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 S

e
le

c
ti
o
n
. 

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n

d
a
. 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

0
2
/0

6
/1

6
 

Page 23



7
. 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 
2
4
 

M
a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
6
, 

a
rt

ic
le

 6
 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
–
 

O
u

t 
O

f 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 P

la
c
e
m

e
n

ts
 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
, 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 

in
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 

o
u
t 

o
f 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
to

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 
re

p
o
rt

 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g

: 
(a

) 
th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 
in

 
re

s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

s
u
c
h
 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

; 
(b

) 
w

h
a
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

th
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

w
a
s
 

ta
k
in

g
 

to
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 
s
u
c
h
 
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 
a
n
d
 
m

it
ig

a
te

 
th

e
 

im
p
a
c
ts

; 
(c

) 
th

e
 c

o
s
t 

p
e
r 

c
h
ild

, 
re

g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 
h
o
w

 
th

is
 
w

a
s
 
c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
; 

a
n
d
 

(d
) 

w
h
a
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 e
n
v
is

a
g

e
d
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 

fo
r 

E
x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 i

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 r

e
v
ie

w
, 

to
 a

 f
u
tu

re
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 
H

e
a
d
 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
/H

e
a
d
 

o
f 

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 

1
7
/1

1
/1

6
 

Page 24



8
. 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 2

4
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
, 

a
rt

ic
le

 7
 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 
A

n
d

 
C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
/ 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 
A

n
d

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 
P

e
o

p
le

 
(S

c
o

tl
a
n

d
) 

2
0
1
4
 A

c
t 

U
p

d
a
te

 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
, 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
: 

(i
) 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 

fi
g

u
re

s
 

fo
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

in
 

fu
tu

re
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
; 
 

(i
i)
 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

a
b
le

 1
5
 (

T
o
ta

l 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

L
ib

ra
ry

 
V

is
it
s
 

–
 

P
e
rs

o
n
/V

ir
tu

a
l)
, 

to
 

re
q

u
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 f

ig
u
re

s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

v
is

it
s
 

b
y
 

p
e
rs

o
n
 

o
r 

v
ir
tu

a
l 

b
e
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 

s
e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
; 
 

(i
ii)

 
in

 r
e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

a
b
le

 8
 (

T
h
e
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

R
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 
o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
C

a
s
e
s
 

in
 

a
 

Q
u
a
rt

e
r)

, 
to

 
re

q
u
e
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
to

 
d
e
ta

il 
th

e
 

a
c
tu

a
l 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
fe

rr
a
ls

 
w

h
ic

h
 

p
ro

c
e
e
d
 

to
 

b
e
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
 

a
s
 

a
 

c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
c
a
s
e
 
in

 
fu

tu
re

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt

s
; 
a
n
d
 

(i
v
) 

in
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 

ta
b
le

 
2
4
 

(A
v
e
ra

g
e
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

D
a
y
s
 

L
o
s
t 

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 

S
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 A

b
s
e
n
c
e
),

 t
o
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
to

 
re

v
ie

w
 

th
e
 

lo
n
g

e
r 

tr
e
n
d
 

fo
r 

th
is

 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i

n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
n
d
 i

n
c
lu

d
e
 t

h
is

 
in

 
th

e
 

n
a
rr

a
ti
v
e
 

o
f 

th
e
 

n
e
x
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 
 

A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n

d
a
. 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

0
2
/0

6
/1

6
 

9
. 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 2

4
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
, 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
2
 

C
o

u
n

te
s
s
w

e
ll

s
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
Z

o
n

e
 

–
 

B
ra

e
s
id

e
 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
, 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 

to
 r

e
q

u
e

st
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o

 s
u

b
m

it
 a

 r
e

p
o

rt
 

d
e

ta
il

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
st

s 
o

f 
o

p
e

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 B
ra

e
si

d
e

 

b
u

il
d

in
g

 
to

 
a

 
fu

tu
re

 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
 

o
f 

th
e

 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 

 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

0
8
/0

9
/1

6
 

Page 25



1
0
. 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 2

4
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
, 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

R
e
c
la

im
in

g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
, 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
: 

(i
) 

a
g
re

e
 t

o
  

b
e
 u

p
d
a
te

d
  

b
y
 b

u
lle

ti
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

o
n
 

a
 

re
g

u
la

r 
b
a
s
is

 
o
n
 

th
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

R
e
c
la

im
in

g
 

S
o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

; 
a
n
d
  

(i
i)
 

to
 

re
q

u
e
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
to

 
s
u
b
m

it
 

a
 

re
p
o
rt

 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

o
u
ts

id
e
 

a
g

e
n
c
y
 

s
ta

ff
 

u
s
e
d
 

b
y
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

a
s
 

w
e
ll 

a
s
 

th
e
 

%
 

o
f 

s
ta

ff
 

tu
rn

o
v
e
r 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
a
ra

to
r 

fi
g

u
re

s
 

fr
o
m

 
o
th

e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 
fo

r 
e
a
c
h
 

o
f 

th
e
 

a
fo

re
m

e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
 

to
 

a
 

fu
tu

re
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 

 

 
H

e
a
d
 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

0
8
/0

9
/1

6
 

1
1
. 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 2

4
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
6
, 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
5
 

P
a

y
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
 

in
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 

S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 
 T

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
, 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 

to
 

a
g

re
e
 

th
a
t 

a
n
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 

re
p
o
rt

 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g

 t
h
e
 1

3
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
ir
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

d
a
te

s
 

b
e
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

to
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
’s

 m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
n
 1

7
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 

in
 
o
rd

e
r 

to
 
p
ro

v
id

e
 
M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
w

it
h
 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

o
n
 

h
o
w

 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

h
a

d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

th
e
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

u
d
it
, 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 

S
c
ru

ti
n
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 
 

 
H

e
a
d
 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

1
7
/1

1
/1

6
 

1
2
. 

F
in

a
n
c
e
, 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 1

9
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
6
, 

a
rt

ic
le

 3
0
 

S
p

o
rt

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 -
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

R
e
v
is

io
n

 A
n

d
 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 A

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

 T
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
, 

a
m

o
n
g
s
t 

o
th

e
r 

th
in

g
s
, 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 

a
 c

ro
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
le

tt
in

g
s
 

o
f 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

w
a
s
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

t 
it
s
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
6
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

0
8
/0

9
/1

6
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

 
 

Page 26



E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

’S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
M

O
T

IO
N

S
 L

IS
T

 –
 F

O
R

 2
 J

U
N

E
 2

0
1
6

  
M

E
E

T
IN

G
 

 

N
o

. 
M

o
ti

o
n

 

D
a
te

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il
/ 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 M

e
e
ti

n
g

 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 M

o
ti

o
n

 r
e
fe

rr
e
d

 t
o

 
/  d

a
te

/ 
d

e
c

is
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

A
c
ti

o
n

 
ta

k
e
n

 
/ 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

F
u

tu
re

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

H
e
a
d

(s
) 

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e

 
D

u
e
 D

a
te

 

Is
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

s
o

u
g

h
t 

to
 

re
m

o
v

e
 

m
o

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 
li
s
t?

 

1
. 

 
M

o
ti
o

n
 b

y
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

Y
u

ill
 

‘’T
h
a
t 

th
is

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

in
s
tr

u
c
ts

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
o
n
 t

h
e
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

lo
c
a
ti
n
g
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
it
e
m

 o
f 

p
u
b
lic

 a
rt

 a
t 

a
n

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 p
o
in

t 
a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t

h
e
 r

o
u
te

 o
f 

th
e

 
A

b
e
rd

e
e

n
 W

e
s
te

rn
 

P
e
ri
p
h
e
ra

l 
R

o
u
te

 a
n

d
 

w
h

a
t 

th
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

s
u
c
h
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 
m

ig
h
t 

b
e
’’ 

0
8

.1
0

.1
5

 
(C

o
u

n
c
il)

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

2
7

.1
0

.1
5
 

to
 i
n

s
tr

u
c
t 
o
ff

ic
e

rs
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 t
o

 a
 f

u
tu

re
 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
. 

 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

8
/9

/1
6
 

N
o

 

 

Agenda Item 3.2

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE   Education and Children’s Services 
 
DATE     2nd June 2016 
 
DIRECTOR Gayle Gorman 
 
TITLE OF REPORT Education and Children’s Services Directorate 

Performance Report 
 
REPORT NUMBER   ECS/16/026 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED:  Yes 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

    The purpose of this report is to: 
 

• Provide Elected Members with a summary of quarterly Education and 
Children’s Services (E&CS) Directorate performance outcome data up to 
and including 31st March 2016. 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

The Committee is asked to: 
 

• Note the E&CS Directorate Performance Report for the quarterly period to 
31st March 2016.  

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

There are no financial implications arising directly from the report. 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1     Legal  
 
Local Authorities are required to act as set out in the Local Government 
Act 1992, and as defined within the Direction provided by the Accounts 
Commission, in respect of their Public Reporting obligations and; 

 
4.2      Property, Equipment, Employee and Health and Safety Implications 
 

Agenda Item 5.2

Page 29



There may be other property, equipment, employee or health and safety 
implications linked to the Directorate-wide health and safety performance 
measures. Any related implications under this heading are managed by 
the Directorate as a matter of course in accordance with best practice. 
 

4.3      The report is designed for information purposes only and no Equalities 
and Human Rights implications are involved either in its preparation or the 
recommendations contained within the body of the Report. 
 

 
5.  BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
 5.1 The detail contained within this Report relates to a core selection of Key 

Service Performance Indicators, reflecting outcomes against both the 
Education and Children’s Social Work Services, alongside Directorate 
wide  performance measures which encompass all four Services. 
(Appendix A) 

 
5.2   At the previous meeting of Committee, on the 24th March 2016, officers 

were instructed to provide disaggregated data against Library and 
Information Services visits. This information, separating virtual and ‘in-
person’ visits, is reflected in additional trend charts within Appendix A. 

 
5.3    Committee additionally instructed that baseline data in regards to particular 

Directorate performance measures be provided and that analysis of longer 
term trends in Directorate Sickness Absence be offered. 

 
           As noted within the text of the Trend Chart section of the previous Report, 

it was intimated that comparison of a number of performance measures 
beyond the point at which the new Directorate structure became fully 
effective, (1st April 2015) was not likely to offer true comparative data. 

 
           Nonetheless, officers have re-visited a number of these measures in detail 

and concluded that, with the exception of indicators which are: 
 

(i) guided by statutory obligations, e.g. FOISA, and; 
 

(ii) continue to be delivered through unchanged Service level reporting 
lines, 

 
it is not possible to ‘back-date’ this information to a point which pre-dates 
the introduction of the ‘shadow’ Directorate structure in early January 
2015, with any level of accuracy or consistency. 

 
5.4 However, with the reporting of monthly trend data relating to the 

comparative 15 month period in which the new Directorate has been  
operational, it is now possible for Members to make some additional 
historical comparison of performance against these measures.  

 

Page 30



         This is reflected, in particular, in the capacity to further compare long term 
trends against Sickness Absence levels for the Directorate which, with the 
presentation of rolling 12 month averages, effectively represents a data 
capture which spans the period from January 2014 to March 2016. 

 
          Analysis of the trends noted from this data and comparisons over time and 

against other Council ‘benchmarks’ are reflected in the relevant Trend Chart 
in Appendix A.  

 
         The most recent corporate report on Sickness Absence levels across the 

Council can be viewed through the attached link: 
    

http://councilcommittees/documents/s55850/Sickness%20Absence%20Up
date.pdf  

 
5.5    Outwith these Directorate performance measures, each outcome indicator, 

where data is directly comparable, provides both a 2013-14 baseline and 
identifiable three year trend pattern, which is in line with reporting 
recommendations from the Accounts Commission’s Best Value Audit of the 
Authority from June 2015. 

 
5.6    Members are asked to note the separate cover report relating to proposals 

for future corporate Performance Reporting to Committee attached at 
Appendix B. 

     
 

6.  IMPACT  
 

Improving Customer Experience  
 
Analysis and publication of performance data and, in particular, the use of 
benchmark and trend information, offers the Directorate the opportunity to 
critically evaluate the extent to which it is currently meeting customer needs 
and, as required, re-align delivery methodologies to ensure that, in particular, 
children’s experiences and outcomes are continuously improving. 
 
Improving Staff Experience 
 
Transparency of performance reporting, in terms of outputs and outcomes, 
offers staff with the opportunity to gain insight into areas of good practice 
within the Directorate, those where improvement might be required and 
importantly, recognise where their contributions are materially influencing and 
driving the work of their Service. 
 
Improving our use of Resources 
 
This Report aligns with the principles of Best Value whereby local authorities 
are required to evidence and evaluate the extent to which resource is used 
effectively and efficiently in the delivery of services to stakeholders. 

 

Page 31



Corporate 
 

           Reporting to Committee is an essential governance requirement of the 
Directorate and Council’s performance management arrangements, by which 
Elected Members may seek assurance that performance improvement activity 
is evidenced and robust. 

 
The measures reported against ensure linkage to the Single Outcome 
Agreement and the themes contained in “Improving Scottish Education.”, 
together with the Administration’s Policy Statement ‘Smarter Aberdeen’, 
covering: 
 
Smarter Living Priorities; 
 
“We will enhance the physical and emotional wellbeing of all our citizens by 
offering support and activities which promote independence, resilience, 
confidence and self-esteem” 
 
“We will improve access to and increase participation in arts and culture by 
providing opportunities for citizens and visitors to experience a broad range of 
high quality arts and cultural activities.” 
ARTSMAR 
Smarter People Priorities; 
 
“We will provide a high quality education service within our schools and 
communities which will improve attainment and life chances of our children 
and young people to achieve their full potential in education, employment or 
training. 
 

The implementation of the Reclaiming Social Work model, and its intended 
outcomes within Children’s Social Work, link to and fulfill the ambitions of the 
‘Aberdeen: the Smarter City’ plan. 

Smarter Governance – Participation: 

• Implementing the Reclaiming Social Work model to work in partnership 

with families within their local community to improve their overall wellbeing 

and outcomes. 

• Delivering a Public Social Partnership (PSP) approach with third sector 

partners to co-design commissioned services to support Reclaiming Social 

Work. 

Smarter Living – Quality of Life: 

• Supporting priority families. 

• Promoting and secure and lasting attachments for children.  

• Implementing the Getting It Right for Every Child (GIRFEC) model 

 

 

 

Page 32



          Smarter People – Social and Human Capital: 

• Attracting and retaining a high quality workforce to support learning and   

    teaching and the implementation of Reclaiming Social Work. 

•   Ensuring partnership approaches are supporting children and young people.  

• Enabling all young people in Aberdeen to achieve sustainable and positive 

destinations. 

           Public  
 

The report is designed for information purposes only and no specific Equalities 
and Human Rights implications are involved either in its preparation or the 
recommendations contained within the body of the Report. 
       
Transparency in our performance reporting is a key component of our Public 
Performance Reporting requirement, which is subject to annual review by 
Audit Scotland.  

 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
The nature of this report is not such that a risk assessment of options is 
necessary as the content is for information only. 
 
However, the regular reporting of performance is itself mitigation against the 
risk that the Council’s Public Performance Reporting might be regarded as 
insufficient for the purposes of meeting the obligations placed upon it. 

 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Education and Children’s Services Committee, 24th March 2016 -Directorate 
Performance Report/Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014 Update. 
 
Appendix A: Directorate Performance Report Trend Charts 
 
Appendix B: Performance Management Framework 
 
Finance, Policy and Resources Committee, 19th April 2016 - Sickness 
Absence Update 

 
 

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 

Co-ordinated/Co- Authored by: 
 
Alex Paterson, Development Officer, (Performance Improvement),  
� 01224 522137 
� apaterson@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 

Page 33



David Bliss, Planning & Development Manager 
� 01224 522048 
� DBliss@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 
      Martin Murchie, Policy, Performance and Parliamentary Liaison Manager,  
      Office of Chief Executive 

�   01224 522008 
� mmurchie@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 

Page 34



 

Appendix A – Education and Children’s Service
March 2016 
 

Report Author: Alex Paterson 

Generated on:  17
th
 May 2016 

 

                                         Shaping Aberdeen 

THEME: BALANCE OF CARE 
 

Table 1 - % of Looked After Children at home

 The % of Looked After Children who are looked after at home. Trend calculation method is year on year
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month 
period. 

Data Narrative and Analysis 

At present Aberdeen City Council is slightly below the national average % of looked after children 
supported at home. The implementation of Reclaiming Social Work (RSW) has at its heart the intended 
outcome of supporting families to care for their children
wellbeing.  
 
It is envisaged that, as RSW beds in across the structure we will begin to see an increase in the numbers 
of looked after children supported to remain at home bringing us closer to the nati
 
Of the total of 636 child placements over the Quarter, 135 (21%) of these were recorded as being Looked 
After At Home, a marginal absolute and percentage increase on the previous quarter, resulting in a mean 
% outcome for 2015-16 of  20.75% with, on average, 131 children being Looked After at Home at each 
snapshot point across the year. 
 
National benchmark data relating to the balance of care is collated during July of each year and is 
published during the course of the national 
report in March of the following year. 
 
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Statistics/Browse/Ch

1 

Education and Children’s Services Performance Trend Charts

Shaping Aberdeen – Delivering Outcomes 

% of Looked After Children at home > 

The % of Looked After Children who are looked after at home. Trend calculation method is year on year
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

CareFirst 

Service Manager

Graeme Simpson

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

At present Aberdeen City Council is slightly below the national average % of looked after children 
supported at home. The implementation of Reclaiming Social Work (RSW) has at its heart the intended 
outcome of supporting families to care for their children. This must not be at the expense of their safety and 

in across the structure we will begin to see an increase in the numbers 
of looked after children supported to remain at home bringing us closer to the nati

Of the total of 636 child placements over the Quarter, 135 (21%) of these were recorded as being Looked 
After At Home, a marginal absolute and percentage increase on the previous quarter, resulting in a mean 

20.75% with, on average, 131 children being Looked After at Home at each 

National benchmark data relating to the balance of care is collated during July of each year and is 
published during the course of the national information release through the Children Looked After Statistics

 

http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Topics/Statistics/Browse/Children/PubChildrenSocialWork

erformance Trend Charts- January to 

The % of Looked After Children who are looked after at home. Trend calculation method is year on year- 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 21%* 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

CareFirst  Monthly Sheets  

Service Manager 

Graeme Simpson 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

At present Aberdeen City Council is slightly below the national average % of looked after children 
supported at home. The implementation of Reclaiming Social Work (RSW) has at its heart the intended 

. This must not be at the expense of their safety and 

in across the structure we will begin to see an increase in the numbers 
of looked after children supported to remain at home bringing us closer to the national average figure. 

Of the total of 636 child placements over the Quarter, 135 (21%) of these were recorded as being Looked 
After At Home, a marginal absolute and percentage increase on the previous quarter, resulting in a mean 

20.75% with, on average, 131 children being Looked After at Home at each 

National benchmark data relating to the balance of care is collated during July of each year and is 
through the Children Looked After Statistics 

ildren/PubChildrenSocialWork 

Page 35



 

 

Table 2 - % of Looked After Children in a Kinship Care Arrangement

The % of Looked After Children in a Kinship Care Arrangement. Trend calculation method is year on year
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month 
period. 

Data Narrative and Analysis 

Aberdeen City Council in collaboration with partners, the Scottish Government and CELCIS is participating 
in the PACE programme. This is aimed at improving the decision making for children who cannot be cared 
for by their parents. One of the key areas of t
care.  
 
The outcomes for children cared for by their kin are generally better it also enables them to retain a clear 
sense of identity. At present the % of Looked after Children in Aberdeen City
is lower than the national average. One of the outcomes of the PACE programme and RSW is intended to 
drive up the % of children living in a kinship arrangement.  
 
Over the course of Quarter 4, the number of Looked After Chil
friend/relatives) totalled 129 children from a total of 
20%.  
 
The cumulated and averaged outcomes from each Quarter provide for an annual figure of
percentage points lower than in 2014
Arrangement as a mean figure, 9 fewer than in 2014

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 

% of Looked After Children in a Kinship Care Arrangement > 

The % of Looked After Children in a Kinship Care Arrangement. Trend calculation method is year on year
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

CareFirst
Formula Used 

Service Manager

Graeme Simpson

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

Aberdeen City Council in collaboration with partners, the Scottish Government and CELCIS is participating 
in the PACE programme. This is aimed at improving the decision making for children who cannot be cared 
for by their parents. One of the key areas of this work is to improve decision making in relation to kinship 

The outcomes for children cared for by their kin are generally better it also enables them to retain a clear 
sense of identity. At present the % of Looked after Children in Aberdeen City living in a kinship placement 
is lower than the national average. One of the outcomes of the PACE programme and RSW is intended to 
drive up the % of children living in a kinship arrangement.   

Over the course of Quarter 4, the number of Looked After Children in a Kinship Care Arrangement 
friend/relatives) totalled 129 children from a total of 636 placements, providing for a per

averaged outcomes from each Quarter provide for an annual figure of
percentage points lower than in 2014-15 with 121 children being Looked After in a Kinship Care 
Arrangement as a mean figure, 9 fewer than in 2014-15 

The % of Looked After Children in a Kinship Care Arrangement. Trend calculation method is year on year- 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 20%* 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

CareFirst - Monthly data - 
Formula Used  

Service Manager 

Graeme Simpson 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

Aberdeen City Council in collaboration with partners, the Scottish Government and CELCIS is participating 
in the PACE programme. This is aimed at improving the decision making for children who cannot be cared 

his work is to improve decision making in relation to kinship 

The outcomes for children cared for by their kin are generally better it also enables them to retain a clear 
living in a kinship placement 

is lower than the national average. One of the outcomes of the PACE programme and RSW is intended to 

dren in a Kinship Care Arrangement (i.e. with 
636 placements, providing for a percentage outcome of 

averaged outcomes from each Quarter provide for an annual figure of 18%, 2 
15 with 121 children being Looked After in a Kinship Care 

Page 36



 

Table 3 - % of Looked After Children in community based care

The % of Looked After Children in community based care.
trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period

Data Analysis 

Of the total 636 child placements made
recorded within community based care settings which incorporate
placements. In each of the quarterly periods within 2015
community care setting has improved against both the 2013

 

Table 4 % of Looked After Children in residential care

The % of Looked After Children in residential care. Trend calculation method is year on year
calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period

Data Analysis 

82 Looked After Children were placed within residential care settings at the snapshot point of 31
2016. This grouping includes children who are living within Residential Units and Schools, Other 
Placements and within Secure Units.

3 

% of Looked After Children in community based care > 

dren in community based care. Trend calculation method is year on year
trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

CareFirst 
Formula Used 

Service Manager

Graeme Simpson

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

made during the Quarter, 286 Looked After Children (45%) were 
care settings which incorporate fostering and prospective adopter 

. In each of the quarterly periods within 2015-16, the percentage of children looked after
community care setting has improved against both the 2013-14 baseline and 2014

% of Looked After Children in residential care > 

The % of Looked After Children in residential care. Trend calculation method is year on year
calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

CareFirst 
Formula Used 

Service 

Bernadette Oxley

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

82 Looked After Children were placed within residential care settings at the snapshot point of 31
2016. This grouping includes children who are living within Residential Units and Schools, Other 
Placements and within Secure Units. Reflecting on the mean figure for the year, this equates to

Trend calculation method is year on year- Short 
trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 45%* 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

eFirst - Monthly data - 
Formula Used  

Service Manager 

Graeme Simpson 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

during the Quarter, 286 Looked After Children (45%) were 
fostering and prospective adopter 

16, the percentage of children looked after in a 
14 baseline and 2014-15 years 

The % of Looked After Children in residential care. Trend calculation method is year on year- Short trend 
calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 13%* 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

CareFirst - Monthly data - 
Formula Used  

Service Manager 

Bernadette Oxley 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

82 Looked After Children were placed within residential care settings at the snapshot point of 31st March 
2016. This grouping includes children who are living within Residential Units and Schools, Other 

Reflecting on the mean figure for the year, this equates to 12.75%, an 

Page 37



 

improvement of 3% on the previous year, sugge
number of children being Looked After in these settings

 
>Totals combined across Tables 1-4 may add up a figure less/greater than 100% due to the ef

rounding of percentages 

THEME: CHILDREN WITH AN ALLOCATED SOCIAL WORKER
 

Table 5 - % of children on the Child Protection Register with allocated social worker

Percentage (%) of children on the Child Protection Register with an allocated social worker. Trend 
calculation method is year on year- Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend 
calculates average over 12 month period.

Data Narrative and Analysis 

The allocation of children on the Child Protection Register is of the highest allocation priority. With recurring 
movement of staff in and out of the service there is always likely to be a very small number of children 
unallocated on any given day. These cases will still be worked by the team while awaiting allocation to a 
specific worker, usually a matter of a few days.
 
It is important to note that the percentage profile for this measure, and those reflected in Tables 6 and 7 
are subject to natural fluctuations dependant on the point at which children are designated
categories. On this basis, a small number o
Quarter, can influence the snapshot outcomes and
be viewed in terms of meeting ‘standardised’ case transfer and allocation times.
 
A total of 113 children were on the Child Protection Register across the quarterly period with 110 of these 
individuals having been allocated to a social worker at the snapshot point on 31
equates to 97%. This, cumulatively, provides for an
identical to the figure for 2014-15. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4 

improvement of 3% on the previous year, suggestive of both a proportional and absolute reduction of the 
number of children being Looked After in these settings 

4 may add up a figure less/greater than 100% due to the ef

WITH AN ALLOCATED SOCIAL WORKER 

% of children on the Child Protection Register with allocated social worker

Percentage (%) of children on the Child Protection Register with an allocated social worker. Trend 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend 

calculates average over 12 month period. 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Children In Need Reports 

Service Manager

Bernadette Oxley

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

The allocation of children on the Child Protection Register is of the highest allocation priority. With recurring 
staff in and out of the service there is always likely to be a very small number of children 

unallocated on any given day. These cases will still be worked by the team while awaiting allocation to a 
specific worker, usually a matter of a few days.   

important to note that the percentage profile for this measure, and those reflected in Tables 6 and 7 
are subject to natural fluctuations dependant on the point at which children are designated

On this basis, a small number of additions to any of these groups, particularly those late in the 
t outcomes and each of the three ‘Allocated’ measures also 

‘standardised’ case transfer and allocation times. 

otal of 113 children were on the Child Protection Register across the quarterly period with 110 of these 
individuals having been allocated to a social worker at the snapshot point on 31st 

provides for an annual averaged percentage 

stive of both a proportional and absolute reduction of the 

4 may add up a figure less/greater than 100% due to the effects of 

% of children on the Child Protection Register with allocated social worker 

Percentage (%) of children on the Child Protection Register with an allocated social worker. Trend 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 97%* 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Children In Need Reports  

Service Manager 

Bernadette Oxley 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

The allocation of children on the Child Protection Register is of the highest allocation priority. With recurring 
staff in and out of the service there is always likely to be a very small number of children 

unallocated on any given day. These cases will still be worked by the team while awaiting allocation to a 

important to note that the percentage profile for this measure, and those reflected in Tables 6 and 7 
are subject to natural fluctuations dependant on the point at which children are designated in the respective 

f additions to any of these groups, particularly those late in the 
each of the three ‘Allocated’ measures also require to 

otal of 113 children were on the Child Protection Register across the quarterly period with 110 of these 
 March 2016 which 
 outcome of 99.25%, 

Page 38



 

Table 6 - % of Looked After Children with allocated social worker

Percentage (%) of children who are Looked After Children with an allocated social worker. Trend 
calculation method is year on year- Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend 
calculates average over 12 month period.

Data Analysis 

540 child placements out of the Quarter
them at the snapshot point on 31st March 2016. This figure is in line with the averaged outcome across the 
four quarterly periods, which itself is an improved position on both the baseline and previous years, of 
2.25% and 7.25% points respectively

 

 

Table 7 - % of children who are Looked 
social worker 

Percentage (%) of children who are Looked After & Accommodated Children with an allocated social 
worker. Trend calculation method is year on year
period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period.

5 

% of Looked After Children with allocated social worker 

Percentage (%) of children who are Looked After Children with an allocated social worker. Trend 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend 

calculates average over 12 month period. 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

CareFirst

Service Manager

Graeme Simpson

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

540 child placements out of the Quarter’s total of 636 had an allocated social worker resource available to 
March 2016. This figure is in line with the averaged outcome across the 

four quarterly periods, which itself is an improved position on both the baseline and previous years, of 
2.25% and 7.25% points respectively 

% of children who are Looked After & Accommodated Children (LAAC) with an allocated 

Percentage (%) of children who are Looked After & Accommodated Children with an allocated social 
Trend calculation method is year on year- Short trend calculates current period v

period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period. 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

careFirst 

Service Manager

Graeme Simpson

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

Percentage (%) of children who are Looked After Children with an allocated social worker. Trend 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 85%* 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

areFirst 

Service Manager 

Graeme Simpson 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

total of 636 had an allocated social worker resource available to 
March 2016. This figure is in line with the averaged outcome across the 

four quarterly periods, which itself is an improved position on both the baseline and previous years, of 

After & Accommodated Children (LAAC) with an allocated 

Percentage (%) of children who are Looked After & Accommodated Children with an allocated social 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 99%* 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

areFirst  

Service Manager 

Graeme Simpson 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

Page 39



 

Data Analysis 

Of the 479 children categorised as Looked After and 
worker, retaining the percentage outcome at 99% for the third consecutive quarter and resulting in an 
annual average of 98.75%. This annual figure is just below that of 2014
in 2013-14. 

THEME: CHILDREN’S REFERRALS
 

Table 8 - Number of Referrals of Children’s Cases in a Quarter

Number of referrals of children's cases. Trend calculation method is year on year
current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period.

Data Narrative and Analysis 

The above table needs to be considered in conjunction with Table 9. Table 8 highlights there has been an 
increase in the numbers of referrals Table 9 shows corresponding increase in the number which had a “no 
further action” outcome. In looking at these th
of the increase those who meet the eligibility of social work threshold remains consistent. 
 
The reasons for the increase are not clear and dependant on multi agency factors including implem
of the Children & Young people (Scotland) Act 2014 and the role of the Named Person or media profile in 
relation to local and national cases. 
Our current data recording processes don’t allow for an extrapolation of the volume of referrals which 
require a sustained social work involvement beyond initial enquiries. The extent to which this can be 
provided to elected members is being explore
 
The quarterly figure taken from careFirst for January to March 2016 
number of referrals against both previous 
figure for March showing the highest rise, to 316 referrals, and both January and February being higher 
than in prior years. 
 
Whilst, as expected, the number of referrals 
outcome both rose roughly in proportion to this overall increase, the number where a pending outcome was 
recorded actually fell in comparison with 2014
and processing of referrals at Service levels.

 

6 

s Looked After and Accommodated, 472 had been allocated
, retaining the percentage outcome at 99% for the third consecutive quarter and resulting in an 

annual figure is just below that of 2014-15 but in advance of that recorded 

THEME: CHILDREN’S REFERRALS 

eferrals of Children’s Cases in a Quarter 

Number of referrals of children's cases. Trend calculation method is year on year-
current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period.

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long 

Short Trend

Data Source

CareFirst

Service Manager

Graeme Simpson

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

The above table needs to be considered in conjunction with Table 9. Table 8 highlights there has been an 
increase in the numbers of referrals Table 9 shows corresponding increase in the number which had a “no 
further action” outcome. In looking at these there is a balancing off of the referrals suggesting that in spite 
of the increase those who meet the eligibility of social work threshold remains consistent. 

The reasons for the increase are not clear and dependant on multi agency factors including implem
of the Children & Young people (Scotland) Act 2014 and the role of the Named Person or media profile in 

Our current data recording processes don’t allow for an extrapolation of the volume of referrals which 
quire a sustained social work involvement beyond initial enquiries. The extent to which this can be 

provided to elected members is being explored with the careFirst Team. 

uarterly figure taken from careFirst for January to March 2016 indicates a sign
number of referrals against both previous 2015-16 quarters and the comparable year periods with the 
figure for March showing the highest rise, to 316 referrals, and both January and February being higher 

the number of referrals either requiring no further action or proceeding to a formal 
both rose roughly in proportion to this overall increase, the number where a pending outcome was 

recorded actually fell in comparison with 2014-15, indicating a significant improvement in the evaluation 
and processing of referrals at Service levels. 

had been allocated a case social 
, retaining the percentage outcome at 99% for the third consecutive quarter and resulting in an 

15 but in advance of that recorded 

- Short trend calculates 
current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period. 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 856 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

areFirst 

Service Manager 

Graeme Simpson 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

The above table needs to be considered in conjunction with Table 9. Table 8 highlights there has been an 
increase in the numbers of referrals Table 9 shows corresponding increase in the number which had a “no 

ere is a balancing off of the referrals suggesting that in spite 
of the increase those who meet the eligibility of social work threshold remains consistent.  

The reasons for the increase are not clear and dependant on multi agency factors including implementation 
of the Children & Young people (Scotland) Act 2014 and the role of the Named Person or media profile in 

Our current data recording processes don’t allow for an extrapolation of the volume of referrals which 
quire a sustained social work involvement beyond initial enquiries. The extent to which this can be 

indicates a significant increase in the 
quarters and the comparable year periods with the 

figure for March showing the highest rise, to 316 referrals, and both January and February being higher 

proceeding to a formal 
both rose roughly in proportion to this overall increase, the number where a pending outcome was 

indicating a significant improvement in the evaluation 

Page 40



 

Table 9- Number of Children's Case 

Number of referrals of children's cases with an outcome of No Further Actio

 

Table 10- Number of Children's Case 

Number of referrals of children's cases with an outcome of Proceed To. Trend calculation method is year 
on year- Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 
12 month period. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7 

Case Referrals with No Further Action outcome

Number of referrals of children's cases with an outcome of No Further Action  

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

CareFirst

Service Manager

Graeme Simpson

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

Case Referrals  with Proceed To... outcome 

Number of referrals of children's cases with an outcome of Proceed To. Trend calculation method is year 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

CareFirst

Service Manager

Graeme Simpson

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

Referrals with No Further Action outcome 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 399 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

areFirst 

Service Manager 

Graeme Simpson 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

 

Number of referrals of children's cases with an outcome of Proceed To. Trend calculation method is year 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 366 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

areFirst 

Service Manager 

Graeme Simpson 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

Page 41



 

Table 11- Number of Children's Case 

Number of referrals of children's cases with an outcome of Pending. Trend calculation method is year on 
year- Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 
month period. 

 
THEME: CHILD PROTECTION REGISTRATIONS
 

Table 12- Child Protection: number on register at end of quarter

Child Protection: number on register at end of quarter 

Data Narrative and Analysis 

The current numbers of children on the register shows an increase in previous years. The current level of 
children on the Child Protection Register is consis
that practitioners across the partnership are
formulation of a Child Protection plan or a multi
 
The most recent increase in Q4 would correspond to the overall increas
Service as detailed in Table 8 above, 

8 

Case Referrals with Pending outcome 

children's cases with an outcome of Pending. Trend calculation method is year on 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long 

Short Trend

Data Source

CareFirst

Service Manager

Graeme Simpson

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

CHILD PROTECTION REGISTRATIONS 

Child Protection: number on register at end of quarter 

Child Protection: number on register at end of quarter  

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Shirley Moore 

Service Manager

Graeme Simpson

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

The current numbers of children on the register shows an increase in previous years. The current level of 
children on the Child Protection Register is consistent with the national picture. The

across the partnership are correctly identifying child protection concerns and the 
formulation of a Child Protection plan or a multi-agency plan being required to protect the child.  

The most recent increase in Q4 would correspond to the overall increase in ‘external 
above, some of which inevitably will be of a child protection nature.

children's cases with an outcome of Pending. Trend calculation method is year on 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 91 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

areFirst 

Service Manager 

Graeme Simpson 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 115 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Shirley Moore  

Service Manager 

Graeme Simpson 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

The current numbers of children on the register shows an increase in previous years. The current level of 
The above would indicate 

correctly identifying child protection concerns and the 
agency plan being required to protect the child.   

‘external referrals’ to the 
hild protection nature. 

Page 42



 

 

Table 13- Child Protection: number of new registrations

Child Protection: number of new registrations. . Trend 
calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period.

 

 

Table 14- Child Protection: number of de

Child Protection: number of de-registrations. Trend calculation method is year on year
calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9 

Child Protection: number of new registrations 

Child Protection: number of new registrations. . Trend calculation method is year on year
calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period.

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Shirley Moore 

Service Manager

Graeme Simpson

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

Child Protection: number of de-registrations 

registrations. Trend calculation method is year on year
current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period.

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Shirley Moore 

Service Manager

Graeme Simpson

Head of Service

Bernadette Oxley

calculation method is year on year- Short trend 
calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period. 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 30 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Shirley Moore  

Service Manager 

Graeme Simpson 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

registrations. Trend calculation method is year on year- Short trend 
current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period. 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 29 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Shirley Moore  

Service Manager 

Graeme Simpson 

Head of Service 

Bernadette Oxley 

Page 43



 

THEME: CULTURAL ENGAGEMENT
 

Table 15- Total number of library visits 

Total number of library visits. Trend calculation method is year on year
period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period.

Data Narrative and Analysis 

Over the course of Quarter 4, there were a total of 377,454 visits to Library and Information Services 
provision with the contributions from in person and virtual visits presented in Tables
 
This figure combined figure includes 222,885 visits in person, 
the comparative 2014-15 quarter, the majority of which relates to reductions in visits to Central Library 
services whilst the combined figure for co
 
Virtual visits, by contrast, increased by just under 25% against the previous year quarter with an annual 
outcome of 538,000 visits, reversing the downwards trend experienced in 2014

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10 

THEME: CULTURAL ENGAGEMENT 

Total number of library visits - person; virtual 

Total number of library visits. Trend calculation method is year on year- Short trend calculates current 
previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period.

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Library and Information 
Services 

Service Manager

Neil Bruce

Head of Service

Andrew Griffiths

Over the course of Quarter 4, there were a total of 377,454 visits to Library and Information Services 
from in person and virtual visits presented in Tables

This figure combined figure includes 222,885 visits in person, which is 1,2% lower ( 
15 quarter, the majority of which relates to reductions in visits to Central Library 

services whilst the combined figure for community based libraries rose by nearly 5,000 visits

Virtual visits, by contrast, increased by just under 25% against the previous year quarter with an annual 
outcome of 538,000 visits, reversing the downwards trend experienced in 2014-15

Short trend calculates current 
previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period. 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 377,454 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Library and Information 
Services  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Andrew Griffiths 

Over the course of Quarter 4, there were a total of 377,454 visits to Library and Information Services 
from in person and virtual visits presented in Tables 16 and 17.  

1,2% lower ( -2,600 visits) than in 
15 quarter, the majority of which relates to reductions in visits to Central Library 

mmunity based libraries rose by nearly 5,000 visits. 

Virtual visits, by contrast, increased by just under 25% against the previous year quarter with an annual 
15 

Page 44



 

Table 16- Number of visits to libraries 

This indicator monitors the number of visits to libraries in person. Trend calculation method is year on year
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates averag
month period.  

 

*Excludes data relating to the Curriculum Resources and Information Service which is calcu
differing timescales 

 

Table 17- Number of visits to libraries 

This indicator monitors the number of virtual visits to libraries. Trend calculation method is year on year
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over a 12 
month period.  

 

 

 

 

 

11 

Number of visits to libraries - person* 

This indicator monitors the number of visits to libraries in person. Trend calculation method is year on year
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates averag

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Library and Information 
Services 

Service Manager

Neil Bruce

Head of Service

Andrew Griffiths

to the Curriculum Resources and Information Service which is calcu

Number of visits to libraries – virtual 

This indicator monitors the number of virtual visits to libraries. Trend calculation method is year on year
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over a 12 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Library and Information 
Services 

Service Manager

Neil Bruce

Head of Service

Andrew Griffiths

 

This indicator monitors the number of visits to libraries in person. Trend calculation method is year on year- 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over a 12 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 222,885 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Library and Information 
Services  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Andrew Griffiths 

to the Curriculum Resources and Information Service which is calculated over 

This indicator monitors the number of virtual visits to libraries. Trend calculation method is year on year- 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over a 12 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 154,569 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Library and Information 
Services  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Andrew Griffiths 

Page 45



 

Table 18 - Number of PC terminal and Wi

This indicator monitors the number of uses of PC terminals and Wi
Learning Centres Trend calculation method is year on year
previous year period; Long trend calculates average over a 12 month period.

Data Narrative and Analysis 

With the exception of Quarter 1, where the 2015
quarter, including Quarter 4, has seen an improvement in usages
year-end figure of 209,290 has risen by 2%. 
 
Underpinning this figure, whilst PC use has fallen by just over 5%, Wi
67.5% to 36,365, a pattern which mirrors that experienced in Quarter 4 itself

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12 

Number of PC terminal and Wi-Fi Netloan access uses in Library Learning Centres

e number of uses of PC terminals and Wi-Fi Netloan provision within Library 
Trend calculation method is year on year- Short trend calculates current period v 

previous year period; Long trend calculates average over a 12 month period. 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Library and Information 
Services 

Service Manager

Neil Bruce

Head of Service

Andrew Griffiths

where the 2015-16 outcome was below that of the previous year, each 
has seen an improvement in usages on the prior year

,290 has risen by 2%.  

PC use has fallen by just over 5%, Wi-Fi based usage has increased by 
67.5% to 36,365, a pattern which mirrors that experienced in Quarter 4 itself 

Learning Centres 

Fi Netloan provision within Library 
Short trend calculates current period v 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 53,918 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Library and Information 
Services  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Andrew Griffiths 

16 outcome was below that of the previous year, each 
the prior year with the result that the 

Fi based usage has increased by 

Page 46



 

Table 19 - Number of visits to/usages of council funded or part funded museums 
enquiries; outreach; virtual (2015) 

This indicator monitors the number of visits 
part funded museums. Trend calculation method is year on year 
previous year period; Long trend calculates average over a 12 month perio

Data Narrative and Analysis 

Visits in person to the two museum premises in Quarter 4 were marginally higher than those in the same 
quarter in 2014-15 with 19,396 attendances (+ 6.2%) reflecting an improvement against the Aberdeen 
Maritime Museum figures, countered by a smal
 
The year-on-year trend in visits in person, (resulting from
Quarter 2 of 2014-15) shows a decline in visits in person from 77,800
quarterly and three year trends ( +7.7%) are upwards
 
Counter to this marginal reduction in footfall, and driving the improvemen
quarterly (+43.3%) in total visits, virtual visits rose 
are new highs for this measure. 
 
The number of annual Outreach visits for the
overall total of just over 1million combined visits, was also the highest r
previous year figure.  
 
Enquiry numbers remained relatively static during each quarter of the year, at around 400, although 
understandably, this represents a fall on previous year figure as a result of the closure of the Art 
and Museum. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13 

Number of visits to/usages of council funded or part funded museums 
 

This indicator monitors the number of visits (in person, virtual, enquiries and outreach
part funded museums. Trend calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current 
previous year period; Long trend calculates average over a 12 month period  

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Museums and Galleries 

Service Manager

Neil Bruce

Head of Service

Andrew Griffiths

Visits in person to the two museum premises in Quarter 4 were marginally higher than those in the same 
15 with 19,396 attendances (+ 6.2%) reflecting an improvement against the Aberdeen 

Maritime Museum figures, countered by a small decline in Tolbooth footfall.  

year trend in visits in person, (resulting from particular increase in Maritime Museum
shows a decline in visits in person from 77,800 to 73,400 but otherwise both the 

quarterly and three year trends ( +7.7%) are upwards 

Counter to this marginal reduction in footfall, and driving the improvement, both annual (+ 26%
in total visits, virtual visits rose respectively to over 992,00 and 330,000 both of which 

reach visits for the year, (3,308) whilst relatively small in comparison with the 
mbined visits, was also the highest recorded, almost doubling the 

Enquiry numbers remained relatively static during each quarter of the year, at around 400, although 
understandably, this represents a fall on previous year figure as a result of the closure of the Art 

Number of visits to/usages of council funded or part funded museums - person; 

and outreach) to council funded or 
Short trend calculates current period v 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 354,108 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Museums and Galleries  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Andrew Griffiths 

Visits in person to the two museum premises in Quarter 4 were marginally higher than those in the same 
15 with 19,396 attendances (+ 6.2%) reflecting an improvement against the Aberdeen 

particular increase in Maritime Museum visits in 
to 73,400 but otherwise both the 

t, both annual (+ 26% and 
992,00 and 330,000 both of which 

whilst relatively small in comparison with the 
ecorded, almost doubling the 

Enquiry numbers remained relatively static during each quarter of the year, at around 400, although 
understandably, this represents a fall on previous year figure as a result of the closure of the Art Gallery 

Page 47



 

Table 20 - Number of visits in person to museums 

 This indicator monitors the number of admissions to council funded or part funded museums. Trend 
calculation method is year on year- Short trend calculates 
calculates average over a 12 month period.

 

 

Table 21 - Number of visits to/usages of council funded or part funded museums 

This indicator monitors the number of virtual visits to council funded or part funded museums. Trend 
calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long 
trend calculates average over 12 month period.

 

 

 

 

 

 

14 

Number of visits in person to museums - in person 

This indicator monitors the number of admissions to council funded or part funded museums. Trend 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend 

calculates average over a 12 month period. 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

 Museums & Galleries

Service Manager

Neil Bruce

Head of 

Andrew Griffiths

Number of visits to/usages of council funded or part funded museums 

This indicator monitors the number of virtual visits to council funded or part funded museums. Trend 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long 

trend calculates average over 12 month period. 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Museums & Galleries 

Service Manager

Neil Bruce

Head of Service

Andrew Griffiths

This indicator monitors the number of admissions to council funded or part funded museums. Trend 
current period v previous year period; Long trend 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 19,396 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Museums & Galleries 

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Andrew Griffiths 

Number of visits to/usages of council funded or part funded museums - virtual 

This indicator monitors the number of virtual visits to council funded or part funded museums. Trend 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 331,886 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Museums & Galleries  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Andrew Griffiths 

Page 48



 

                           
                           Shaping Aberdeen 
 

 
THEME: RESOURCE MANAGEMENT
 

Table 22- Establishment Control: FTE 

Number of FTE positions. Trend calculation method is year on year
previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month rolling period.

Data Narrative and Analysis 

The level of FTE positions within the 
been consistent throughout the course of the fiscal year with minor monthly variations of +/
mean figure of 3,257 posts. 

 
 
< The data contained in this table reflects a new suite of metrics aligned with the revised Directorate 

structure/staffing profiles and employee movement which prevents extended longer term trend comparison 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15 

Shaping Aberdeen – Improving our Use of Resources

THEME: RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

Establishment Control: FTE - Education and Children's Services <

Number of FTE positions. Trend calculation method is year on year- Short trend calculates current period v 
previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month rolling period.

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

HR&OD/PSE

Service Manager

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay

Head of Service

Euan Couperwhite

The level of FTE positions within the new Directorate from full implementation (as at 1
been consistent throughout the course of the fiscal year with minor monthly variations of +/

The data contained in this table reflects a new suite of metrics aligned with the revised Directorate 

structure/staffing profiles and employee movement which prevents extended longer term trend comparison 

Improving our Use of Resources 

< 

Short trend calculates current period v 
previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month rolling period. 

Status  

Data Period March 2016 

Value 3,262 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

HR&OD/PSE 

Service Manager(s) 

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay 

Head of Service 

Euan Couperwhite 

(as at 1st April 2015) has 
been consistent throughout the course of the fiscal year with minor monthly variations of +/- 1.5% around a 

The data contained in this table reflects a new suite of metrics aligned with the revised Directorate 

structure/staffing profiles and employee movement which prevents extended longer term trend comparison  

Page 49



 

 
THEME: ENQUIRIES AND COMPLAINTS HANDLING
 

Table 23 - Percentage of FOISA requests replied to within timescale 
Services 

Proportion of FOISA requests replied to within timescale.
trend calculates current period v previous monthly
rolling period. 

Data Narrative and Analysis 

The percentage of FOISA requests addressed within the required timescale, at the m
March, indicated that a variable long term
 
Although averaged ‘response times’ across the 12 month period indic
with 2014-15, improving the consistency
year, has been identified as an area for development and is being led by the Policy, Performance and 
Resources Service. 
 
The timing and nature of particular requests heavily influence the 
as a substantive proportion of information necessary for responses may be either held locally, across over 
60 separate establishments/teams, and in many instances, requires additional levels of data protection 
assessment. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                             
                              Shaping Aberdeen 
 

16 

THEME: ENQUIRIES AND COMPLAINTS HANDLING 

requests replied to within timescale - Education and Children’s 

requests replied to within timescale. Trend calculation method is year on year
rent period v previous monthly period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Corporate FOISA/Business 
Support teams

Service Manager

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay

Head of Service

Euan Couperwhite

of FOISA requests addressed within the required timescale, at the m
variable long term trend is being recorded against this monthly 

Although averaged ‘response times’ across the 12 month period indicate positive movement in comparison 
consistency of monthly outcomes in terms of response timescales

has been identified as an area for development and is being led by the Policy, Performance and 

The timing and nature of particular requests heavily influence the Directorate’s monthly outcomes not least 
nformation necessary for responses may be either held locally, across over 

60 separate establishments/teams, and in many instances, requires additional levels of data protection 

Shaping Aberdeen – Improving Customer Experience

Education and Children’s 

Trend calculation method is year on year- Short 
period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month 

Status  

Data Period March 2016 

Value 82%* 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Corporate FOISA/Business 
Support teams 

Service Manager(s) 

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay 

Head of Service 

Euan Couperwhite 

of FOISA requests addressed within the required timescale, at the most recent snapshot in 
monthly measure. 

ate positive movement in comparison 
of monthly outcomes in terms of response timescales across the 

has been identified as an area for development and is being led by the Policy, Performance and 

Directorate’s monthly outcomes not least 
nformation necessary for responses may be either held locally, across over 

60 separate establishments/teams, and in many instances, requires additional levels of data protection 

Improving Customer Experience 

Page 50



 

Table 24- The total number of complaints received 

Number of complaints received. Trend calculation method is year on year
period v previous quarterly period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month rolling period.

Data Narrative and Analysis 

Over the course of Quarter 4, the outcomes for both the number, and proportion of complaints resolved 
within timescale, showed negative directional trends. However, the percentage of complaints which wer
upheld improved substantially against the prior quarter.
 
Cumulatively, the new Directorate received 126
being resolved within timescale ( above the corporate Council outcome of
upheld against closed, in comparison with the aut
 
These annual outcomes also positively place Education and Children’s Services relative to those recorded 
by each of the other four reporting Directorates encompassed by the Council’s corporate performance 
reporting framework. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17 

The total number of complaints received – Education and Children’s Services

Number of complaints received. Trend calculation method is year on year- Short trend calculate
period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month rolling period.

 

Status

Data 

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Corporate Complaints 
Handling/Business Support 
teams

Service Manager(s)

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay

Head of Service

Euan Couperwhite

course of Quarter 4, the outcomes for both the number, and proportion of complaints resolved 
imescale, showed negative directional trends. However, the percentage of complaints which wer

upheld improved substantially against the prior quarter. 

new Directorate received 126 complaints in the 12 month period, with an average of 72%
( above the corporate Council outcome of 66% ) and 41% of these being 

, in comparison with the authority-wide figure of 43%.  

These annual outcomes also positively place Education and Children’s Services relative to those recorded 
by each of the other four reporting Directorates encompassed by the Council’s corporate performance 

Education and Children’s Services + 

Short trend calculates current 
period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month rolling period. 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 36 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Corporate Complaints 
Handling/Business Support 
teams 

Service Manager(s) 

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay 

Head of Service 

Euan Couperwhite 

course of Quarter 4, the outcomes for both the number, and proportion of complaints resolved 
imescale, showed negative directional trends. However, the percentage of complaints which were 

month period, with an average of 72% 
and 41% of these being 

These annual outcomes also positively place Education and Children’s Services relative to those recorded 
by each of the other four reporting Directorates encompassed by the Council’s corporate performance 

Page 51



 

Table 25- % of complaints resolved within time 

Proportion of complaints which were resolved within the prescribed timescale. Trend calculation method is 
year on year- Short trend calculates current 
average over 12 month rolling period.

 

Table 26- % of complaints upheld against closed (Stage 1 & 2 combined) 
Children’s Services + 

Proportion of complaints upheld against total closed. Trend 
calculates current period v previous quarterly
period. 

 
+ The data contained in these tables reflect a new suite of metrics aligned with the revised Directorate 

structure which prevents prior year data reporting and 

complaints processes or where there are relevant review or appeal procedures

placing requests, exam results, exclusions and separate legal or tribunal hearings.

 

18 

% of complaints resolved within time – Education and Children’s Services

Proportion of complaints which were resolved within the prescribed timescale. Trend calculation method is 
s current period v previous quarterly period; Long trend calculates 

average over 12 month rolling period. 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

Corporate Complaints
Handling/Business Support 

Service 

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay

Head of Service

Euan Couperwhite

% of complaints upheld against closed (Stage 1 & 2 combined) – Education and 

Proportion of complaints upheld against total closed. Trend calculation method is year on year
s current period v previous quarterly period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month rolling 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data 

Corporate Complaints
Handling/Business Support

Service Manager(s)

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay

Head of Service

Euan Couperwhite

+ The data contained in these tables reflect a new suite of metrics aligned with the revised Directorate 

ents prior year data reporting and exclude submissions against statutory social care 

complaints processes or where there are relevant review or appeal procedures which would include school 

placing requests, exam results, exclusions and separate legal or tribunal hearings.

Education and Children’s Services + 

Proportion of complaints which were resolved within the prescribed timescale. Trend calculation method is 
period; Long trend calculates 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 52%* 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Corporate Complaints 
Handling/Business Support  

Service Manager(s) 

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay 

Head of Service 

Euan Couperwhite 

Education and 

calculation method is year on year- Short trend 
period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month rolling 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 40%* 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Corporate Complaints 
Handling/Business Support 

Service Manager(s) 

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay 

Head of Service 

Euan Couperwhite 

+ The data contained in these tables reflect a new suite of metrics aligned with the revised Directorate 

exclude submissions against statutory social care 

which would include school 

placing requests, exam results, exclusions and separate legal or tribunal hearings. 

Page 52



 

                                
                                   Shaping Aberdeen 
 

 
THEME: HEALTH AND SAFETY 
 

Table 27 - Employee Reportable Accidents/Incidents 

Number of employee reportable accidents/incidents. 
calculates current period v previous quarterly period; Long tre
period. 

Data Narrative and Analysis 

There were a total of 2 reportable accidents/incidents across the Directorate during the course of Quarter 
4, providing for a total of 8 accidents/incidents in total across the year in comparison with two in 2014
and one in the 2013-14 baseline year.
 
In the case of each reportable event, a member of senior management undertakes a review of the 
circumstances, and, in concert with corporate H&S advisors, 
Directorate-wide action requires to be taken to mitigate against
investigation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19 

Shaping Aberdeen – Improving Staff Experience 

 

Accidents/Incidents – Education and Children’s Services

reportable accidents/incidents. Trend calculation method is year on year
calculates current period v previous quarterly period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month rolling 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

 Business Support 

Service Manager

Lesley Kirk/Kate McKay

Head of Service

Euan Couperwhite

a total of 2 reportable accidents/incidents across the Directorate during the course of Quarter 
4, providing for a total of 8 accidents/incidents in total across the year in comparison with two in 2014

14 baseline year. 

of each reportable event, a member of senior management undertakes a review of the 
and, in concert with corporate H&S advisors, evaluates the extent to which ‘localised’ or 

wide action requires to be taken to mitigate against identified future risks arising from the event 

 

Education and Children’s Services 

Trend calculation method is year on year- Short trend 
nd calculates average over 12 month rolling 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 2 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Business Support  

Service Manager(s) 

Lesley Kirk/Kate McKay 

Head of Service 

Euan Couperwhite 

a total of 2 reportable accidents/incidents across the Directorate during the course of Quarter 
4, providing for a total of 8 accidents/incidents in total across the year in comparison with two in 2014-15 

of each reportable event, a member of senior management undertakes a review of the 
evaluates the extent to which ‘localised’ or 

entified future risks arising from the event 

Page 53



 

Table 28- Employee Non Reportable

Number of non-reportable accidents/incidents 
calculates current period v previous quarterly period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month rolling 
period. 

Data Narrative and Analysis 

94 non-reportable accidents/incidents were noted from January to March 2016
being related to ‘minor’ injury or events linked
awareness among employees of reporting requirements linked to preventative actions and (b) the 
enhancement of the corporate guidance and tools available to Directorate employees

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20 

Employee Non Reportable Accidents/Incidents – Education and Children’s Services

reportable accidents/incidents Trend calculation method is year on year
calculates current period v previous quarterly period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month rolling 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

 Business Support 

Service 

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay

Head of Service

Euan Couperwhite

reportable accidents/incidents were noted from January to March 2016, with the majority of these 
‘minor’ injury or events linked to weather conditions but also (a) reflecting an increased 

awareness among employees of reporting requirements linked to preventative actions and (b) the 
enhancement of the corporate guidance and tools available to Directorate employees

Education and Children’s Services 

Trend calculation method is year on year- Short trend 
calculates current period v previous quarterly period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month rolling 

Status  

Data Period Q4 2015/16 

Value 94 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

Business Support  

Service Manager(s) 

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay 

Head of Service 

Euan Couperwhite 

with the majority of these 
to weather conditions but also (a) reflecting an increased 

awareness among employees of reporting requirements linked to preventative actions and (b) the 
enhancement of the corporate guidance and tools available to Directorate employees. 

Page 54



 

THEME: ABSENCE  
 

Table 29 - Average number of days lost through sickness absence 

 Employee absence. Average number of days lost per rolling year. Trend calculation method is year on 
year- Short trend calculates current period v previous 
12 month rolling period. 

Data Narrative and Analysis 

This measure, up to March 2016, reflects a  rolling year decrease in absence levels within the Directorate 
across the fiscal period from an averaged 8.1 da
the 12 month average 
 
Given that absence levels, nationally and historically, tend to increase during Quarter’s 3 and 4, this is a 
very positive outcome and the monthly figure of 7.9
figure for the same period (10.4 days), the corporate target of 
Directorates. 

 
< The data contained in this table reflects a new suite of metrics aligned with the revised Directorate 

structure/staffing profiles and employee movement which prevents extended longer term trend compar

N.B. * All figures are rounded up/down to the nearest whole number

 

PI Status 

 
Alert 

 
Warning 

 
OK 

 
Unknown 

 
Data Only 

 

 
 

21 

Average number of days lost through sickness absence - E&CS <

Employee absence. Average number of days lost per rolling year. Trend calculation method is year on 
Short trend calculates current period v previous quarterly period; Long trend calculates average over 

 

Status

Data Period

Value

Target

Long Trend

Short Trend

Data Source

 PSE/HR&OD

Service Manager

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay

Head of 

Euan Couperwhite

2016, reflects a  rolling year decrease in absence levels within the Directorate 
across the fiscal period from an averaged 8.1 days to 7.8 days with the March outcome being 

Given that absence levels, nationally and historically, tend to increase during Quarter’s 3 and 4, this is a 
me and the monthly figure of 7.9 days continues to be below that of the Council average 

days), the corporate target of 10 days, and that of other

< The data contained in this table reflects a new suite of metrics aligned with the revised Directorate 

employee movement which prevents extended longer term trend compar

N.B. * All figures are rounded up/down to the nearest whole number 

Long Term Trends 

 
Improving/Increasing 

 
No Change 

 
Getting Worse/Decreasing 

 

 
Improving/Increasing

 
No Change

 
Getting Worse/Decreasing

< 

Employee absence. Average number of days lost per rolling year. Trend calculation method is year on 
quarterly period; Long trend calculates average over 

Status  

Data Period March 2016 

Value 7.9 

Target 10 

Long Trend  

Short Trend  

Data Source 

PSE/HR&OD 

Service Manager(s) 

Lesley Kirk/Kate MacKay 

Head of Service 

Euan Couperwhite 

2016, reflects a  rolling year decrease in absence levels within the Directorate 
ys to 7.8 days with the March outcome being just above 

Given that absence levels, nationally and historically, tend to increase during Quarter’s 3 and 4, this is a 
days continues to be below that of the Council average 

10 days, and that of other ‘customer-facing’ 

< The data contained in this table reflects a new suite of metrics aligned with the revised Directorate 

employee movement which prevents extended longer term trend comparison  

Short Term Trends 

Improving/Increasing 

No Change 

Getting Worse/Decreasing 
 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Education and Children’s Services 
 
DATE  2nd June, 2016 
 
DIRECTOR  Angela Scott 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Performance Management Framework 
 
REPORT NUMBER OCE/16/021 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED     Yes 
 

 
 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To advise the Committee of the revision of the Council’s corporate 
Performance Management Framework and, in particular, changes to the 
reporting of performance information to elected members. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
The Committee are asked to: 
 
(a) Note the development of a new corporate performance management 

framework and the resulting revised arrangements for reporting 

performance information to Committees. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no financial implications arising from the report. 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are significant implications for the effective operation of the Council; its 
ability to meet statutory requirements; as well as its reputation. 
 
 

  

Page 57



5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1 As part of its response to the findings of the 2015 Best Value Audit, the 

Council committed to undertaking a comprehensive review and redesign of its 
performance management framework.   

 
5.2 The BV Audit included recommendations that the Council:- 

 
• Ensure the Council’s vision is translated into clear objectives and targets 

with links to service plans; 
 
• Ensure elected members are receiving consistent information on service 

performance to enable them to discharge their scrutiny role effectively; 
 
• Implement plans to refocus performance measurement on outcomes; 
 
• Ensure clear links between the performance information submitted to 

members for scrutiny and the Council’s strategic plans. 
 
5.3 The Committee will be aware that significant progress has already been made 

connecting vision and priorities to plans, through the refresh of the Council’s 
Strategic Plan, as well as the comprehensive development of Directorate and 
Service Plans.  This work lays the foundation for strong performance 
management arrangements. 

 
5.4 A further key step has been taken through the development of a new 

corporate “Performance Management Framework” (PMF), which has been 
agreed by the Corporate Management Team and is now being implemented 
across all services. There are a number of direct implications, flowing from the 
PMF, for Services reporting performance to committee. 

 
A. Standard Reporting Template 

 
 The PMF includes amended arrangements for reporting performance to 

Committees ensuring, as recommended by Audit Scotland, that members 
receive consistent information to enable them to discharge their scrutiny role 
effectively. 

 
 New reporting templates have been designed (attached as Appendix A) 

incorporating the following key aspects of performance management: 
 

i. All measures relate to policy priorities (“Aberdeen: the Smarter city”) or 

organisational priorities (“Shaping Aberdeen”); 

ii. A summary dashboard of measures is supplemented by detailed 

analysis of “exceptional” performance; 

iii. Performance is contextualised with:- 

a. Trend data; 

b. Benchmarking data; 

c. Agreed improvement targets; 

Page 58



d. Analysis / intelligence in support of improvement planning; 

e. A clear statement of why the measure is important for the delivery 

of council priorities. 

 
B. Focus on Reporting Outcomes 

 
As part of the 2016 strategic, directorate and service planning programme, 

Services have been reviewing their performance measures.  This work is 

continuing and will see an increased focus on outcomes in performance 

reports to committee.  As this work is completed, Committees will be asked to 

agree a revised set of performance measures which focus more on strategic 

priorities and outcomes than on the operational activity. 

 
 

 C. Additional Performance Reporting 

 
Whilst the standard template will be submitted regularly to all Committees, 
Services will also provide a timetable of additional performance reporting to 
Committees.  This will include, for example, reporting of annual releases of 
significant data sets; and more in depth reporting of particular performance 
issues. 

  

 

6. IMPACT 
 
Improving Customer Experience – All services’ performance reporting 
will include measures of improvement in customers’ experiences. 
 
Improving Staff Experience – All services’ performance reporting will include 
measures of improvement in staff experience.  It is also accepted that 
improving awareness of, and positive engagement in, performance 
management supports staff motivation and morale.  

 
Improving our use of Resources – All services’ performance reporting will 
include measures of improvement in use of resources. 
 
Corporate – Effective management of performance, through the delivery of 
strategic priorities is central to the success of any organisation.  The scrutiny 
role of elected members is a key element of governance and implementation 
of Audit Scotland’s recommendations, through the Performance Management 
Framework, supports this. 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 

 
The implementation of the Performance Management Framework is a key 
mitigation of risks of underperformance and ineffective use of resources.  
 
 

Page 59



8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Best Value Audit report by Audit Scotland 2015 
Performance Management Framework 
Aberdeen City Council Strategic Business Plan Refresh 
Directorate Plans 
Service Plans 
 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Martin Murchie, Policy, Performance & Parliamentary Liaison Manager, 
mmurchie@aberdeencity.gov.uk telephone number 01224 522008 

 
 

  

Page 60



STANDARD KPI REPORTING TEMPLATE

Improving Customer Experience 
 

KPI Name 
Target 
2015/16

  

  

  

 

Improving Staff Experience 
 

KPI Name 
Target 

2015/16

  

  

  

 

Improving Our Use of Resources 
 

KPI Name 
Target 

2015/16

  

  

  

  

STANDARD KPI REPORTING TEMPLATE 

Target 
2015/16 

Out-turn 
2015/16 

Target 
2016/17 

Dec 2015 Jan 2016 

Value Status Value Status 

   
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

Target 
2015/16 

Out-turn 
2015/16 

Target 
2016/17 

Dec 2015 Jan 2016 

Value Status Value Status 

   
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

Target 
2015/16 

Out-turn 
2015/16 

Target 
2016/17 

Dec 2015 Jan 2016 

Value Status Value Status 

   
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 

Feb 2016 Q3 2015/16 

Value Status Value Status 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Feb 2016 Q3 2015/16 

Value Status Value Status 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Feb 2016 Q3 2015/16 

Value Status Value Status 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

1



Smarter Governance 
 

KPI Name 
Target 

2015/16

  

 

Smarter Living 
 

KPI Name 
Target 

2015/16

  

 

Smarter Environment 

KPI Name 
Target 

2015/16

  

 

Smarter Economy 
 

KPI Name 
Target 

2015/16

  

 

Smarter People 
 

KPI Name 
Target 

2015/16

  

 

Smarter Mobility 
 

KPI Name 
Target 

2015/16

  

 

  

Target 
2015/16 

Out-turn 
2015/16 

Target 
2016/17 

Dec 2015 Jan 2016 

Value Status Value Status 

   
 

 
 

Target 
2015/16 

Out-turn 
2015/16 

Target 
2016/17 

Dec 2015 Jan 2016 

Value Status Value Status 

   
 

 
 

Target 
2015/16 

Out-turn 
2015/16 

Target 
2016/17 

Dec 2015 Jan 2016 

Value Status Value Status 

   
 

 
 

Target 
2015/16 

Out-turn 
2015/16 

Target 
2016/17 

Dec 2015 Jan 2016 

Value Status Value Status 

   
 

 
 

Target 
2015/16 

Out-turn 
2015/16 

Target 
2016/17 

Dec 2015 Jan 2016 

Value Status Value Status 

   
 

 
 

Target 
2015/16 

Out-turn 
2015/16 

Target 
2016/17 

Dec 2015 Jan 2016 

Value Status Value Status 

   
 

 
 

Feb 2016 Q3 2015/16 

Value Status Value Status 

 
 

 

Feb 2016 Q3 2015/16 

Value Status Value Status 

 
 

 

Feb 2016 Q3 2015/16 

Value Status Value Status 

 
 

 

Feb 2016 Q3 2015/16 

Value Status Value Status 

 
 

 

Feb 2016 Q3 2015/16 

Value Status Value Status 

 
 

 

Feb 2016 Q3 2015/16 

Value Status Value Status 

 
 

 

P
a

g
e
 6

2



7 

 Drill Down Narrative Sheets - Template 

  Improving Staff Experience 

  2.1 Staff sickness absence - days per annum per employee (rolling 12 months)  

  

 

 

  Performance against Target (10 days)  Compared with previous  

        

  Why is this important? 

  

 
 
 
  

        

  Benchmark Information: 

  

 
 
 
 
  

        

  Target: 

   

        

  Intelligence: 

  
 

 

        

  Responsible officer: Last Updated: 

    
 

  

 

 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE   Education and Children’s Services 
 
DATE     2nd June 2016 
 
DIRECTOR Gayle Gorman 
 
TITLE OF REPORT Education and Children’s Services Directorate 

Business and Service Plans 2016-17 
 
REPORT NUMBER   ECS/16/013 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED:  Yes 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  

 
The report provides Committee with the Education and Children’s Services Directorate 
Interim Service Business Plans for 2016-17.  
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

 
That Committee notes the content of the Education and Children’s Services Directorate 
Interim Service Business Plans, 2016-17. 
 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
The financial implications of specific programmes of work and projects will be fully 
considered through normal governance.  
 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

 
Adoption of the Directorate’s Service Business Plans will have significant positive 
implications for the delivery of the Council’s and Directorate’s vision, long term resource 
planning and decision making.  
 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES  

 
5.1 The Council previously considered a report by the Chief Executive (OCE/15/028) on 

the Account’s Commission’s report of July 2015 following the Best Value audit 
undertaken by Audit Scotland on the Council during the first half of 2015.  
 
The Accounts Commission included within its findings that the Council required to: 

 

Agenda Item 5.3

Page 65



 

•   More clearly show how its vision was translated into objectives and targets,  
linked to service plans;  

 

•   Ensure clear links between performance management information at Directorate 
and Service Plan levels and the Council’s strategic plans.  

 
5.2  The Council at its Budget Meeting on the 25th of February, 2016 noted the content of 

the refreshed Strategic Business Plan 2016-2017 which, along with each of the 
Directorate Business Plans, reflected the above principles. 

 
In accordance with the objectives of the Strategic Business Plan, the attached Service 
Business Plans, encompassing the work of twenty three discrete service units have been 
produced.  

 

The individual Service Plans can be accessed at the following link: 
         
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13315&path=
13004 
 
Given the level of inter-dependency between each of the four core Services and with 
academic year outcomes, the Service Business Plans, will be subject to a performance 
measures refresh in August 2016. 
 
This refresh will enable additional reflection on the 2015-16 academic outcomes and 
2016-17 targets arising from both; 

 

•   the forthcoming cycle of both local and national results covering pupil achievement 
(e.g. PIPS and SQA) 

 

•   publication of national education benchmarking outcomes (e.g. Education   
Outcomes for Looked After Children/ Follow Up Participation) 

 
It will also; 
 

•   reflect any recommendations in respect of performance management and reporting 
arising from the Joint Inspection of Children’s Services follow up evaluation in June. 

 

•   guide the process of development of the Directorate’s Schools Improvement 
Planning for 2016-17 and; 

 

•   capture enhanced outputs from on-going performance management reviews linked 
to the implementation of core Directorate delivery models such as Reclaiming Social 
Work. 

 
5.3 Members are asked to note that in terms of the performance reporting periods 

relating to the Education and Children’s Services Directorate, a significant 
proportion of the Directorate’s Education and Inclusion related measures, and a 
range of core performance information connected to both Children’s Social Care 
and the Policy, Performance and Resources Service, are based on academic, 
rather than fiscal, year outcomes. 

 

Page 66



 

In these terms, the Service Business Plans, where appropriate, contain a 
combination of performance data relating to both the 2015-16 financial year and 
2014-15 academic years. 

 
 
6. IMPACT  

 
Improving Customer Experience 
 
The Service Business Plans set out an improvement programme to enhance customer 
experience.  
 
This encompasses a commitment to proactively seek and act upon the views of children and 
young people, including those who are vulnerable and at risk of being marginalised, as 
expressed within the Education (Additional Support for Learning) (Scotland) Act 2004 as 
amended and the, although not yet in force, Education (Scotland) Act 2016. 

 
The Service Plans also reflect the linked intent to better measure the enhanced levels of 
engagement with children, young people, parents/guardians and partners along with 
‘satisfaction’ with schools and children’s social care provision through both ‘statutory’ and 
bespoke frameworks such as: 
 

• Inspection outcomes (i.e. Education Scotland, Care Inspectorate) 
 

• Use of Self Evaluation models (e.g. How Good is Our School/Library) 
 

• Additional channels for the provision of feedback, both formal and informal (e.g. 
through social media, aspiration surveying and Pupil and Parent Council 
engagement) 

 
In terms of the wider community, the Service Business Plans also outline objectives 
which are designed to: 
 

• Improve engagement with, and customer satisfaction among, users of our cultural 
provision 

 

• Fully align the Directorate’s on-line information and communications platforms to 
offer better digital access to services. 

 
Improving Staff Experience 
 
The Service Business Plans set out an improvement programme to enhance staff experience 
leading to: 
 

• Increased staff satisfaction, as measured through the corporate Employee Opinion 
Survey. 

 

• Enhanced professional and personal development opportunities 
 

• Reduced sickness absence levels 
 

• Ability to recruit, develop and retain a fully qualified/experienced staff base 

 

Page 67



 

Improving our use of Resources  
 
The Service Business Plans set out an improvement programme for making better use of our 
resources which will be demonstrated by: 
 

• Improved planning for, and delivery of, the Directorate’s asset management functions 
to match changing demands 

 

• Expanded use, and availability of, technology for staff, pupils and supported children 
in the delivery of both front-line and business support provision 
 

• The increased application of Smarter Working arrangements in areas where this is 
appropriate 
 

• Developing enhanced performance management and reporting tools to support 
senior management decision-making processes around resource allocation and use. 

 

Corporate  
 
Smarter Living Priorities; 
 
“We will enhance the physical and emotional wellbeing of all our citizens by offering support 
and activities which promote independence, resilience, confidence and self-esteem” 

 
“We will improve access to and increase participation in arts and culture by providing 
opportunities for citizens and visitors to experience a broad range of high quality arts and 
cultural activities.” 
 

Smarter Living – Quality of Life: 

•    Supporting priority families. 

 

•    Promoting and secure and lasting attachments for children.  

 

•    Implementing the Getting It Right for Every Child (GIRFEC) model to ensure that every 

child and young person in Aberdeen enjoys being young and at the same time feels 

safe, healthy, active, nurtured, achieving, responsible, respected and included. 

 
Smarter People Priorities; 

 
“We will provide a high quality education service within our schools and communities which 
will improve attainment and life chances of our children and young people to achieve their full 
potential in education, employment or training,” 
 
Implementation of the Reclaiming Social Work model, and its intended outcomes within 

Children’s Social Work, link to and fulfill the ambitions of the ‘Aberdeen: the Smarter City’ 

plan. 

Smarter People – Social and Human Capital: 

• Attracting and retaining a high quality workforce to support learning and teaching 

and the implementation of Reclaiming Social Work. 

 

Page 68



 

• Ensuring partnership approaches are supporting children and young people. 

  

• Enabling all young people in Aberdeen to achieve sustainable and positive 

destinations. 

Smarter Governance – Participation: 

• Implementing the Reclaiming Social Work model to work in partnership with families 

within their local community to improve their overall wellbeing and outcomes. 

 

• Delivering a Public Social Partnership (PSP) approach with third sector partners to 

co-design commissioned services to support Reclaiming Social Work. 

The Service Business Plans provide an ‘operational’ link which ensures that Service, 
Team and personal objectives are aligned to both the Directorate Business Plan and 
Council’s Strategic Business Plan priorities and reflect performance management 
outcomes consistent with those objectives.  
 
Public 
 
The Service Business Plans underpin both the Council’s Strategic and Education and 
Children’s Services Directorate Business Plans and are therefore of public interest.  
 
 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK  
 
All significant risks that are identified within the Directorate Business and individual 
Service Business Plans will be managed appropriately. 

 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
• Aberdeen City Council Strategic Business Plan Refresh 

 

• Education and Children’s Services  Directorate Business Plan 
 
 

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Gayle Gorman 
Director, Education and Children’s Services 

� 01224 523458 
� ggorman@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE   Education and Children’s Services    
 
DATE     2nd June 2016  
 
DIRECTOR    Gayle Gorman   
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Statutory Consultation – Consultation Reports on the 

proposals to make changes to the school zone 
boundary for Airyhall School and Hazlehead School, 
and to remove an area of dual zoning between 
Sunnybank School and Hanover Street School 

 
REPORT NUMBER: ECS/16/028 
 
CHECKLIST: Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To report to Committee on the outcome of recent statutory consultations on the 
proposals to make changes to the school zone arrangements for Airyhall School and 
Hazlehead School, and also for Sunnybank School and Hanover Street School. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 

  
(i) It is recommended that the Committee agrees to implement the 

following proposals: 
 

For the Airyhall School and Hazlehead School rezoning proposal: 
 

• To rezone the area of housing known as the Macaulay Estate, from 
Hazlehead School to Airyhall School, and to adjust the Airyhall and 
Hazlehead school zone boundaries to accommodate the Pinewood 
/ Hazledene housing development, with effect from 1st August 
2016. 

 

For the Sunnybank School and Hanover Street School rezoning 
proposal:  

 

• To remove an area of dual-school zoning for Sunnybank School 
and Hanover Street School, and to include this area within the zone 
for Sunnybank School only, with effect from 1st August 2016 

 
 

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 71



 

 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no cost implications for the changes to these school zones.  
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

Legal – The public consultations have complied with the requirements of the 
Schools (Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010 and the Children and Young 
People (Scotland) Act 2014. As these proposals do not refer to the proposed 
closure of any school in either consultation exercise, any decision to 
implement them by this Committee cannot be called in by Scottish Ministers.  

Resources – Officer time and expenditure associated with these consultation 
exercises has been met from existing service budgets.  
 
Personnel – Implementation of the recommendations will not result in any 
significant personnel implications. 

 
Health and safety – There are no implications or risks related to this report.  
 

 Policy – there are no policy implications or risks related to this report.   
 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1  School Reorganisation Proposals 
 

These proposals contribute to a widespread programme to manage the school 
estate across the city arising from both the review of secondary schools and 
primary schools which were previously reported to Committee on 28 October 
2010 and 7 February 2013.  
  
The statutory consultations were carried out as result of an instruction from 
Education, Culture and Sport on 7 February, 2013. 

 
5.2  Educational Implications 

 
The Education Authority has a programme to ensure the provision of an 
affordable and suitable education service for all its pupils. Implementation of 
these proposals will assist in the delivery of these objectives, thereby meeting 
the Council’s statutory obligations as set out in the Education (Scotland) Act 
1980 (as amended). 
 

5.3  Statutory Consultation Feedback 
 
The Consultation Report for the proposed changes to the school zones for 
Airyhall School and Hazlehead School can be found at Appendix 1 of this 
report, and Appendix 2 contains the Consultation Report for the proposed 

Page 72



 

 

changes to the school zones for Sunnybank School and Hanover Street 
School. 
 
The following sections provide a synopsis of the written submissions, 
comment from the public consultation meetings and the service’s response to 
these submissions and the reports from Education Scotland. 

 
5.3.1 Airyhall School and Hazlehead School Rezoning Proposals 

 
(a) Methodology 

 
All requirements of the Schools (Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010 and 
the Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014 were met in full.  
 

(b) Feedback from Stakeholders and Education Scotland 
 

Twenty-six submissions were received from stakeholders during the 
period of this consultation. Thirteen people attended the public meeting 
to discuss the proposals. 
 
Generally there was support from most stakeholders on the proposal to 
rezone the area known as the Macaulay Estate, from Hazlehead School 
to Airyhall School. Respondents to the consultation welcomed the fact 
that this would allow children living in the Macaulay estate to walk or 
cycle safely to school.  
 
There was however opposition from seventeen respondents, to the 
proposals to adjust the boundary line between the Airyhall School zone 
and the Hazlehead School zone, so that the whole of the 
Pinewood/Hazeldene estate falls within the Hazlehead School zone 
only. 
 
The respondents highlighted the fact that there is no vehicular access 
from the Pinewood section of the estate in the south, through to the 
northern side of the estate, which would mean that when driving their 
children to Hazlehead School, parents would be required to drive past 
Airyhall School, as the only road exit from this section of the estate is to 
the south.  
 
Several of the same respondents also commented on the fact that the 
pedestrian route through the northern section of the estate, which pupils 
could use to walk to Hazlehead School, is through a poorly lit wooded 
area, and would not represent a safe walking route after dark.  
 
Many of the respondents suggested an alternative proposal, to zone the 
northern section of the estate (Hazeldene) to Hazlehead School, and 
the southern section of the estate (Pinewood) to Airyhall School. 
 
In its report on the proposal, Education Scotland noted that it has clear 
benefits for children attending Airyhall School and Hazlehead School, 

Page 73



 

 

and that as a result of the proposal, both schools are likely to have 
sustainable and viable school rolls which will allow for the delivery of a 
broad curriculum.  
 
The report also stated that the proposal has the potential to avoid 
difficulties of overcrowding and should provide children at both schools 
with a variety of opportunities to learn and play with their peers. 
 
The report highlighted the concerns expressed by some stakeholders 
regarding the distance which some parents and children living in the 
Pinewood and Hazeldene estate would be required to walk to 
Hazlehead School, and stated that the Council should provide details 
about safe walking routes to school for those living in the new 
development. 
 
The Council’s responses to the issues raised by respondents to the 
consultation are included in the Consultation Report at Appendix 1.  

 
(c) Overall View of the Proposal 
 

Officers carefully considered the alternative proposal put forward by 
respondents to the consultation, to zone the northern section of the 
Pinewood and Hazeldene estate to Hazlehead School, and to zone the 
southern section of the estate to Airyhall School.  
 
Whilst in practical terms this may appear to be a workable solution, in 
that parents and children living in the respective areas of the estate 
would be able to travel directly to their zoned school by car as well as 
on foot, there is not sufficient capacity at Airyhall School to 
accommodate the numbers of pupils expected to be living in the 
southern section of the Pinewood and Hazeldene estate.  
 
The pupil roll forecasts for Airyhall School show that, if the Macaulay 
estate is added to the Airyhall School zone, and the southern section of 
the Pinewood / Hazeldene estate also remains within the zone, the 
school would exceed its maximum pupil capacity by up to 22 pupil 
places, from 2017 onwards. 
 
By proposing to zone the whole of the Pinewood and Hazeldene estate 
to Hazlehead School, and as noted in the Education Scotland report on 
these proposals, it would be possible to ensure that Airyhall School 
would remain within capacity and avoid difficulties with overcrowding. 
 
Officers therefore took the view that it would not be appropriate to 
amend the original proposals put forward, to rezone the whole of the 
Pinewood/Hazeldene estate to Hazlehead School, and consequently it 
is recommended that Councillors approve the original proposals, which 
are set out in the consultation document. 
 
 

Page 74



 

 

5.3.2 Sunnybank School and Hanover Street School Rezoning Proposals 
 
(a) Methodology 

 
The consultation met of all the requirements of the Schools 
(Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010 and the Children and Young People 
(Scotland) Act 2014.  

 
(b) Feedback from Stakeholders and Education Scotland 

 
There was a low response to this consultation. No written responses 
were received during the consultation period, and only one person  
attended the public consultation meeting. 
 
The respondent who attended the meeting had some questions about 
how the additional space, which is expected to be required at 
Sunnybank School if the proposals are accepted, would be created.  
 
The respondent stated a preference to see the additional services 
which currently occupy parts of the building remain as it was felt that 
these help provide an enriching experience for the children at the 
school. 
 
In its report, Education Scotland noted that the proposal put forward is 
of clear educational benefit to children attending both schools, and that 
if implemented, it would help to sustain viable pupil rolls in both schools, 
and help to ensure best value in the management of the Council’s 
school estate. It was also noted that a high proportion of children living 
in the currently dual zoned area already attend Sunnybank School. 
 
The Education Scotland report also stated that stakeholders were 
positive and saw the benefits of the proposal, and that the provision 
within the proposal for younger siblings of existing Hanover Street 
School pupils to also attend that school was welcomed. 
 
The Council’s responses to the issues raised by respondents to the 
consultation are included in the Consultation Report at Appendix 2.  
 

(c) Overall View of the Proposal 
 

Having considered the responses received during the consultation 
period, officers are satisfied that the original proposals put forwards in 
respect of the removal of the dual zone for Sunnybank School and 
Hanover Street School do not require to be reviewed, and consequently 
it is recommended that Councillors approve the original proposals, 
which are set out in the consultation document. 

 
 
 
 

Page 75



 

 

6. IMPACT 

 

6.1 Corporate 

 

Aberdeen the Smarter City 
 

(i) We will enhance the physical and emotional wellbeing of all our citizens by 
offering support and activities which promote independence, resilience, 
confidence and self-esteem. 
 

(ii) Working with our third, public and private sector partners, we will provide 
opportunities for lifelong learning which will develop knowledge, skills and 
attributes of our citizens to enable them to meet the changing demands of the 

21st Century. 
 
(iii) Again, working with partners, we will create a City of Learning which will 

empower individuals to fulfil their potential and contribute to the economic, 
social and cultural wellbeing of our communities. 

 
(iv) We will aim to have a workforce across the city which has the skills and 

knowledge to sustain, grow and diversify the city economy. 
 

6.2 Equality and Human Rights implications 
 
 A full Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment has been submitted for 

this report. 
 

6.3  Management of the School Estate 
 

The implementation of the rezoning proposals for the schools concerned will 
help to ensure sustainable and manageable pupil rolls in these areas of the 
city.  

 
 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

There is not expected to be significant operational risk arising from the 
implementation of the proposals. Having followed all applicable legislation, the 
Council will be perceived as having taken account of the result of the 
consultation process. 
 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Appendix 1 Consultation Report on the proposals to rezone the area of 

housing known as the Macaulay Estate, from Hazlehead School 
to Airyhall School, and to adjust the Airyhall and Hazlehead 
school zone boundaries to accommodate the Pinewood / 

Page 76



 

 

Hazledene housing development, with effect from 1st August 
2016. 

 
Appendix 2 Consultation Report on the proposal to remove an area of dual-

school zoning for Sunnybank School and Hanover Street School, 
and to include this area within the zone for Sunnybank School 
only, with effect from 1st August 2016 

 
 

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
 
Andrew Jones 
Service Manager, Assets & Finance 
Tel: (01224) 523042 

 
  

Page 77



 

 

Appendix 1 
 

 
 

 
 

CONSULTATION REPORT 
Airyhall School and Hazlehead School Rezoning 

 
This Consultation Report has been compiled in response to the recent public 
consultation on the proposal to make changes to the school zones for Airyhall 
School and Hazlehead School in Aberdeen. The document summarises the 
responses received on the proposals set out below and Aberdeen City Council’s 
response to the verbal and written comments submitted by interested parties, in 
compliance with the Schools (Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010 and the Children 
and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014.   

 
 
Proposal:  
 

To rezone the area of housing known as the Macaulay Estate, from Hazlehead 
School to Airyhall School, and to adjust the Airyhall and Hazlehead school zone 

boundaries to accommodate the Pinewood / Hazledene housing development, with 
effect from 1st August 2016. 

 
 
 
 

  

Page 78



 

 

1. METHODOLOGY 
 

This consultation was conducted in accordance with the Schools (Consultation) 
(Scotland) Act 2010 and the Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014. All 
requirements of the legislation have been met. 
 
2. INVOLVEMENT OF STAKEHOLDERS 
 
2.1 Public Event 
 
A public consultation event was held on 2nd February 2016 to discuss the proposals: 

 

Date Time Venue Recorded Attendees 

2nd February 2016   7- 8 pm Airyhall School  

• 7 parents of pupils at 
Airyhall School 

• 3 parents of pre-school 
aged children 

• 3 Aberdeen City 
Councillors 

• 3 Aberdeen City Council 
Officers 

 
 
2.2 Comments Received 
 
The following written submissions were received: 

 

Format Number of submissions 

E-mail 15 

Letters 0 

Comment Forms 11 

 
The submissions, anonymised as necessary, are available on the Council’s website: 
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/airyhallhazlehead2016 
 
 
2.3 Issues Raised 
 
The main issues raised in the responses to the consultation are summarised as 
follows: 

 

• Seven respondents to the consultation stated that overall they were in support of 
the proposals put forwards. Their comments focused primarily on the proposal to 
rezone the Macaulay estate from the Hazlehead School zone to the Airyhall 
School zone; they welcomed the fact that this would allow children living in the 
Macaulay estate to walk or cycle safely to school. 

 

Page 79



 

 

• Seventeen respondents to the consultation, however, stated that they were not in 
support of the proposals put forwards. Their comments focused primarily on the 
proposal to zone the whole of the Pinewood and Hazeldene estate to the 
Hazlehead School zone. The respondents highlighted the fact that there is no 
vehicular access from the Pinewood section of the estate in the south, through to 
the northern side of the estate, which would mean that when driving their children 
to Hazlehead School, parents would be required to drive past Airyhall School, as 
the only road exit from this section of the estate is to the south. 

 

• Several of these respondents also commented on the fact that the pedestrian 
route through the northern section of the estate, which pupils could use to walk to 
Hazlehead School, is through a poorly lit wooded area, and would not represent a 
safe walking route after dark. 

 

• A small number of respondents highlighted concerns about the increasing pupil 
roll at Airyhall School, and suggested that if the proposals put forward in this 
consultation are not accepted, the school is likely to reach its pupil capacity 
relatively quickly. 

 

• Some of the feedback received included queries regarding the timing of this 
consultation, and questioned why the consultation had been launched prior to the 
conclusion of a previous consultation on the creation of a new school zone for the 
Countesswells development, which had the potential to impact on Airyhall 
School’s pupil capacity. 

 
Comments from Airyhall School Parent Council 
 
The response received from Airyhall Parent Council was broadly in line with the 
comments from other respondents summarised above. The Parent Council 
welcomed the proposal to rezone the Macaulay Estate to Airyhall School, as this 
would remove the need for residents of this estate to make out of zone placing 
requests to Airyhall School.  
 
However, the response also pointed out that zoning the whole of the Pinewood and 
Hazeldene estate to Hazlehead School would be likely to create similar issues to 
those experienced by the Macaulay residents, in that parents would need to travel 
past Airyhall School when taking their children to Hazlehead School by car. It was 
noted that six families had contacted the Parent Council expressing an objection to 
the zoning of the Pinewood / Hazeldene estate to Hazlehead School. 
 
The Parent Council felt that it was difficult to state whether or not they were in 
support of the proposals, given that the outcome of the Countesswells consultation, 
and the potential impact of this on Airyhall School’s capacity, was not yet known. 
 
Alternative Proposal 
 
Many of the respondents to the consultation who expressed their opposition to the 
zoning of the Pinewood and Hazeldene estate suggested an alternative proposal, to 
zone the northern section of the estate (Hazeldene) to Hazlehead School, and the 
southern section of the estate (Pinewood) to Airyhall School.  

Page 80



 

 

 
It was suggested that this would be a more appropriate solution as there is a 
vehicular exit to the north from Hazeldene, and parents living in this area would have 
easy access to Hazlehead School. Zoning the Pinewood area to Airyhall School 
would, it was felt, also make it easier for parents living in this area to take their 
children to school. 
 
2.4 Education Scotland Report 
 
An essential element of the statutory consultation process is involvement of 
Education Scotland whose report is provided as Annex A of this Consultation 
Report. 
 
In its report, Education Scotland noted that the proposal put forward in this 
consultation has clear educational benefits for children attending Airyhall School and 
Hazlehead School, and that as a result of the proposal, both schools are likely to 
have sustainable and viable school rolls which will allow for the delivery of a broad 
curriculum. The report also stated that the proposal has the potential to avoid 
difficulties of overcrowding and should provide children at both schools with a variety 
of opportunities to learn and play with their peers. 
 
The report noted that almost all of the stakeholders who met HM Inspectors were in 
support of the proposal, and that the provision within the proposals for existing pupils 
and their younger siblings to continue to attend the same school was welcomed. 
 
Finally the report highlights the concerns expressed by some stakeholders regarding 
the distance which some parents and children living in the Pinewood and Hazeldene 
estate would be required to walk to Hazlehead School, and stated that the Council 
should provide details about safe walking routes to school for those living in the new 
development. 
 
   
3.  THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO ISSUES RAISED DURING THE 

CONSULTATION PERIOD AND CONTAINED WITHIN THE EDUCATION 
SCOTLAND REPORT 

 
The following paragraphs provide responses to the significant points raised during 
the consultation period: 
 

3.1 Lack of easy vehicular access to Hazlehead School from the Pinewood 
and Hazeldene estate 

 

• Whilst it is acknowledged that there is no direct vehicular route through to 
the north of the site for those living in the southern section of the Pinewood 
and Hazeldene estate, a pedestrian route is available. This would provide 
access to Hazlehead School with a maximum walking distance of 
approximately 1.5 miles from any point within the Pinewood and Hazeldene 
estate. This would be deemed an acceptable distance for primary school 
pupils to walk or cycle to school, where there is a safe route available. 

 

Page 81



 

 

3.2 The pedestrian route to Hazlehead School is poorly lit 
 

• If the proposal to zone the whole of the Pinewood and Hazeldene estate to 
Hazelehead School is approved, the Council would be required to ensure 
that there is a safe route available for pupils living in the estate to walk to 
school. 
 

• Any improvements required to be made to the existing pedestrian route 
and street lighting in order to make it a safe route to school, would 
therefore be carried out. 

 
3.3 Questions about the timing of the consultation 
 

• It is acknowledged that carrying out this consultation prior to the conclusion 
of the previous consultation on the new Countesswells school zone 
arrangements, may have made it more difficult to illustrate the likely impact 
of the proposals on the pupil roll at Airyhall School. 

 

• Both of these consultations were the result of decisions made following the 
review of Aberdeen’s primary school estate, which was carried out in 2013. 
This review generated a large number of recommendations on rezoning 
and other changes to the school estate, all of which required a formal 
consultation. Due to the number of consultations required to be carried out, 
it has been necessary to run several of these concurrently, with 
consultations starting before a decision had been reached on the previous 
proposals, in a programme which is running over several years.  

 

• Had the consultations been run consecutively, i.e. making it necessary to 
wait for a decision on the previous consultation before starting the next, the 
duration of the consultation programme would have been extended 
considerably, and this would have significantly delayed the implementation 
of many of the changes which were required. 

 
3.4 Alternative Proposal 
 

• Officers have carefully considered the alternative proposal put forward by 
respondents to the consultation, to zone the northern section of the 
Pinewood and Hazeldene estate to Hazlehead School, and to zone the 
southern section of the estate to Airyhall School. 
 

• Whilst in practical terms this may appear to be a workable solution, in that 
parents and children living in the respective areas of the estate would be 
able to travel directly to their zoned school by car as well as on foot, there 
is not sufficient capacity at Airyhall School to accommodate the numbers of 
pupils expected to be living in the southern section of the Pinewood and 
Hazeldene estate. 

 

• The existing boundary line between the Hazlehead School zone and the 
Airyhall School zone runs through the middle of the Pinewood and 
Hazeldene estate. This means that currently most of the southern section 

Page 82



 

 

of the estate is zoned to Airyhall School, and this is reflected in the current  
pupil roll forecasts for the school. 

 

• As illustrated below, the pupil roll forecasts show that, if the Macaulay 
estate is added to the Airyhall School zone, and the southern section of the 
Pinewood / Hazeldene estate also remains within the zone, the school 
would be over its capacity of 393 pupils by 2017: 

 
Airyhall School Current and Forecast Pupil Numbers (capacity – 393) 
Including southern section of Pinewood and Hazeldene estate (currently 
zoned to Airyhall School), and Macaulay estate 

Current Forecast Pupil Numbers 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

346 387 401 401 405 411 415 407 

 

• If the alternative proposal were to be accepted, then the existing boundary 
line between the Hazlehead School zone and the Airyhall School zone 
would be adjusted to include some additional houses from the southern 
section of the estate which are currently zoned to Hazlehead School. This 
would only increase the numbers in the pupil roll forecasts shown above. 

 

• By proposing to zone the whole of the Pinewood and Hazeldene estate to 
Hazlehead School, and as noted in the Education Scotland report on these 
proposals, it would be possible to ensure that Airyhall School would remain 
within capacity and avoid difficulties with overcrowding, as illustrated 
below: 

 
Airyhall School Current and Forecast Pupil Numbers (capacity – 393) 
Including Macaulay estate and excluding southern section of Pinewood 
and Hazeldene estate  

Current Forecast Pupil Numbers 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

346 365 372 373 378 386 391 384 

 

• For the reasons outlined above, officers were unable to put forward this 
proposal as a viable alternative to the original proposal contained within the 
consultation document. 

 
4. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 9(1) OF THE SCHOOLS (CONSULTATION) 

(SCOTLAND) ACT 2010 AND CONSIDERATION OF THE PROPOSALS 
 

Page 83



 

 

Following the conclusion of the consultation period, Section 9(1) of the Schools 
(Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010, requires the Council to review the relevant 
proposal, having had regard to any written representations that have been received 
by it during the consultation period, oral representations made to it at the public 
meeting held on 2nd February, and Education Scotland’s report. 
 
In terms of Section 10(2) (e) of the said Schools (Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010, 
the Consultation Report requires to contain a statement explaining how the Council 
complied with its duty under the above Section 9(1) of the Act. 
 
With relation to Section 9(1) of the 2010 Act and having considered all of the 
information received during the consultation process, officers are satisfied that no 
comments have been received which would have caused them to revise the 
proposals to: rezone the area of housing known as the Macaulay Estate, from 
Hazlehead School to Airyhall School, and to adjust the Airyhall and Hazlehead school 
zone boundaries to accommodate the Pinewood / Hazledene housing development, 
with effect from 1st August 2016. 
 
5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Education and Children’s Services Committee agrees to 
implement the proposals to: 
 

Rezone the area of housing known as the Macaulay Estate, from Hazlehead 
School to Airyhall School, and to adjust the Airyhall and Hazlehead school 
zone boundaries to accommodate the Pinewood / Hazledene housing 
development, with effect from 1st August 2016. 

 
Gayle Gorman 
Director of Education and Children’s Services 
May 2016  

Page 84



 

 

ANNEX A 

 

REPORT FROM EDUCATION SCOTLAND 
 

 

Report by Education Scotland addressing educational aspects of the proposal 

by Aberdeen City Council to rezone the area of housing known as the 

Macaulay Estate, from Hazlehead School to Airyhall School, and to adjust the 

Airyhall and Hazlehead school zone boundaries to accommodate the 

Pinewood/Hazledene housing development, with effect from 1 August 2016. 

 

1. Introduction 

This report from Education Scotland has been prepared by HM Inspectors in 

accordance with the terms of the Schools (Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010 and the 

amendments contained in the Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014. The 

purpose of the report is to provide an independent and impartial consideration of 

Aberdeen City Council’s proposal to rezone the area of housing known as the 

Macaulay Estate, from Hazlehead School to Airyhall School, and to adjust the 

Airyhall and Hazlehead school zone boundaries to accommodate the 

Pinewood/Hazledene housing development, with effect from 1 August 2016. Section 

2 of the report sets out brief details of the consultation process. Section 3 of the 

report sets out HM Inspectors’ consideration of the educational aspects of the 

proposal, including significant views expressed by consultees. Section 4 

summarises HM Inspectors’ overall view of the proposal. Upon receipt of this report, 

the Act requires the council to consider it and then prepare its final consultation 

report. The council’s final consultation report should include a copy of this report and 

must contain an explanation of how, in finalising the proposal, it has reviewed the 

initial proposal, including a summary of points raised during the consultation process 

and the council’s response to them. The council has to publish its final consultation 

report three weeks before it takes its final decision. Where a council is proposing to 

close a school, it needs to follow all legislative obligations set out in the 2010 Act, 

including notifying Ministers within six working days of making its final decision and 

explaining to consultees the opportunity they have to make representations to 

Ministers. 

 

1.1  HM Inspectors considered: 

• the likely effects of the proposal for children and young people of Airyhall and 

• Hazlehead Schools; any other users; children likely to become pupils within 

• two years of the date of publication of the proposal paper; and other children 

• and young people in the council area; 

• any other likely effects of the proposal; 

• how the council intends to minimise or avoid any adverse effects that may 

• arise from the proposal; and 

• the educational benefits the council believes will result from implementation of 

• the proposal, and the council’s reasons for coming to these beliefs. 

 

1.2  In preparing this report, HM Inspectors undertook the following activities: 

• consideration of all relevant documentation provided by the council in relation 

• to the proposal, specifically the educational benefits statement and related 

Page 85



 

 

• consultation documents, written and oral submissions from parents and 

• others; and 

• visits to the sites of Airyhall School and Hazlehead School, including 

• discussion with relevant consultees. 

 

2. Consultation Process 

 

2.1  Aberdeen City Council undertook the consultation on its proposal with 

reference to the Schools (Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010 and the amendments in 

the Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014. 

 

2.2  The consultation process ran from 13 January 2016 to 29 February 2016. 

During this period the council held a public meeting in Airyhall School. Statutory 

consultees were informed of the consultation in writing. Consultation documentation 

was published on the Aberdeen City Council website and copies were available for 

public consultation at various venues in the city during the consultation period, 

including the schools concerned and public libraries. A proforma and an email 

address were made available for submissions. The council received 11 submissions 

to the consultation. A majority of these submissions were in favour of the proposal. 

Fifteen email submissions, all opposing the proposal, were received. These 

submissions suggested an alternative splitting of the Pinewood/Hazledene 

development between the catchment zones of Airyhall and Hazlehead Schools. 

 

3. Educational Aspects of Proposal 

 

3.1  This proposal offers appropriate educational benefits for the children attending 

both Airyhall and Hazlehead Schools. As a result of the proposal, both primary 

schools are likely to have sustainable and viable school rolls which will allow for 

delivery of a broad curriculum in line with the entitlements of Curriculum for 

Excellence. This proposal has the potential to avoid difficulties of overcrowding and 

should provide children at both schools with a variety of opportunities to learn and 

play with their peers. 

 

3.2  Almost all the stakeholders who met with HM Inspectors supported the 

proposal and agreed that it served the interests of both schools well. Arrangements 

made by the council to allow existing pupils and their younger siblings to continue to 

attend Airyhall and Hazlehead Schools following the implementation of this proposal 

are reasonable. Most stakeholders also felt that the proposal was timely, providing 

greater clarity about schools’ catchment zones for those about to move to the 

Pinewood/Hazledene development. 

 

3.3  Stakeholders of Airyhall School agreed that it made sense to include the 

Macaulay estate within their zone. The proposal has the potential to address these 

parents’ concerns about increases to the school roll leading to overcrowding. 

Stakeholders of Hazlehead School also felt it was sensible to include the Macaulay 

estate in the Airyhall School zone. They also welcomed the modest increase in 

school roll which would result from the proposal. 

 

3.4  While almost all stakeholders who spoke to HM Inspectors were in agreement 

with the proposal, several expressed concerns about the distance which some 

Page 86



 

 

parents and children living in the Pinewood/Hazledene housing development might 

have to walk to Hazlehead School. In taking forward its proposal, the council should 

provide details about safe walking routes to school for those living in the new 

development. 

 

4. Summary 

 

Aberdeen City Council’s proposal to address primary school capacity and 

accommodation issues in Airyhall and Hazlehead schools has clear educational 

benefits. As a result of this proposal, children at both schools should be able to 

enjoy a wide range of learning and play activities with a variety of peer groups in a 

sustainable environment, free from overcrowding. In taking this proposal forward, 

the council should engage with stakeholders to identify safe walking and transport 

routes for those living in the Pinewood/Hazledene development. It should also 

ensure that appropriate transition arrangements are planned and implemented in 

good time for those children moving to a new school in August 2016. 

 

HM Inspectors 

Education Scotland 

March 2016 

 
  

Page 87



 

 

Appendix 2 

 
 

 
 

CONSULTATION REPORT 
Hanover Street School and Sunnybank School Rezoning 

 
This Consultation Report has been compiled in response to the recent public 
consultation on the proposal to remove an area of dual-school zoning for 
Sunnybank School and Hanover Street School, in Aberdeen. The document 
summarises the responses received on the proposals set out below and Aberdeen 
City Council’s response to the verbal and written comments submitted by interested 
parties, in compliance with the Schools (Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010 and the 
Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014.   

 
 
Proposal:  
 

To remove an area of dual-school zoning for Sunnybank School and Hanover 
Street School, and to include this area within the zone for Sunnybank School only, 

with effect from 1st August 2016 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 88



 

 

3. METHODOLOGY 
 

This consultation was conducted in accordance with the Schools (Consultation) 
(Scotland) Act 2010 and the Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014. All 
requirements of the legislation have been met. 
 
4. INVOLVEMENT OF STAKEHOLDERS 
 
2.1 Public Event 
 
A public consultation event was held on 3rd February 2016 to discuss the proposals: 

 

Date Time Venue Recorded Attendees 

3rd February 2016   7- 8 pm 
Sunnybank 

School  

• 1 parent and member of 
the Sunnybank School 
Parent Council 

• 2 Aberdeen City Council 
officers 

 
 
2.2 Comments Received 
 
No written comments were received in response to this consultation. 

 
 
2.3 Issues Raised at the Public Consultation Event 
 
The meeting was attended by one member of the public, who was a parent of a pupil 
at Sunnybank School, and also a representative of Sunnybank School’s Parent 
Council. 

 
The parent had some questions about how the additional space, which is expected to 
be required at Sunnybank School if the proposals are accepted, would be created.  

 
The parent stated a preference to see the EAL Service and the Community Centre 
remain within the building, as there was a feeling that these contributed to the 
multicultural nature of the Sunnybank School community. 

 
The parent also felt that there are benefits from Aberdeen School for the Deaf being 
present within the building, as it allowed the children attending this specialist 
provision to integrate with children at Sunnybank School, which is an enriching 
experience for the children at both schools. 

 
The parent commented that the low response to the consultation and the fact that no 
other parents attended the meeting, may have been because some parents did not 
understand what was being proposed, and that the information sent out to parents 
about the consultation could have been made more clear. 
 
  

Page 89



 

 

Education Scotland Report 
 
An essential element of the statutory consultation process is the involvement of 
Education Scotland whose report is provided as Annex A of this Consultation 
Report. 
 
In its report, Education Scotland noted that the proposal put forward is of clear 
educational benefit to children attending both schools, and that if implemented, it 
would help to sustain viable pupil rolls in both schools, and help to ensure best value 
in the management of the Council’s school estate. It was also noted that a high 
proportion of children living in the currently dual zoned area already attend 
Sunnybank School. 
 
In commenting on the discussions that HM Inspectors had with staff, pupils and 
parents of the two schools, the report states that stakeholders were positive and saw 
the benefits of the proposal, and that the provision within the proposal for younger 
siblings of existing Hanover Street School pupils to also attend that school was 
welcomed.  
 
The report also highlighted requests from some stakeholders for the Council to 
ensure there is sufficient space at Sunnybank School to accommodate the likely 
increase in pupil numbers, and to consider relocating some of the services currently 
using rooms at the school, whilst other stakeholders expressed a preference to retain 
these services within the school. 
 
Finally the report suggests that the Council should ensure that appropriate transition 
arrangements are in place for children who will attend a new school in August 2016. 
 
   
3.  THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSE TO ISSUES RAISED DURING THE 

CONSULTATION PERIOD AND CONTAINED WITHIN THE EDUCATION 
SCOTLAND REPORT 

 
The following paragraphs provide responses to the significant points raised during 
the consultation period: 
 

3.1 Space requirements at Sunnybank School and impact on other services 
using the school 
 

• The pupil roll forecasts for Sunnybank School indicate that, if the proposal 
is accepted and children from the current dual zone area attend 
Sunnybank School only in future, there will be sufficient capacity within the 
rooms currently used by the school until 2018. From 2018 onwards, it is 
likely that at least one of the rooms currently used by other services would 
be required to be used as a classroom. In the years following 2018 further 
rooms may be required to be put back into use as classrooms. 
 

• Prior to 2018, officers will work with the services concerned and with the 
school to identify the most appropriate solution for releasing additional 
rooms within the building, and for relocating services where this is required. 

Page 90



 

 

This work will be planned carefully in order to minimise any disruption to 
pupils at the school or to the staff and users of the services concerned. 
 

3.2 Transition arrangements for pupils attending a new school in August 
 

• Given that pupils living in the current dual zone area who already attend 
Hanover Street School would have the option to continue doing so, the 
proposed changes if implemented are likely only to affect children who 
have not yet reached school age, and who would therefore have been 
preparing to start a new school for the first time anyway. It is not 
anticipated that any pupils who already have a place at Hanover Street 
School would be transitioning to Sunnybank School as a result of these 
proposals. 
 

• However the Council does have transition arrangements in place for any 
pupils moving to a new school, and the schools would work closely with the 
children and families concerned, should the need arise. 
 

3.3 Clarity of communication to parents 
 

• Officers have taken on board the comment received at the public 
consultation meeting, with regards to the low turnout to the meeting and 
the possibility that this might have been due to the way in which the 
proposals were explained in the communication sent to parents prior to the 
meeting. 

 

• The way in which proposals are explained to parents as part of any future 
public consultations will be reviewed, and letters sent to parents will be 
written clearly and carefully, to ensure that they are accessible by as many 
parents and stakeholders as possible. 
 

 
4. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 9(1) OF THE SCHOOLS (CONSULTATION) 

(SCOTLAND) ACT 2010 AND CONSIDERATION OF THE PROPOSALS 
 
Following the conclusion of the consultation period, Section 9(1) of the Schools 
(Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010, requires the Council to review the relevant 
proposal, having had regard to any written representations that have been received 
by it during the consultation period, oral representations made to it at the public 
meeting held on 3rd February, and Education Scotland’s report. 
 
In terms of Section 10(2) (e) of the said Schools (Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010, 
the Consultation Report requires to contain a statement explaining how the Council 
complied with its duty under the above Section 9(1) of the Act. 
 
With relation to Section 9(1) of the 2010 Act and having considered all of the 
information received during the consultation process, officers are satisfied that no 
comments have been received which would have caused them to review the merits 
of the proposals to: remove an area of dual-school zoning for Sunnybank School and 

Page 91



 

 

Hanover Street School, and to include this area within the zone for Sunnybank 
School only, with effect from 1st August 2016. 
 
  

Page 92



 

 

5. RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Education and Children’s Services Committee agrees to 
implement the proposals to: 
 

Remove an area of dual-school zoning for Sunnybank School and Hanover 
Street School, and to include this area within the zone for Sunnybank School 
only, with effect from 1st August 2016. 

 
Gayle Gorman 
Director of Education and Children’s Services 
May 2016  

Page 93



 

 

ANNEX A 
 

REPORT FROM EDUCATION SCOTLAND 
 
Report by Education Scotland addressing the educational aspects of the proposal by  
Aberdeen City Council to remove the dual zoning between Sunnybank School and 
Hanover Street School, and to include the area of land affected within the zone for 
Sunnybank School only with effect from August 2016. 
 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 This report from Education Scotland has been prepared by HM Inspectors in 

accordance with the terms of the Schools (Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010 and the 

amendments contained in the Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014. The purpose 

of the report is to provide an independent and impartial consideration of Aberdeen City 

Council’s proposal to remove the dual zoning between Sunnybank School and Hanover 

Street School, and to include the area of land affected within the zone for Sunnybank 

School only with effect from August 2016. Section 2 of the report sets out brief details of 

the consultation process. Section 3 of the report sets out HM Inspectors’ consideration of 

the educational aspects of the proposal, including significant views expressed by 

consultees. Section 4 summarises 

HM Inspectors’ overall view of the proposal. Upon receipt of this report, the Act requires 

the council to consider it and then prepare its final consultation report. The council’s final 

consultation report should include a copy of this report and must contain an explanation of 

how, in finalising the proposal, it has reviewed the initial proposal, including a summary of 

points raised during the consultation process and the council’s response to them. The 

council has to publish its final consultation report three weeks before it takes its final 

decision. Where a council is proposing to close a school, it needs to follow all legislative 

obligations set out in the 2010 Act, including notifying Ministers within six working days 

of making its final decision and explaining to consultees the opportunity they have to make 

representations to Ministers. 

 

1.2 HM Inspectors considered: 

 

• the likely effects of the proposal for children and young people of both Sunnybank 

School and Hanover Street School; any other users; children likely to become pupils 

within two years of the date of publication of the proposal paper; and other children 

and young people in the council area, including younger siblings; 

 

• any other likely effects of the proposal; 

 

• how the council intends to minimise or avoid any adverse effects that may arise 

from the proposal; and 

 

• the educational benefits the council believes will result from implementation of the 

proposal, and the council’s reasons for coming to these beliefs. 

 

1.3 In preparing this report, HM Inspectors undertook the following activities: 

 

Page 94



 

 

• consideration of all relevant documentation provided by the council in relation to 

the proposal, specifically the educational benefits statement and related 

consultation documents, written and oral submissions from parents and others; and 

 

• visits to the sites of Hanover Street School and Sunnybank School. 

 

2. Consultation Process 

 

2.1 Aberdeen City Council undertook the consultation on its proposal with reference to 

the Schools (Consultation) (Scotland) Act 2010 and the amendments in the Children and 

Young People (Scotland) Act 2014. 

 

2.2 The consultation process ran from 13 January to 29 February 2016.  A copy of the 

statutory consultation document was made available at several venues, including both 

schools, and letters with information on the proposal were made available to parents of 

children at the schools involved.  Aberdeen City Council’s website also provided 

information on the proposal, including the consultation document. During the consultation 

period, the council held a public meeting on 

3 February 2016. One parent attended from Sunnybank School. The council received no 

written responses to the proposal. 

 

3. Educational Aspects of Proposal 

 

3.1 This proposal is of clear educational benefit to children attending both schools. If 

implemented, the proposal will help sustain viable pupil rolls in both schools and will help 

the council to ensure best value in managing its school estate. The proposal addresses the 

predicted increase in roll at Hanover Street School, which is likely to exceed the building’s 

capacity over the next seven years.  As a result of the proposal, both primary schools have the 

potential to provide children with a broad range of learning experiences, in line with 

Curriculum for Excellence, in an environment free from overcrowding.  Arrangements made 

by the council to allow existing pupils and their younger siblings to continue to attend 

Hanover Street School are reasonable. A high proportion of children in the currently dual 

zoned area attend Sunnybank School. The council should ensure that appropriate transition 

arrangements are in place for children and those children moving to a new school in August 

2016. 
 

3.2 Overall, in both primary schools, staff, children and parents who met with HM 

Inspectors were positive and saw the benefits of the proposal.  Stakeholders were pleased 

that the younger siblings of existing Hanover Street pupils would be 

able to attend the same school as their older brother or sister. In Sunnybank School, a few 

stakeholders wanted the council to ensure that sufficient space was available for pupils as a 

result of the increased school roll and to consider the possible relocation of other services 

currently housed within the building should the need for more accommodation become 

apparent in the future. A few stakeholders felt there are advantages for keeping these services 

in the school. Children in Sunnybank School felt that the proposal would allow them to have 

more friends and better access to school clubs due to potentially increased numbers. A few 

stakeholders from Sunnybank considered that the proposal to re-zone would make children’s 

travel to school safer as a result of them not having to cross a dual carriageway. 
 

Page 95



 

 

4. Summary 
 

The proposal to remove the dual zoning between Sunnybank School and Hanover Street 

School, and to include the area of land affected within the zone for Sunnybank School 

only is of clear educational benefit. If the proposal is implemented, it will enable children 

who live in the catchment zone to attend their local primary school and has the potential 

to address the projected increased school roll at Hanover Street School thus avoiding 

overcrowding. It will also enable the council to ensure best value in managing its school 

estate. If implemented, and on account of the tight timescale, the council urgently needs 

to ensure that appropriate transition arrangements are in place for children who will 

attend a new school in August 2016. 

 

3. HM Inspectors 

Education Scotland 
March 2016 
 

 

Page 96



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

  
  

  
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

 

  
7

- 
E

H
R

IA
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 a

n
d

  
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
n

in
g

  
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 T

it
le

 
 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 –
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 R
e

p
o

rt
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

to
 

th
e

 s
ch

o
o

l 
zo

n
e

 b
o

u
n

d
a

ry
 f

o
r 

A
ir

y
h

a
ll

 S
ch

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 H
a

zl
e

h
e

a
d

 S
ch

o
o

l,
 a

n
d

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 

a
n

 a
re

a
 o

f 
d

u
a

l 
zo

n
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

u
n

n
y

b
a

n
k

 S
ch

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 H
a

n
o

v
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t 

S
ch

o
o

l 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
n

o
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

  
E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 
   

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

A
s

 a
 r

e
s

u
lt

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

n
g

 t
h

is
 a

s
s

e
s
s

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

a
t 

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 o
r 

re
d

u
c

e
 a

n
y
 r

is
k

s
 o

f 
a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

. 
 

 I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 t
o

 w
h

o
m

: 
 

 
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

: 
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

L
e

a
d

: 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
a

te
: 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

D
a

te
: 

 N
o

n
e

 
          

 
 

 
 

   

Page 97



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

   
   

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 

8
: 

S
ig

n
 o

ff
 

 

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
  

(N
a

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

) 
: 

 

A
n

d
re

w
 J

o
n

e
s,

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 F
in

a
n

ce
 a

n
d

 A
ss

e
ts

 

 S
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
 b

y
 (

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
) 

: 
 

E
u

a
n
 C

o
u
p

e
rw

h
it
e

, 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

, 
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 O
n

ly
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 7

 a
n
d

 8
  
w

ill
 b

e
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 

 T
h
e

 f
u

ll 
E

H
R

IA
  

w
ill

 b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 o
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 u
n
d

e
r 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/x

e
q
_

E
H

R
IA

_
S

e
a

rc
h

.a
s
p
 

 P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

n
d

 a
n

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 f

o
rm

a
t 
o
f 

th
e

 f
u

ll 
E

H
R

IA
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
s
ig

n
a

tu
re

 t
o

 s
a
n

d
ra

b
@

a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

   

Page 98



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE: Education & Children’s Services  
 
DATE: 2nd June 2016 
 
DIRECTOR: Gayle Gorman 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Interim Report on Review of Bookings and 

Lettings 
 
REPORT NUMBER: ECS/16/027 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED: Yes 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To inform Elected Members of the progress of the current review of 
bookings and lettings procedures for school and community facilities, and 
to request approval to adjust the charges for sports bookings, to better 
reflect the requirement to charge Value Added Tax for these bookings.  
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
It is recommended that the Committee: 
 
(i) Notes the content of this report, in respect of the progress of the 
current review of bookings and lettings procedures for school and 
community facilities; 
 
and 
 
(ii) Approves the proposal to adjust the charges for all sports facility 
bookings, so that it is made clear to customers that the charges for 
sports facilities are exclusive of VAT, and to provide clear guidance to 
customers on how to claim eligibility for exemption from VAT charges. 
 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The cost associated with employing a consultant to undertake the review 
of bookings and lettings is being met jointly by Education & Children’s 
Services and the Communities, Housing & Infrastructure Service, and is 
being funded from within existing revenue budgets. 
 
If the recommendation to adjust the charges for sports bookings is 
accepted, any applicable VAT charges would be passed on to the 

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 99



customer. There would be no negative impact on Council finances as a 
result.  In the majority of cases, bookings and lettings customers will be 
exempt from VAT charges, and there would therefore be no financial 
implications for the Council in these cases. 
 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

5.1 Review of Bookings and Lettings Procedures 
 
On 18th February 2010, a report was presented to the Education, Culture 
and Sport Committee which outlined a number of recommendations 
following a review of the bookings and lettings procedures for the use of 
sports and educational facilities. The approval of those recommendations 
led to a number of improvements in the way in which the bookings and 
lettings programme was operated. 
 
In the time since the review of procedures in 2010, a number of changes 
have taken place within the Council, including the creation of Sport 
Aberdeen, which now administers the bookings and lettings programme 
on behalf of the Council. In addition, community centres, which are 
available to let alongside school buildings, are now the responsibility of a 
separate service. Officers and stakeholders involved in the bookings and 
lettings programme have therefore identified a number of further 
improvements which could be made to the procedures, to reflect the way 
in which the process is now managed. 
 
Officers within Education & Children’s Services are working with 
colleagues from Communities, Housing & Infrastructure, which is 
responsible for the community centres, to undertake a further review of 
the current bookings and lettings procedures. This has included the 
appointment of an external consultant, to review all of the work that has 
been undertaken to date in this area, and to speak to a wide range of 
stakeholder groups, before producing a report with recommendations on 
further improvements which could be made to the bookings and lettings 
procedures. 
 
The consultant began work on this project on 15th March 2016, and is 
due to produce the final report in June/July 2016. It is officers’ intention to 
use this report to produce recommendations on further improvements to 
the bookings and lettings procedures for school facilities, to be presented 
to the Education and Children’s Services Committee meeting in 
September 2016. 
 
To date the consultant has undertaken interviews with a range of 
stakeholders, including officers from both Council services, and with 
colleagues from Sport Aberdeen. From this work a number of areas of 
focus for the review have been identified. These include: 
 

Page 100



• The bookings process from the customer’s point of view, and ensuring 
consistency of service 

• Ensuring adequate staff cover in buildings to allow lets to go ahead 

• The need for clear policies and guidance on application approval 
procedures and charging categories 
 
Further work to be undertaken by the consultant over the coming three 
months will therefore include: 
 

• Establishing a recommended definition of a let 

• Setting recommended criteria for lets 

• Setting recommended priorities for lets 

• Recommending the optimum locations to be made available for lets 

• Recommendations on the process for administering lets 

• Recommendations on arrangements for staffing buildings to allow lets to 
take place 

• Recommendations on a charging structure for lets 
 
Final recommendations on improvements to the bookings and lettings 
procedures will be presented to Committee at its meeting in September 
2016. 
 
 

5.2 VAT charges for sports bookings 
 

There is a requirement by HM Revenue & Customs for the standard rate 
of VAT to be applied to charges for the letting of sports facilities, for 
sports related activities. Due to the complexities of the rules relating to 
this, charges for sports lettings in Aberdeen City schools were initially 
deemed to be VAT inclusive. 
 
VAT charges apply only to sports lettings – i.e. lets which involve sports 
activities and which take place at a purpose-built sports facility. HM 
Revenue and Customs has a pre-defined list of what constitutes a sports 
activity. Sports facilities are defined as spaces with specific sport related 
design features, or where sports equipment is provided as part of the let. 
Purpose built school games halls and gyms would be included within this 
definition, whereas a school assembly hall would not. 
 
Sports lettings can be exempt of VAT charges if certain criteria are met. 
These exemptions would apply to schools, clubs and associations which 
make a let booking for ten or more separate sessions. The majority of 
groups which use sports facilities in Aberdeen City schools as part of a 
let would qualify for exemption from VAT charges.  
 
Officers have reviewed the current arrangements for advertising the 
charges for sports bookings, and have identified the need to make the 
VAT charge requirements more explicit in the let application form, in 
order to comply with HM Revenue & Customs requirements.  
 

Page 101



The proposal, therefore, is to request that Sport Aberdeen advertises the 
current scale of charges for sports facilities as VAT exclusive, from 
August 2016 onwards, and that it provides clear guidance to groups on 
how they can claim exemption from the VAT charges. 
 
When submitting their let application form, groups would include a 
separate VAT charge exemption form, along with the necessary 
evidence to show that they are exempt from the charges. This would 
ensure that the price for their let does not include an additional charge for 
VAT. 
 
If the proposal is approved, the necessary changes to paperwork would 
be introduced to coincide with the new bookings and lettings programme 
starting in August 2016. 
 
There is no proposal to make any changes to the basic level of charges 
within the bookings and lettings programme at this time. The scale of 
charges will be considered under the current review of bookings and 
lettings, and any recommendations for changes to the charges would be 
presented to the Committee as part of the wider report following the 
completion of that review, in September 2016. 
 
Officers felt that it would be prudent to introduce changes to the 
confirmation paperwork relating to VAT charges for bookings 
commencing in August, ahead of the recommendations on the wider 
bookings and lettings review, as the new lettings programme 
commences in August, and new block bookings for the year are 
confirmed at this time. Introducing the changes later, once the block 
bookings are under way, would most likely create confusion for 
customers. 
 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

6.1 Corporate 

 

Aberdeen the Smarter City 
 

(i) We will promote and improve opportunities for physical activity and sport 
to enable Aberdeen's citizens to lead more active, healthier lives 
 

(ii) We will enhance the physical and emotional wellbeing of all our citizens 
by offering support and activities which promote independence, 
resilience, confidence and self-esteem. 
 

(iii) We will promote and improve opportunities for physical activity and sport 
to enable Aberdeen's citizens to lead more active, healthier lives 
 

(iv) Working with our third, public and private sector partners, we will provide 
opportunities for lifelong learning which will develop knowledge, skills and 

Page 102



attributes of our citizens to enable them to meet the changing demands 

of the 21st Century. 
 
(v) Again, working with partners, we will create a City of Learning which will 

empower individuals to fulfil their potential and contribute to the 
economic, social and cultural wellbeing of our communities. 

 
(vi) We will aim to have a workforce across the city which has the skills and 

knowledge to sustain, grow and diversify the city economy. 
 

6.2 Equality and Human Rights implications 
 
 A full Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment has been 

submitted for this report. 
 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

If the proposal to make changes to the advertising of charges for sports 
lettings is not approved, then the Council may be deemed to be non-
compliant with HM Revenue & Customs requirements concerning VAT 
charges for sports lettings. 
 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
There are no background papers associated with this report. 

 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Andrew Jones 
Service Manager, Assets & Finance 
Tel: (01224) 523042 

 

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

  
  

  
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

 

  
7

- 
E

H
R

IA
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 a

n
d

  
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
n

in
g

  
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 T

it
le

 
 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 –
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 R
e

p
o

rt
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

to
 

th
e

 s
ch

o
o

l 
zo

n
e

 b
o

u
n

d
a

ry
 f

o
r 

A
ir

y
h

a
ll

 S
ch

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 H
a

zl
e

h
e

a
d

 S
ch

o
o

l,
 a

n
d

 t
o

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 

a
n

 a
re

a
 o

f 
d

u
a

l 
zo

n
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

u
n

n
y

b
a

n
k

 S
ch

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 H
a

n
o

v
e

r 
S

tr
e

e
t 

S
ch

o
o

l 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
n

o
t 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

  
E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 
   

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

A
s

 a
 r

e
s

u
lt

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

n
g

 t
h

is
 a

s
s

e
s
s

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

a
t 

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 o
r 

re
d

u
c

e
 a

n
y
 r

is
k

s
 o

f 
a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

. 
 

 I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 t
o

 w
h

o
m

: 
 

 
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

: 
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

L
e

a
d

: 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
a

te
: 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

D
a

te
: 

 N
o

n
e

 
          

 
 

 
 

   

Page 105



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

   
   

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 

8
: 

S
ig

n
 o

ff
 

 

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
  

(N
a

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

) 
: 

 

A
n

d
re

w
 J

o
n

e
s,

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

 S
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
 b

y
 (

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
) 

: 
 

E
u

a
n
 C

o
u
p

e
rw

h
it
e

, 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

, 
P

o
lic

y
, 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 O
n

ly
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 7

 a
n
d

 8
  
w

ill
 b

e
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 

 T
h
e

 f
u

ll 
E

H
R

IA
  

w
ill

 b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 o
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 u
n
d

e
r 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/x

e
q
_

E
H

R
IA

_
S

e
a

rc
h

.a
s
p
 

 P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

n
d

 a
n

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 f

o
rm

a
t 
o
f 

th
e

 f
u

ll 
E

H
R

IA
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
s
ig

n
a

tu
re

 t
o

 s
a
n

d
ra

b
@

a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

   

Page 106



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Education and Children’s Services 
 
DATE  2 June 2016 
 
DIRECTOR  Gayle Gorman 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Culture Programme 2016/17 
 
REPORT NUMBER ECS/16/024 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED     Yes 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to request approval for the 2016/17 culture 
programme, and the partnership and contractual arrangements proposed in the 
body of the report.  The report also provides details of the priorities and 
objectives which underpin this investment, to support the delivery of a targeted 
number of events and activities aiming to improve Aberdeen’s cultural sector.  

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

The Committee is requested to: 
 

1. Agree as detailed in the body of this report the proposed themes, budget 
allocations and processes for Aberdeen’s 2016/17 culture programme; and 
 

2. Note as specified in the body of this report the benefits of this programme to 
the city and how it supports the strategic priorities of the Council. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

All of the proposed investment programmes will be met from existing budget 
lines and there are no additional financial implications resulting from this report. 
Significant additional funds brought in to increase the value of the Council’s 
allocations.  
 
Officers of Education and Children’s Services have consulted with Legal and 
Commercial and Procurement Services with regard to specific budget 
allocations that required consideration in terms of EU state aid rules and 
procurement legislation.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 6.3

Page 107



 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Legal and Commercial and Procurement Services will be required to help 
scope and agree the commissions, and resulting contracts. Officers of 
Education and Children’s Services have sought prior advice on the requirement 
for competitive processes when services are being purchased to assist with 
delivering the programme. 
 
Officers of Education and Children’s Services shall work closely with the Head 
of Communications and Promotions in the Office of the Chief Executive to 
ensure the culture programme provides an effective platform for the city’s 
aspirations to develop a high quality events programme. Officers in Education 
and Children’s Services and in the Office of the Chief Executive (City Events) 
manage the commissioning process and subsequent programme.    

 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

Following the city’s bid to become UK City of Culture 2017, the Council 
publically committed to deliver a step change in cultural activity and 
infrastructure over the period up till 2018/19. During the bid process, staff and 
partner organisations identified a number of projects, themes and high level 
objectives which would support the city’s ambitions for culture. These are key 
elements of a ‘step change’ in developing longer term cultural opportunities, 
which, as well as delivering the lasting change to make the city ready to bid for 
future accolades, delivers significant elements of the City Centre masterplan, as 
follows: 

 
1. ‘Changing Perceptions –promoting the view of Aberdeen as an energetic, 

inclusive and fascinating place’ 
8 ‘Culturally distinctive’ – ensuring the city centre reflects its distinctive local 

culture so it is like no other place. 
 
The Strategic Infrastructure Plan identifies key infrastructure projects which will 
make a significant contribution to the development of the city, including spaces 
and places for the cultural life of the city to grow and flourish; it also identified 
some of the key barriers to growth, including ‘Attracting workers and visitors, 
and marketing of the city image’ as being essential for the future sustainability 
of the city. 

 
The consultants who managed the bid process on behalf of the DCMS said of 
Aberdeen: 

 
‘Aberdeen has great potential in terms of its potential resources and the 
significant interest that private and public partners have in upping Aberdeen’s 
game. However, this bid does not deliver the quality and vision and assurance 
of deliverability. There is great potential from this bid to take forward 
development of its cultural offer, and deliver relationships with business 
sponsors’. 

 

Page 108



 
 

In summer 2014, RGU launched a policy paper ‘Creating a New North’ which 
identified an opportunity for organisations in the North East to work together to 
develop a new cultural narrative locally.  The paper stated: 

 
‘What is required now is the development of a coherent vision (for culture) that a 
range of individuals and organisations can rally round and contribute to’ 
 

5.1  Key achievements to date 
The Council has made important and progressive steps to develop the cultural 
profile and programming of the city. As well as the commitment to the Culture 
programme, which includes ‘SPECTRA’ the Festival of Light, this includes the 
redevelopment of the City’s Art Gallery, Aberdeen Treasure Hub, the Museum’s 
Collection Centre  and Music Hall, ‘Big Noise Torry’ the El Sistema initiative, the 
opening of an artist’s studio (with over 20 spaces for artists), the Anatomy 
Rooms and the establishment of Aberdeen Festivals in Visit Aberdeenshire, the 
strategic cultural tourism partnership within the regional destination marketing 
body. March saw the premier of GRANITE, a major partnership performance at 
Marischal Quad with the National Theatre of Scotland which sold out in the first 
few days of ticket sales. 
 

Spectra 
Aberdeen’s Festival of Light 

Granite 
A production by National Theatre of Scotland; ‘The story 
of Aberdeen told by the people of Aberdeen’ 

• 1.5m total reach on Facebook and Twitter 

• 9,250 visitors in 2015: 35,000 in 2016 
 
‘Congratulations! The Festival of Light was brilliant in 
more ways than one. It was enjoyed by all of our family 
from grandparents down to our three year old grandson. 
The inclusion of Marischal College was a brilliant idea. 
Well done! 
 
‘Not often I praise ACC but 10/10 for this. Must be good 
for the city’ 
(Visitors comments) 

• 1,193 audience members over 3 nights 
 
‘…bringing together community and professional 
theatremakers, present and future artists, the vital story 
of a city and all the resources of a national theatre, to 
produce something beautiful, unique and full of 
transforming creative power’  
(The Scotsman) 

Aberdeen Festivals 
A collective of ten of the city’s festivals working 
collaboratively to enhance and promote the city’s 
festivals’  

The Anatomy Rooms 
A new art and design studio facility housing creative  
practitioners, events and performances 

• Additional £1.6 million of output created through 
festivals. Overall festival audience numbers 
increased 

 

• Private sponsorship and Visit Scotland Growth 
funding secured 
 

• First ever national and international marketing 
campaign launched to grow wider audience 

 
 

• 3,300 visitors to the space since October 2015 

• 20 artists housed 

• 2700 visitors during the four days of Spectra 

• 18 events, talks and workshops since October 
2015 

"I have struggled since graduating from Gray's  10 years 
ago to have the head space and physical space to make 
new work. It found it impossible to find a studio in 
Aberdeen and I felt demoralised. This has now all 
changed!- I feel much more energised - and that's all 
thanks to the Anatomy Rooms project" 

Page 109



 
 

Creative Funding 
A dedicated fund to support individual makers and artists 
as well as community and voluntary groups to develop 
creative projects. 

Big Noise Torry 
An inspiring and intensive orchestra programme 
supporting permanent social change in Torry 

• 50 projects supported 

• Generated an additional £900,000 of creative activity 
(additional investment attracted): 

•  10,000 participants: 

•  500,000 audience members: 

•  1,000 volunteers:  

• 13,000 volunteer hours 

• Big Noise programme in Torry has been 
overwhelmingly positive with encouraging 
feedback from the community. 

• Children's uptake for the delivery of the 
programme remains extremely high (over 65% of 
available uptake). 

• Big Noise Torry participates in additional 
community engagement, including “take a 
musician home for tea”, parent/child lessons in 
holiday clubs, musicians performing at local care 
homes, and giving 1:1 lessons to children who 
require additional or specialist support. 

• The programme is inclusive, with a high level of 
ongoing participation from P3 children, and it 
continues to welcome new and returning 
participants. 

 
5.2  Proposed culture programme 2016/17 

Theme Project Funding Process Activity 
 

Placemaking Creative Spaces/Make £75,000 Open 
application/contract 
with RGU 

Contract for MAKE and awards 
scheme for small creative 
businesses 

 Youth Arts Collective £50,000 Partner project – 
Culture Network 

Activities to support young people 
into the creative industries  

 Aberdeen Festivals £50,000 Partner project – Visit 
Aberdeenshire 

Festivals collective funding – 
Marketing and promotion of 
festivals offer 

 Made in Aberdeen- artists 
commissions 

£20,000 Partner project - RGU Fund to support commissions 
(culminating in April 2017) 

Signature 
event 

SPECTRA £230,000 3 year agreement with 
Curated Place/internal 
Comms and marketing  
budget and 
infrastructure costs 

Year 4 of Light festival 

Building on 
our strengths 

Libraries 125 years 
programme 

£35,000 Internal Initiatives to support reading and 
literature development, new 
audiences 

 AAG redevelopment £40,000 Internal Match funding for HLF outreach 
programme 

 Beach Ballroom 
enhancement fund 

£20,000 internal Support to attract new lets with 
charitable status  

 True North Singer 
Songwriter festival 

£40,000 Partner project -APA  Stepping out programme – Music 
Hall closure  

 Granite Noir £40,000 Partner project 
(Libraries, APA, 
Anatomy Rooms, 
Belmont cinema)  

Multi  art form weekend festival of 
crime literature and films 

 Year of History, Heritage 
and Archaeology – 
Celebrating Aberdeen 

£110,000 Existing cultural bodies 
/ festivals / artists / 
residents – open 
application 

Support for enhanced use of 
collections and new commissions 
as part of major event to celebrate  
the history and heritage of 
Aberdeen (culminating in July 
2017) 

 TOTAL £710,000   

Page 110



 
 

 

5.2.1 Culture programme and the City Council 
 
The Aberdeen City Centre Masterplan and Delivery programme was 
unanimously approved by the Council on 24 June 2015. The proposed events 
programme, Aberdeen 365, is referenced as a specific project within the 
masterplan and is scheduled to be delivered during phase one. In February this 
year Finance, Policy and Resources agreed to commission an events strategy 
for the City Council to provide strategic direction for the development of 
infrastructure, activity, people and places connected to the City Centre 
Masterplan and Aberdeen 365 programme.  
 
The review is intended to provide a framework for the allocation of existing 
revenue, a package of sponsorship opportunities and an opportunity for 
developer contributions.  As both Common Good and revenue funding reduces, 
the events strategy will ensure the events delivered by the City Council are 
aligned to maximise the benefits of that limited investment, informed by a full 
review of all activity.  This review will consider the need to reduce  expectations 
amongst partners, working towards a streamlined and effective culture 
programme which retains quality, attracts additional investment, and is 
deliverable within the resource available. The review will be presented to 
Elected Members in September 2016 and will therefore form part of the budget 
setting process and be implemented for the financial year 2017/18. 
 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

Improving Customer Experience – 
In the 35th city voice questionnaire, 65% of respondents agreed or strongly 
agreed that cultural activity is important to the quality of life in the city. 78% 
agreed or strongly agreed that culture is important in attracting visitors to the 
city. 
 
The outcome of the bid for UK City of Culture 2017 raised the level of 
investment in culture in Aberdeen and the residents of the City have responded 
very favourably to the enhanced culture programme, as evidenced by the 
feedback from SPECTRA and other initiatives. The Council’s commitment to 
culture is seen as a positive investment in the perception of Aberdeen as a 
culturally vibrant city.  The programme provides improved opportunities to 
participate in the arts as audience member, volunteer and participant: access to 
emerging technology at affordable costs: a range of support initiatives to 
support community groups and creative individuals; and opportunities to 
experience the city centre in a positive, creative environment for all ages, for 
individuals and families.   
 
The Council teams involved in the delivery of the Culture programme are World 
Host trained. The culture programme supports the Council’s ambitions to be a 
World Host accredited city. 

 
 

Page 111



 
 

Improving Staff Experience –  
The Council, through its cultural events, revenue and capital programmes, a 
cohort of staff committed to improving the cultural life of the city,   The events 
strategy under way will ensure the correct structures, processes and conditions 
exist for staff to effectively and efficiently deliver the programme with the 
capacity to do so under an agreed framework.  

 
Improving our use of Resources –  
The Council’s investment in culture represents only a proportion of the total 
investment: for example, the Youth Arts Hub contribution is £50,000 per year 
towards an overall investment of £400,000 (Creative Scotland); Granite: Council 
investment of £200,000 for a project costing £450,000: Spectra received 
additional investment of over £80,000 from Event Scotland, Creative Scotland, 
the EU and Arts Council England.  
 
A longer term approach to contracting activities enables better use of resources 
and providing open opportunities which require partners to raise additional 
resources maximises the benefits of council funding. Aligning the culture 
programme to the national ‘Year of’ programme has enabled some additional 
resources to be brought in to increase opportunities and gain national publicity.  
 
Working collaboratively across the Office of the Chief Executive has maximised 
the skills set needed to effectively manage the activities, reducing marketing, 
organisational and administration costs.       

 
Corporate -  
The Single Outcome Agreement: Culture is a multi – lateral priority 
Strategic Infrastructure Plan: A better image for Aberdeen: 

• Boost the external appearance of the city as a place to live, visit and 
invest 

• Foster greater civic pride 

• Celebrate and showcase existing strengths 
 
Education and Children’s Service Plan priority 2-Culture 
 
City centre masterplan objectives 1 and 8: 

• Changing perceptions- promoting the view of Aberdeen as an energetic, 
inclusive and fascinating place 

• Culturally distinctive – ensuring the city centre reflects its distinctive local 
culture so it is like no other place 

 
Smarter Aberdeen: Quality of Life 

• Enhance the well-being of our communities by creating a stimulating 
environment for them to work through the delivery of high quality arts and 
cultural services 

• We aspire to be recognised as a City of Culture, a place of excellence for 
culture and arts by promoting Aberdeen as a cultural centre hosting high 
quality and diverse cultural events for the whole community and beyond 

 

Page 112



 
 

Each element of the cultural programme is devised and delivered collaboratively 
through a contractual or partnership arrangement with members of the Culture 
Network (the Community planning culture theme lead) or with an appropriately 
constituted and qualified outside body.  

 
Public –  
This report is likely to be of interest to the public, in part due to the prior 
commitment to an enhanced cultural programme and resident’s interests in the 
civic life of Aberdeen. The recent large scale events GRANITE and SPECTRA 
have increased local interest in and appetite for high quality events of a 
significant scale. 
 
A Privacy Impact Assessment has been judged as not required for the purposes 
of this report.   An Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA) is 
appended to the report.  
 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
The budget for the 2016/17 programme was approved at the Council budget 
setting meeting in February this year. Each element of the programme has a 
lead officer who monitors all aspects of the financial, contractual, and where 
other responsibilities do not lie with the partner or contracted organisation, other 
aspects including health and safety and employee welfare. 
 
Should the   proposed culture programme not be approved, the delivery of 
discrete elements could be affected or cancelled by the delay and the reputation 
of the Council, with regard to its stated commitment to culture across a range of 
strategic priorities, could be affected.  

 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

• Festival reports on Techfest, NEOS (North East Open Studios), Mayfest, 
Dancelive, Aberdeen Jazz festival, AIYF (Aberdeen International Youth 
Festival), and Aberdeen Festivals Collective by Culture Republic in 2015  

• 35th city voice questionnaire 2015 

• Culture programme and Cultural Awards 2015/16 
Committee report, Education and children’s Services 2 June 2015 

• City Events 2016/17 
Committee report, Finance, Resource and Policy 16th February 2016   

 
 

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 

Lesley Thomson 
Cultural Policy and Partnerships Manager 
lthomson@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522499  
 

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

  
  

  
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

 

  
7

- 
E

H
R

IA
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 a

n
d

  
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
n

in
g

  
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 T

it
le

 
 

C
u

lt
u

re
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 2
0

1
6

/1
7
 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

n
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

 
    

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

A
s

 a
 r

e
s

u
lt

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

n
g

 t
h

is
 a

s
s

e
s
s

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

a
t 

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 o
r 

re
d

u
c

e
 a

n
y
 r

is
k

s
 o

f 
a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

. 
 

 I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 t
o

 w
h

o
m

: 
 

 
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

: 
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

L
e

a
d

: 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
a

te
: 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

D
a

te
: 

 A
c

ti
v
it

ie
s

 d
e

s
c

ri
b

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 d
o

 
n

o
t 

re
fl

e
c

t 
th

e
 d

iv
e

rs
e

 m
a

k
e

 u
p

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it

y
 

    T
e

n
d

e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

p
e

n
 a

p
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 d

e
s

c
ri

b
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 
re

p
o

rt
 d

o
 n

o
t 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 
a

p
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

o
s

e
 w

it
h

 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c

te
ri

s
ti

c
s
 

 A
c

ti
v
it

ie
s

 h
a

p
p

e
n

 i
n

 s
p

a
c

e
s

 w
h

ic
h

 
re

s
tr

ic
t 

a
c

c
e

s
s
 o

r 
o

th
e

rw
is

e
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c

e
 

  

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

to
 e

n
s

u
re

 
p

ro
te

c
te

d
 c

h
a

ra
c

te
ri

s
ti

c
s

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

re
 

fu
ll

y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 a
s

 t
h

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

s
. 

S
p

e
c

if
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

e
le

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 

ta
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
. 
 

  W
id

e
 a

d
v
e

rt
is

in
g

 o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

 
a

n
d

 s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
, 
c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
s

 m
a

d
e
 

a
v
a

il
a

b
le

  
   F

u
ll

 r
is

k
 a

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
c
c

e
s
s

 
c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

P
o

li
c

y
 a

n
d

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

    A
s

 a
b

o
v
e

 
     A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 

O
n

g
o

in
g

 
       A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 
     A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

       A
s

 a
b

o
v
e

 
     A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 

Page 115



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

   
   

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

   

8
: 

S
ig

n
 o

ff
 

 

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
  

(N
a

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

) 
: 

 

Le
sl

e
y
 T

h
o

m
so

n
, 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 
P

o
li

cy
 a

n
d

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

 S
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
 b

y
 (

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
) 

: 
 

N
e

il
 B

ru
ce

, 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
C

u
lt

u
re

 

 O
n

ly
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 7

 a
n
d

 8
  
w

ill
 b

e
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 

 T
h
e

 f
u

ll 
E

H
R

IA
  

w
ill

 b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 o
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 u
n
d

e
r 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/x

e
q
_

E
H

R
IA

_
S

e
a

rc
h

.a
s
p
 

 P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

n
d

 a
n

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 f

o
rm

a
t 
o
f 

th
e

 f
u

ll 
E

H
R

IA
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
s
ig

n
a

tu
re

 t
o

 S
H

o
w

a
rd

@
a

b
e

rd
e

e
n

c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

    

Page 116



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Education & Children’s Services  
 
DATE  2 June 2016 
  
DIRECTOR  Education & Children’s Services 
  
TITLE OF REPORT   The Draft Strategy for an Active Aberdeen, 

2016 - 20 
  
REPORT NUMBER ECS/16/029 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED     Yes 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
To present to members the Draft Strategy for an Active Aberdeen and 
seek their views. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
That members note the current draft Strategy for an Active Aberdeen 
and provide their comments as a key element in the consultation 
process and note that the final Strategy will be submitted to a future 
meeting, for the Committee to note. 
 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Any revenue or capital funding implications for the Strategy for an 
Active Aberdeen will be met from the budgets of the Active Aberdeen 
Partnership members.  In the case of the City Council, this will be 
through the work of Sport Aberdeen who are charged with the delivery 
of sport and physical activity services on behalf of the City.  In addition, 
it is anticipated that external funding bids will be made to a range of 
funders for new projects that will help to deliver the Strategy Outcomes. 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no known legal implications arising from the Strategy.  The 
resource, personnel, property, equipment, sustainability and 
environmental, health and safety and/or policy implications for the 
Strategy will be managed by the Active Aberdeen Partnership 
members utilising their existing provision and any additional external 

Agenda Item 6.4

Page 117



 
 

support that is secured by them as a Partnership or as individual 
agencies.    
 
 

5. THE STRATEGY FOR AN ACTIVE ABERDEEN 
 
The Strategy for an Active Aberdeen is for the period 2016 to 2020 and 
will be driven and delivered by the Active Aberdeen Partnership, which 
currently comprises the following members: 
Aberdeen City Council 
Aberdeen Football Club Community Trust 
Aberdeen Snowsports Centre 
Aberdeen Sports Village 
Aberdeen University 
Health & Social Care Partnership 
Robert Gordon University 
Sport Aberdeen 
Sportscotland 
 
The Strategy leads on from the previous Sport and Physical Activity 
Strategy for Aberdeen City, Fit for the Future, which ran from 2009 to 
2015.  A number of key achievements took place during the lifetime of 
Fit for the Future, notably the creation of Aberdeen Sports Village with 
its impressive range of facilities and multi-agency initiatives such as the 
Golden Games. 
 
In producing the new Strategy there is a recognition that it needs to 
align strategically at both a national and local level.  Nationally, the 
Strategy has adopted the Active Scotland Outcomes Framework which 
identifies six key Outcomes that will be measured using national data 
and local proxy measures. These are as follows: 

• We encourage and enable the inactive to be more active 

• We encourage and enable the active to stay active throughout 

life 

• We develop physical confidence and competence from the 

earliest age 

• We improve our active infrastructure – people and places 

• We support wellbeing and resilience in communities through 

physical activity and sport 

• We improve opportunities to participate, progress and achieve in 

sport 

At a local level, it is intended that the Strategy will contribute toward the 
achievement of a number of the City Council’s high level priorities 
aimed at becoming a Smarter City, namely: 
 
Smarter Governance (Participation)  

• We will….. promote civic pride, active citizenship and resilience. 

Page 118



 
 

Smarter Living (Quality of Life) 

• We will enhance the physical and emotional wellbeing of all our 
citizens by offering support and activities which promote 
independence, resilience, confidence and self-esteem. 

• We will work with our partners to seek to reduce the levels of 
inequality in the city. 

• We will promote and improve opportunities for physical activity 
and sport to enable Aberdeen's citizens to lead more active, 
healthier lives. 

Smarter People (Social and Human Capital) 

• We will….. improve attainment and life chances of our children 
and young people to achieve their full potential in education, 
employment or training. 

• We will aim to have a workforce across the city which has the 
skills and knowledge to sustain, grow and diversify the city 
economy. 

Smarter Environment (Natural Resources) 

• We will encourage wider access to green space in our streets, 
parks and countryside.  

Smarter Mobility (Transport and ICT) 

• We will encourage cycling and walking. 

• We will provide and promote a sustainable transport system, 
including cycling, which reduces our carbon emissions. 

 
The Strategy for an Active Aberdeen is ambitious and aspirational with 
a Vision to be the most active City in Scotland by 2020 and a Mission 
Statement that aims to ‘Activate the City’.  The latter is aligned to a 
national level campaign and the Partnership is keen to play its part in 
contributing to a more ‘Active Scotland’. 
 
It is intended that the delivery of the Strategy will: 
 
Increase the number of people who participate in sport and physical 
activity by: 

• Delivering a major marketing campaign to encourage individuals 
and organisations to pledge to ‘Activate the City’ and be more 
active, more often 

• Supporting the inactive to become active and reducing the size of 
the sedentary population 

• Advocating healthy workplaces and active commuting to help 
people build sport and physical activity into their daily routine 

• Developing pathways that enable those who wish to progress and 
achieve by working with sportscotland and National Governing 
Bodies of Sport  

 
Invest in our infrastructure of people and places by: 

• Improving the quality of the sports facilities across Aberdeen, 
generating investment where it will have the most impact 

Page 119



 
 

• Developing more coaches, officials and volunteers to build the 
capacity of our sporting infrastructure 

• Supporting our clubs to provide a welcoming and safe environment 

• Fostering a culture of collaboration between agencies to ensure that 
there is a comprehensive, cohesive and co-ordinated sport and 
physical activity offer for our communities 

 
Be Inclusive, delivering programmes that meet the needs of the entire 
community by: 

• Ensuring that all areas of the City and everyone in our communities 
has access to opportunities to participate in a range of activities 

• Improving health inequalities, targeting the least active in areas of 
need 

• Using sport and physical activity as a tool to achieve social 
outcomes such as community safety, learning opportunities, health 
improvements and regeneration 

• Supporting those with disabilities or with long-term health conditions 
to be more active 

 
The development of the Strategy to date has involved extensive 
consultation with agencies involved in sport, physical activity, health, 
education, local and national government. The Active Aberdeen 
Partnership is currently finalising the Action Plan that sits behind the 
Strategy before undertaking a further round of community level 
consultation to ensure that it is capable of having a real impact within 
our communities that are most in need. 
 
Work is already taking place within the Active Aberdeen Partnership to 
put in place a number of ‘building blocks’ that will be necessary for the 
development of a sustainable Strategy.  These will include the 
establishment of strong leadership, governance and reporting 
mechanisms, determining Priority Sports and robust Data Collection 
processes. It is anticipated that the Strategy for an Active Aberdeen will 
be launched at the end of the summer, 2016. 
 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
Improving Customer Experience – the Strategy is committed to 
providing the communities of Aberdeen with high quality services and 
opportunities to participate in sport and physical activity across the City. 
It will have a strong emphasis on equality and inclusion, aiming to find 
ways to engage the ‘hard to reach’. The largest health gains and 
reductions in health inequalities will arise from helping the inactive to 
become more active. 
 
At the other end of the spectrum, those with talent and committed to 
achieve in sport will be supported through pathways and packages that 
will enable them to represent their City, Region and Country.  The 
Strategy recognises that sport and physical activity doesn’t happen 

Page 120



 
 

purely through the public and private sector provision. There is a very 
large voluntary sector commitment to sport and physical activity and 
the Strategy will contain a range of actions designed to help clubs in 
their development, guide them on improving the customer experience 
and work with them to recruit, train and deploy more coaches, officials 
and volunteers, all of which helps to build strong cohesive 
communities. 
 
Improving Staff Experience – City Council staff, alongside the staff 
across the Partnership are key to the delivery of the Strategy. There 
are a number of key Council Departments that will have a significant 
impact on the Strategy and the outcomes. In seeking to ‘Activate the 
City’ the Partnership will be encouraging all major employers in 
Aberdeen to pledge their commitment to the campaign and take direct 
action in encouraging their staff to be more active and lead healthier 
lives. This will have an impact on the staff experience and is likely to 
lead to more confident, capable, engaged and committed employees. 
 
Improving our use of Resources – the ability of the Partnership to 
work strategically and help to eradicate duplication will be an essential 
requirement. Defining who takes responsibility for delivery of which 
areas of work will enable a transformation in the way that all of the 
agencies involved work. There will potentially be economies of scale in 
purchasing and without doubt, the range of partners involved will open 
up external funding streams that would not have been accessible to the 
Council alone. A very simple example will be the future viability of 
training courses due to the critical mass of having each partner commit 
to providing delegates. 
 
Corporate – links to the Smarter City vision and priorities have been 
identified earlier in the report. The Underlying Principles of the 
Community Planning process all accord with the Strategy for an Active 
Aberdeen and there is engagement of Active Aberdeen Partnership 
members within the Community Planning Framework specifically on the 
Health & Wellbeing Thematic Group, which has enabled connections to 
be made with, for example, Transport colleagues, who will have a role 
to play in the Strategy on active commuting and encouraging walking 
and cycling.  
 
Public – an Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA) 
has been completed for this report and has been made available to 
members. 
 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

The Active Aberdeen Partnership will take responsibility for the 
management of risks related to the Strategy for an Active Aberdeen.  
 
 

Page 121



 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 Fit for the Future 2009-15 
 Draft Strategy for an Active Aberdeen 2016 - 2020 
 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Simon Starr, Interim Sport & Physical Activity Director, Sport Aberdeen, 
sstarr@sportaberdeen.co.uk 01224 577740  

Page 122



    

1
 

 

T
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

a
n

 A
ct

iv
e

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

2
0

1
6

 -
 2

0
2

0
 

  

O
u

r 
V

is
io

n
: 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 i

s 
th

e
 m

o
st

 a
ct

iv
e

 c
it

y
 i

n
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 b

y
 2

0
2

0
 

 

O
u

r 
M

is
si

o
n

: 

T
o

 A
ct

iv
a

te
 t

h
e

 C
it

y
 

   
 

Page 123



    

2
 

 

 

T
h

e
 A

ct
iv

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
il

l:
 

In
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i

n
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

it
y 

b
y:

 

•
 

D
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 t
o

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
n

d
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
to

 p
le

d
g

e
 t

o
 ‘

A
ct

iv
a

te
 t

h
e

 C
it

y
’ 

a
n

d
 b

e
 m

o
re

 a
ct

iv
e

, 
m

o
re

 o
ft

e
n

 

•
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

n
a

b
li

n
g

 t
h

e
 i

n
a

ct
iv

e
 t

o
 b

e
co

m
e

 a
ct

iv
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
ci

n
g

 t
h

e
 s

iz
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
e

d
e

n
ta

ry
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

•
 

A
d

v
o

ca
ti

n
g

 h
e

a
lt

h
y 

w
o

rk
p

la
ce

s 
a

n
d

 a
ct

iv
e

 c
o

m
m

u
ti

n
g

 t
o

 h
e

lp
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
u

il
d

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

ir
 d

a
il

y
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
 

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 p
a

th
w

a
ys

 t
h

a
t 

e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
o

se
 w

h
o

 w
is

h
 t

o
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 a
n

d
 a

ch
ie

v
e

, 
re

a
ch

 t
h

e
ir

 g
o

a
ls

, 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 s

p
o

rt
sc

o
tl

a
n

d
 a

n
d

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 

B
o

d
ie

s 
o

f 
S

p
o

rt
  

 In
v

e
st

 i
n

 o
u

r 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 p

la
ce

s 
b

y
: 

•
 

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 s
p

o
rt

s 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
, 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

n
g

 i
n

ve
st

m
e

n
t 

w
h

e
re

 i
t 

w
il

l 
h

a
v

e
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 im

p
a

ct
 

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 m
o

re
 c

o
a

ch
e

s,
 o

ff
ic

ia
ls

 a
n

d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 t
o

 b
u

il
d

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 o

f 
o

u
r 

sp
o

rt
in

g
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

•
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
u

r 
cl

u
b

s 
a

n
d

 g
ro

u
p

s 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 w
e

lc
o

m
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
a

fe
 e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 

•
 

F
o

st
e

ri
n

g
 a

 c
u

lt
u

re
 o

f 
co

ll
a

b
o

ra
ti

o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 is

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

v
e

, 
co

h
e

si
ve

 a
n

d
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 o

ff
e

r 
fo

r 
o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

 B
e

 I
n

cl
u

si
v

e
, 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
th

a
t 

m
e

e
t 

th
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti

re
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 b

y:
 

•
 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
 a

n
d

 e
v

e
ry

o
n

e
 i

n
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

h
a

s 
a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i

n
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 

•
 

A
d

d
re

ss
in

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s,

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 l
e

a
st

 a
ct

iv
e

 i
n

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

n
e

e
d

 

•
 

U
si

n
g

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 a
s 

a
 t

o
o

l t
o

 a
ch

ie
v

e
 s

o
ci

a
l o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

a
fe

ty
, 

le
a

rn
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s,
 h

e
a

lt
h

 im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

•
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
h

o
se

 w
it

h
 d

is
a

b
il

it
ie

s 
o

r 
w

it
h

 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

to
 b

e
 m

o
re

 a
ct

iv
e

 

 T
h

e
se

 t
h

re
e

 t
h

e
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 O
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
o

u
tl

in
e

d
 w

il
l 

fo
rm

 t
h

e
 b

a
si

s 
o

f 
th

e
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

s 
th

a
t 

a
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 

 
 

Page 124



    

3
 

 S
co

tt
is

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
t’

s 
A

ct
iv

e
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

T
h

e
 A

ct
iv

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
is

h
e

s 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

 f
o

r 
a

n
 A

ct
iv

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 a
li

g
n

s 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
 t

h
e

 S
co

tt
is

h
 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t’

s 
A

ct
iv

e
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
. 

T
h

e
re

fo
re

 o
u

r 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

s 
w

il
l 

re
fe

re
n

ce
 e

a
ch

 o
f 

th
e

 s
ix

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
b

e
lo

w
. 

W
e

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 

a
ct

iv
e

 t
o

 s
ta

y
 a

ct
iv

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

li
fe

W
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

co
n

fi
d

e
n

ce
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

e
te

n
ce

 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 e
a

rl
ie

st
 a

g
e

P
h

y
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

it
y

 i
s 

a
b

o
u

t
g

e
tt

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 m

o
v

in
g

.
D

a
il

y
 w

a
lk

in
g

, 
p

la
y

in
g

 i
n

 a
 p

a
rk

, 
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 a

 g
y

m
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
 w

it
h

 a
 t

e
a

m
 o

r 
a

sp
ir

in
g

 t
o

 w
in

 a
 

g
o

ld
 m

e
d

a
l-

it
 d

o
e

sn
’t

 r
e

a
ll

y
 m

a
tt

e
r 

h
o

w
 p

e
o

p
le

 g
e

t 
a

ct
iv

e
, 

it
 j

u
st

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 t

h
a

t
w

e
d

o
.

B
e

in
g

 p
h

y
si

ca
ll

y
 a

ct
iv

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

s
to

o
u

r 
p

e
rs

o
n

a
l,

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
. 

O
u

r 
v

is
io

n
 i

s 
o

f 
a

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 m
o

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 m
o

re
a

ct
iv

e
, 

m
o

re
 o

ft
e

n
.

W
e

 im
p

ro
v

e
 o

u
r 

a
ct

iv
e

 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 –
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 

p
la

ce
s

W
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 

re
si

li
e

n
ce

 in
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s

th
ro

u
g

h
 

p
h

y
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

it
y

 a
n

d
 s

p
o

rt

W
e

 im
p

ro
v

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
to

 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
, 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 a

n
d

 

a
ch

ie
v

e
 in

 s
p

o
rt

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 –
O

u
r 

co
m

m
it

m
e

n
t 

to
 e

q
u

a
li

ty
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
s 

e
v

e
ry

th
in

g
 w

e
 d

o

V
is

io
n

: 
A

 M
o

re
 A

ct
iv

e
 S

co
tl

a
n

d

A
ct

iv
e

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s

W
e

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

   

in
a

ct
iv

e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 a
ct

iv
e

 

Page 125



    

4
 

 E
x

e
cu

ti
v

e
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
  

 T
h

e
 A

ct
iv

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 f

o
rm

a
ll

y
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 p

ro
v

id
e

s 
th

e
 c

a
ta

ly
st

 f
o

r 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
to

 c
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
te

 i
n

 w
a

y
s 

th
a

t 

h
e

lp
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 a
ct

iv
e

 c
it

y 
in

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

. 
 B

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 b
e

tt
e

r 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

e
 c

a
n

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

 o
u

r 
re

so
u

rc
e

s 
a

n
d

 o
u

r 
e

xp
e

rt
is

e
 t

o
 p

ro
v

id
e

 t
h

e
 

p
e

o
p

le
 o

f 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 w
it

h
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
a

n
d

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

to
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 b
e

 m
o

re
 a

ct
iv

e
, 

m
o

re
 o

ft
e

n
. 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 w

il
l:

 

•
 

In
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i

n
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

it
y 

•
 

In
v

e
st

 i
n

 o
u

r 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 p

la
ce

s 

•
 

B
e

 I
n

cl
u

si
ve

, 
d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

th
a

t 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

th
e

 e
n

ti
re

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 o

u
r 

le
a

d
 f

ro
m

 r
e

se
a

rc
h

 a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l a

n
d

 l
o

ca
l 

p
o

li
ci

e
s,

 (
A

p
p

e
n

d
ic

e
s 

1
, 

2
 a

n
d

 3
) 

a
ll 

p
o

in
ti

n
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

u
s 

to
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
e

 a
n

d
 t

o
 i

n
ve

st
 i

n
 

g
e

tt
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 m
o

re
 a

ct
iv

e
 f

o
r 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

so
ci

a
l o

u
tc

o
m

e
s.

  
A

 w
o

rr
y

in
g

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 a

re
 n

o
t 

th
o

u
g

h
t 

to
 b

e
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 

m
in

im
u

m
 g

u
id

e
li

n
e

s 
fo

r 
P

h
y

si
ca

l 
A

ct
iv

it
y

 (
G

u
id

e
li

n
e

s 
co

n
ta

in
e

d
 i

n
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 4
).

 

O
u

r 
M

is
si

o
n

 i
s 

v
e

ry
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s 

a
n

d
 i

n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 s
tr

o
n

g
 f

o
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s 
w

e
 h

a
v

e
 t

a
k

e
n

 t
h

e
 u

n
u

su
a

l 
st

e
p

 o
f 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
in

g
 a

 “
Y

e
a

r 
Z

e
ro

" 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 t
o

 

g
e

t 
o

u
r 

b
u

il
d

in
g

 b
lo

ck
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v

id
e

 a
 f

ir
m

 p
la

tf
o

rm
 t

o
 a

tt
a

ck
 t

h
e

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

 D
u

ri
n

g
 Y

e
a

r 
Z

e
ro

 t
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

il
l 

st
re

n
g

th
e

n
 i

ts
 

st
ru

ct
u

re
, 

d
e

ve
lo

p
 it

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

, 
p

la
n

 a
h

e
a

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 k

e
y

 m
e

ss
a

g
e

s.
  

A
ll 

in
 p

re
p

a
ra

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 r
e

le
a

se
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

e
a

r 
1

 A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
. 

W
e

 w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t

o
 s

in
ce

re
ly

 t
h

a
n

k
 a

ll
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 c
o

n
su

lt
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

is
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

a
n

d
 w

e
 h

o
p

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

e
 h

a
v

e
 r

e
fl

e
ct

e
d

 t
h

e
ir

 v
ie

w
s 

a
cc

u
ra

te
ly

; 
th

e
y 

a
re

 l
is

te
d

 in
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 7
. 

  
 

Page 126



    

5
 

 T
h

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

a
n

 A
ct

iv
e

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 

In
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i

n
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 b

y
: 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 
A

S
O

F
 R

e
f 

T
a

sk
s 

T
a

rg
e

t 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

T
im

e
 

D
e

li
v

e
ri

n
g

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 

ca
m

p
a

ig
n

 t
o

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 a

n
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

to
 p

le
d

g
e

 t
o

 “
A

ct
iv

a
te

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

” 

a
n

d
 b

e
 m

o
re

 a
ct

iv
e

, 
m

o
re

 

o
ft

e
n

  

1
, 

2
 

E
n

g
a

g
e

 m
e

d
ia

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

La
u

n
ch

 t
h

e
 A

ct
iv

a
te

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

 c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 

P
u

b
li

ci
se

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
sp

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 

C
re

a
te

 e
v

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s,

 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 t

o
 s

ig
n

 t
h

e
 p

le
d

g
e

 

1
0

0
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
e

s 
a

n
d

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

si
g

n
 t

h
e

 p
le

d
g

e
 t

o
 A

ct
iv

a
te

 t
h

e
 

C
it

y
 

5
0

0
0

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 s
ig

n
 t

h
e

 p
le

d
g

e
 

to
 A

ct
iv

a
te

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

 

 

A
A

P
 

2
0

1
6

-1
7

 

 
1

, 
2

, 
6

 
C

a
p

tu
re

, 
p

u
b

li
sh

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 p
o

si
ti

ve
 c

a
se

 s
tu

d
ie

s 

d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
sp

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
, 

th
e

 e
v

e
n

ts
 h

e
ld

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
u

cc
e

ss
e

s 
a

ch
ie

ve
d

  

O
n

e
 p

re
ss

 r
e

le
a

se
 p

e
r 

m
o

n
th

 

d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 t

o
 A

A
P

 p
ro

g
re

ss
 a

n
d

 

ta
rg

e
ts

 

A
A

P
 

2
0

1
7

-2
0

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

n
a

b
li

n
g

 t
h

e
 

in
a

ct
iv

e
 t

o
 b

e
co

m
e

 a
ct

iv
e

 a
n

d
 

re
d

u
ci

n
g

 t
h

e
 s

iz
e

 o
f 

th
e

 

se
d

e
n

ta
ry

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 

1
, 

2
, 

3
, 

6
 

R
e

d
u

ce
 t

h
e

 %
 o

f 
in

a
ct

iv
e

 a
d

u
lt

s 
a

n
d

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

in
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 f
re

q
u

e
n

cy
 o

f 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

, 
d

e
li

ve
ri

n
g

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

re
fl

e
ct

in
g

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

th
e

 i
n

a
ct

iv
e

 e
g

 

w
a

lk
in

g
, 

lo
w

 i
m

p
a

ct
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
ci

a
li

st
 c

la
ss

e
s 

fo
r 

a
d

u
lt

s 
a

n
d

 

ch
il

d
re

n
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
o

se
 

w
it

h
 l

o
n

g
 t

e
rm

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

In
a

ct
iv

e
 a

d
u

lt
s 

a
t 

2
0

%
 o

r 
le

ss
 

In
a

ct
iv

e
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 a

t 
5

%
 o

r 
le

ss
 

R
e

cr
e

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

w
a

lk
in

g
 a

t 
7

0
%

 

A
A

P
  

2
0

1
7

-2
0

 

 
1

, 
6

 
T

h
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it

ie
s 

w
il

l 
in

cr
e

a
se

 t
h

e
 l

e
v

e
l 

o
f 

in
a

ct
iv

e
 

st
u

d
e

n
ts

’ 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 b
y

 p
ro

vi
d

in
g

 a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

so
ci

a
l 

a
n

d
 r

e
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 s
e

ss
io

n
s 

S
tu

d
e

n
t 

sp
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 b

y
 

5
%

 

A
S

V
  

R
G

U
 

 

2
0

1
7

-2
0

 

 
1

, 
2

 
In

cr
e

a
se

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
ce

 a
t 

le
is

u
re

 f
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
b

y
 a

ll
 p

ro
vi

d
e

rs
 

o
ff

e
ri

n
g

 c
re

a
ti

ve
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
to

 a
tt

ra
ct

 n
e

w
 u

se
rs

 

In
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

vi
si

ts
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 b
y

 1
0

%
 a

t 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
’s

 p
u

b
li

c 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s 

A
A

P
 

 

2
0

1
7

 -
2

0
 

 
1

, 
2

, 
3

, 
6

 
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 a
ll

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 i

n
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

q
u

a
li

ty
 P

E
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y

 c
a

n
 a

ll
 s

u
st

a
in

 

th
e

ir
 i

n
vo

lv
e

m
e

n
t.

  
P

u
p

il
s 

w
it

h
 d

is
a

b
il

it
ie

s 
a

re
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
d

 

in
 P

E
 c

la
ss

e
s,

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
ir

 l
iv

e
s 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

sc
h

o
o

ls
 

A
C

C
  

P
E

LO
 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

 
1

, 
2

, 
3

, 
4

 
E

n
h

a
n

ce
 P

E
 p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 p
h

ys
ic

a
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 b

y
 

e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 e
ve

ry
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
ch

o
o

l 
to

 a
p

p
o

in
t 

a
 s

p
e

ci
a

li
st

 

P
E

 T
e

a
ch

e
r 

o
r 

P
E

 L
e

a
d

 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

ch
o

o
ls

 b
y

 2
0

2
0

 
A

A
P

 

A
A

C
 

A
S

 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

Page 127



    

6
 

  
1

, 
2

, 
3

, 
6

 
E

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 a
ll

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 i

n
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 a

 

m
in

im
u

m
 o

f 
3

 e
xt

ra
-c

u
rr

ic
u

la
r 

p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 o

r 
sp

o
rt

 

se
ss

io
n

s 
p

e
r 

w
e

e
k

 t
o

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 c
y

cl
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 

a
d

ve
n

tu
re

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

1
0

0
%

 o
f 

a
ll

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 

A
S

  

A
C

C
  

A
d

v 
A

b
 

T
E

 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

 
1

, 
3

, 
5

 
P

ro
vi

d
e

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

v
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a

ct
iv

e
 p

la
y

 f
o

r 

ch
il

d
re

n
 b

u
t 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 t
h

o
se

 m
o

st
 i

n
 n

e
e

d
 

5
5

%
 o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 

A
A

P
 

2
0

1
7

 –
 2

0
 

 
1

, 
3

, 
5

 
W

o
rk

 w
it

h
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 a

n
d

 A
ct

iv
e

 S
ch

o
o

ls
 t

o
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 

ch
il

d
re

n
’s

 a
ct

iv
e

 t
ra

v
e

l 
to

 s
ch

o
o

l 

5
5

%
 o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

 w
a

lk
in

g
 a

n
d

 

cy
cl

in
g

 t
o

 s
ch

o
o

l 

A
A

P
 

A
A

C
 

A
S

 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

 
3

 
T

h
e

 N
H

S
 i

n
fo

rm
s 

n
e

w
 p

a
re

n
ts

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 t

h
e

ir
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 t

o
 b

e
 p

h
y

si
ca

ll
y

 a
ct

iv
e

 

 
A

A
P

 

N
H

S
 

H
S

C
P

 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

 
3

 
U

se
 t

h
e

 C
u

rr
ic

u
lu

m
 f

o
r 

E
xc

e
ll

e
n

ce
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 b

e
co

m
e

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

l 
le

a
rn

e
rs

, 

co
n

fi
d

e
n

t 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

, 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 c
it

iz
e

n
s 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 

co
n

tr
ib

u
to

rs
 i

n
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 s

e
tt

in
g

s 

R
e

-c
o

n
fi

g
u

re
d

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 f
o

r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 m
a

tc
h

 t
h

e
 

o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
o

f 
th

e
 C

u
rr

ic
u

lu
m

 f
o

r 

E
xc

e
ll

e
n

ce
 

A
A

P
 

2
0

2
0

 

 
1

, 
6

 
D

e
li

ve
r 

sp
o

rt
 o

u
tr

e
a

ch
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
fo

r 
th

o
se

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

u
n

li
k

e
ly

 t
o

 j
o

in
 t

ra
d

it
io

n
a

l 
cl

u
b

s 
o

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 

6
 n

e
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

e
a

ch
 y

e
a

r 

5
0

%
 o

f 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 t
a

rg
e

t 

g
ro

u
p

s 

A
A

P
  

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

A
d

v
o

ca
ti

n
g

 h
e

a
lt

h
y

 w
o

rk
p

la
ce

s 

a
n

d
 a

ct
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 

p
e

o
p

le
 b

u
il

d
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
ir

 d
a

il
y

 r
o

u
ti

n
e

 

1
, 

2
, 

4
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 W

o
rk

p
la

ce
 C

h
a

ll
e

n
g

e
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
in

cr
e

a
si

n
g

 

a
ct

iv
e

 t
ra

ve
l 

a
n

d
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
re

 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s’

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

d
e

si
g

n
e

d
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
ve

 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 w
h

ic
h

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 a

ct
iv

e
 c

o
m

m
u

ti
n

g
  

7
5

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 

3
0

0
0

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s 

e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 

3
0

0
 e

m
p

lo
y

e
e

s 
sw

it
ch

in
g

 t
o

 

a
ct

iv
e

 c
o

m
m

u
ti

n
g

 

2
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

su
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 

A
A

P
 

A
C

C
 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

   

 

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
a

th
w

a
y

s 
th

a
t 

e
n

a
b

le
 

th
o

se
 w

h
o

 w
is

h
 t

o
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 

a
n

d
 a

ch
ie

v
e

, 
re

a
ch

 t
h

e
ir

 g
o

a
ls

, 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 s
p

o
rt

sc
o

tl
a

n
d

 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 N
G

B
s 

1
, 

2
, 

6
 

N
G

B
s 

to
 m

a
p

 t
h

e
ir

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 p
a

th
w

a
y

s 
a

n
d

 p
la

n
s 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 t

o
 f

il
l 

a
n

y
 g

a
p

s 
  

P
la

n
s 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
s 

fr
o

m
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 t

o
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 s
p

o
rt

s 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

p
o

rt
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s 

m
a

p
p

e
d

 

a
n

d
 g

a
p

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 

A
A

P
 

N
G

B
 R

D
M

s 

ss
 

 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

 
4

, 
6

 
D

e
si

g
n

 a
 p

a
ck

a
g

e
 f

o
r 

ta
le

n
te

d
 a

th
le

te
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

ir
 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t,

 t
ra

ve
l,

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 n
e

e
d

s 
e

tc
 

2
0

 a
th

le
te

s 
su

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

cu
re

d
 

A
n

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 A
b

e
rd

o
n

ia
n

s 

re
p

re
se

n
ti

n
g

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

 

A
A

P
 

N
G

B
 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

Page 128



    

7
 

 In
v

e
st

 i
n

 o
u

r 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 p

la
ce

s 
b

y
: 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 
A

S
O

F
 R

e
f 

T
a

sk
s 

T
a

rg
e

t 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

T
im

e
 

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 

sp
o

rt
s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
, 

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

n
g

 

in
v

e
st

m
e

n
t 

w
h

e
re

 i
t 

w
il

l 
h

a
v

e
 

th
e

 m
o

st
 i

m
p

a
ct

 

4
 

B
u

il
d

 m
o

re
 a

rt
if

ic
ia

l 
sp

o
rt

s 
su

rf
a

ce
s 

to
 m

o
v

e
 o

u
td

o
o

r 
to

 

cr
e

a
te

 c
a

p
a

ci
ty

 f
o

r 
in

d
o

o
r 

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

 C
re

a
te

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 f
o

r 
w

a
lk

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

y
cl

in
g

 

in
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
u

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

cr
e

a
ti

o
n

. 

3
 n

e
w

 3
G

 p
it

ch
e

s 
co

n
st

ru
ct

e
d

 

1
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
5

 a
si

d
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
 i

n
 

p
la

ce
 

Im
p

ro
ve

d
 w

a
lk

in
g

 a
n

d
 c

y
cl

in
g

 

ro
u

te
s 

A
A

P
 

S
A

 

A
C

C
 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

 
4

 
N

e
w

 s
ch

o
o

l 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s 
“d

e
si

g
n

 i
n

” 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

 u
se

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 s
ch

o
o

l 
e

st
a

te
 i

s 
u

se
d

 m
o

re
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
ly

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y

 

N
e

w
 s

e
co

n
d

a
ry

 s
ch

o
o

l 
e

st
a

te
s 

h
a

ve
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
-u

se
 s

p
o

rt
s 

fa
ci

li
ty

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 

A
C

C
  

2
0

2
0

 

 
1

, 
4

 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

d
 i

n
ve

st
 i

n
 g

re
e

n
 s

p
a

ce
s,

 p
a

rk
s,

 p
la

y
 a

re
a

s,
 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 t

h
a

t 
ca

n
 b

e
 

m
a

in
ta

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 m
a

d
e

 a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

 t
o

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

ys
ic

a
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 S

7
5

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 t
h

a
t 

in
ve

st
s 

in
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

th
a

t 
e

n
a

b
le

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 s

p
o

rt
 &

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 

In
cr

e
a

se
d

 u
se

 o
f 

in
d

o
o

r 
a

n
d

 

o
u

td
o

o
r 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

  S
7

5
 i

n
v

e
st

m
e

n
t 

in
to

 s
p

o
rt

 &
 

p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

 

A
A

P
 

   A
C

C
 

S
A

 

2
0

2
0

 

 
4

, 
5

 
D

e
ci

d
e

 c
ri

te
ri

a
 t

o
 a

ll
o

w
 c

o
m

p
e

te
n

t 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

 g
ro

u
p

s 

to
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

p
o

rt
s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 E

m
p

o
w

e
rm

e
n

t 
S

co
tl

a
n

d
 A

ct
 

5
 A

ss
e

t 
T

ra
n

sf
e

r 
o

r 
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 

T
ra

n
sf

e
r 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 

A
A

P
 

A
C

C
 

2
0

2
0

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 m
o

re
 c

o
a

ch
e

s,
 

o
ff

ic
ia

ls
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 t

o
 

b
u

il
d

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
ci

ty
 o

f 
o

u
r 

sp
o

rt
in

g
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

4
, 

5
, 

6
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

e
te

n
t 

sp
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
  

D
e

p
lo

y
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
  

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
vi

d
e

rs
  

to
 c

re
a

te
 

st
a

ff
 t

h
a

t 
p

o
ss

e
ss

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

k
il

ls
 a

n
d

 

co
m

p
e

te
n

ci
e

s 
a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e

 r
e

te
n

ti
o

n
 o

f 
st

a
ff

  

A
ct

iv
e

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

8
0

%
 o

f 
A

ct
io

n
s 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 e
a

ch
 

y
e

a
r 

A
A

P
 

2
0

1
6

 -
 2

0
 

 
4

, 
5

, 
6

 
R

e
cr

u
it

, 
tr

a
in

, 
d

e
p

lo
y

 a
n

d
 r

e
ta

in
 m

o
re

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 t

o
 

d
e

li
v

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 d

a
ta

b
a

se
 t

h
a

t 
ca

n
 b

e
 s

h
a

re
d

 a
cr

o
ss

 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 u

ti
li

se
d

 f
o

r 
e

ve
n

ts
 

8
%

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 

vo
lu

n
te

e
rs

  

D
a

ta
b

a
se

 c
re

a
te

d
 

A
A

P
 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

 2
0

1
7

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
u

r 
cl

u
b

s 
to

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 w
e

lc
o

m
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
a

fe
 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

4
, 

5
 

C
re

a
te

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
 

vo
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

p
o

rt
s 

cl
u

b
s 

P
ro

vi
d

e
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 f
o

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

p
o

rt
s 

C
lu

b
s 

a
n

d
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
In

cl
u

si
o

n
 C

lu
b

 H
u

b
 t

ra
in

in
g

  

5
0

%
 o

f 
cl

u
b

s 
in

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

S
p

o
rt

s 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 t
o

 1
0

%
 o

f 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

p
o

rt
s 

cl
u

b
s 

e
a

ch
 

A
A

P
 

  

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

  

Page 129



    

8
 

 

In
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

cl
u

b
s 

w
it

h
 C

lu
b

C
a

p
 a

cc
re

d
it

a
ti

o
n

  

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
e

n
io

r 
cl

u
b

s 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 j
u

n
io

r 
se

ct
io

n
s 

 

y
e

a
r 

3
%

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 a
d

u
lt

 c
lu

b
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

s 

1
0

 s
e

n
io

r 
cl

u
b

s 
e

st
a

b
li

sh
 j

u
n

io
r 

se
ct

io
n

s 

5
%

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 i
n

 j
u

n
io

r 
cl

u
b

 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

s 

5
 n

e
w

 C
lu

b
C

a
p

 a
cc

re
d

it
a

ti
o

n
s 

e
a

ch
 y

e
a

r 

 
 

E
st

a
b

li
sh

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 S
p

o
rt

s 
H

u
b

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 C
it

y
 l

in
k

e
d

 

to
 t

h
e

 A
ct

iv
e

 S
ch

o
o

ls
 G

ro
u

p
s 

6
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

p
o

rt
s 

H
u

b
s 

cr
e

a
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 A
ct

iv
e

 S
ch

o
o

ls
 

N
e

tw
o

rk
 

A
A

P
 

A
S

 

ss
 

2
0

1
6

 -
 1

9
 

F
o

st
e

ri
n

g
 a

 c
u

lt
u

re
 o

f 

co
ll

a
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i

s 

a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

v
e

, 
co

h
e

si
v

e
 a

n
d

 

co
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 o

ff
e

r 
fo

r 
o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

4
, 

6
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 a
n

d
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 S

p
o

rt
s 

F
a

ci
li

ty
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

D
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
m

a
d

e
 t

o
 r

a
ti

o
n

a
li

se
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 s
to

ck
 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

th
a

t 
w

il
l 

sp
e

ci
a

li
se

 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 S

p
o

rt
s 

H
a

ll
 s

p
o

rt
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 m

a
tc

h
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

ve
n

u
e

 t
o

 e
a

ch
 s

p
o

rt
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 a
p

p
ro

ve
d

 b
y

 A
A

P
 B

o
a

rd
 

F
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
ra

ti
o

n
a

li
se

d
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 s

p
o

rt
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

5
 s

p
o

rt
s 

m
a

tc
h

e
d

 w
it

h
 v

e
n

u
e

s 

A
A

P
 

2
0

1
6

 -
 2

0
 

 
4

 
In

tr
o

d
u

ce
 d

ig
it

a
l 

te
ch

n
o

lo
g

y
 t

o
 s

im
p

li
fy

 t
h

e
 b

o
o

k
in

g
 o

f 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 A

ct
iv

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 A
p

p
 

O
n

li
n

e
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 b
o

o
k

in
g

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
va

il
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

o
p

e
ra

te
d

 

b
y

 A
A

P
 

A
p

p
 d

e
si

g
n

e
d

 a
n

d
 l

a
u

n
ch

e
d

  

A
A

P
  

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

 
4

, 
6

 
E

ve
n

ts
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

it
y

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
, 

w
it

h
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

to
 

d
e

li
v

e
r 

it
 

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 A
C

C
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 B

ID
 t

o
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 p

a
ck

a
g

e
s 

to
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 e

ve
n

t 
b

id
d

in
g

  

E
ve

n
ts

 P
la

n
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 

C
it

y
 t

o
 h

o
st

 5
 m

a
jo

r 
e

v
e

n
ts

 p
e

r 

y
e

a
r 

B
id

 f
o

r 
o

n
e

 I
n

te
rn

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

e
v

e
n

t 

p
e

r 
y

e
a

r 

A
A

P
 

A
C

C
 

B
ID

 

2
0

1
6

 -
 2

0
 

   

Page 130



    

9
 

 B
e

 I
n

cl
u

si
v

e
, 

d
e

li
v

e
ri

n
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

th
a

t 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

th
e

 e
n

ti
re

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 b
y

: 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 
A

S
O

F
 R

e
f 

T
a

sk
s 

T
a

rg
e

t 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

T
im

e
 

E
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 

C
it

y
 a

n
d

 e
v

e
ry

o
n

e
 i

n
 o

u
r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

h
a

s 
a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 

in
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 

1
, 

2
, 

5
 

In
cr

e
a

se
 a

ct
iv

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

o
se

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
th

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 i
n

a
ct

iv
e

 b
y

 o
ff

e
ri

n
g

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
cl

u
si

ve
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

 

5
%

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 e
a

ch
 y

e
a

r 
in

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

E
ve

ry
 w

a
rd

 h
a

s 
a

t 
le

a
st

 7
 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 s

e
ss

io
n

s 

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 

A
A

P
 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

Im
p

ro
v

in
g

 h
e

a
lt

h
 

in
e

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s,
 t

a
rg

e
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 

le
a

st
 a

ct
iv

e
 i

n
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 
n

e
e

d
 

1
, 

5
 

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 G
P

s 
a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt

h
 s

e
ct

o
r 

to
 e

n
su

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

R
e

fe
rr

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 

 S
o

ci
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e

cr
e

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

se
ss

io
n

s 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 

in
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
re

a
s 

A
t 

le
a

st
 o

n
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 

in
 e

a
ch

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

re
a

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
 

A
t 

le
a

st
 o

n
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 

in
 e

a
ch

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

re
a

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
 

A
A

P
 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

U
si

n
g

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 a

s 
a

 t
o

o
l 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e

 

so
ci

a
l 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
su

ch
 a

s 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

a
fe

ty
, 

le
a

rn
in

g
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s,

 h
e

a
lt

h
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

1
, 

5
 

D
e

li
ve

r 
so

ci
a

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
in

 e
a

ch
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
re

a
 

o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
 

 M
e

a
su

re
 t

h
e

 S
o

ci
a

l 
R

e
tu

rn
 o

n
 I

n
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
(S

R
O

I)
 a

s 
a

 

w
a

y
 o

f 
d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

in
v

e
st

in
g

 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 

a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 t
o

 s
e

cu
re

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
ve

st
m

e
n

t 

A
t 

le
a

st
 o

n
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 

in
 e

a
ch

 t
a

rg
e

t 
a

re
a

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
 

S
R

O
I 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
£

5
0

k
 

se
cu

re
d

 

A
A

P
  

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 t
h

o
se

 w
it

h
 

d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

o
r 

w
it

h
 l

o
n

g
 t

e
rm

 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s 
to

 b
e

 m
o

re
 a

ct
iv

e
 

1
, 

5
 

W
o

rk
 t

o
w

a
rd

 a
ll

 F
it

n
e

ss
 g

y
m

s 
to

 b
e

 I
n

cl
u

si
v

e
 F

it
n

e
ss

 

In
it

ia
ti

ve
 c

o
m

p
li

a
n

t 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 A

S
N

 C
o

m
p

e
ti

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

 W
o

rk
 t

o
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
 n

e
w

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 c

lu
b

s 

D
e

li
ve

r 
In

cl
u

si
o

n
 C

lu
b

 H
u

b
 t

ra
in

in
g

 t
o

 l
o

ca
l 

sp
o

rt
s 

cl
u

b
s 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 t

o
 d

e
li

ve
r 

in
cl

u
si

v
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

A
ll

 C
it

y
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

IF
I 

co
m

p
li

a
n

t 

 3
 n

e
w

 s
p

o
rt

s 
a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 

co
m

p
e

ti
ti

o
n

 c
a

le
n

d
a

r 

3
 n

e
w

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 c

lu
b

s 

5
0

%
 o

f 
cl

u
b

s 
tr

a
in

e
d

 

1
0

0
 s

ta
ff

 a
n

d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 t
ra

in
e

d
 

A
A

P
 

A
S

 

 

2
0

1
7

 -
 2

0
 

 

  
 

Page 131



    

1
0

 

  P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 (

a
n

d
 a

b
b

re
v

ia
ti

o
n

s 
u

se
d

 a
b

o
v

e
) 

 A
ct

iv
e

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

A
A

P
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

A
C

C
 

A
d

v
e

n
tu

re
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 
A

d
v

 A
b

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 F

o
o

tb
a

ll 
C

lu
b

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 T
ru

st
 

A
F

C
 C

T
 

A
ct

iv
e

 S
ch

o
o

ls
 

A
S

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 S

n
o

w
sp

o
rt

s 
C

e
n

tr
e

 
A

S
C

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 S

p
o

rt
s 

V
il

la
g

e
 

A
S

V
 

C
u

rl
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 
C

A
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

N
H

S
 

N
o

rt
h

 E
a

st
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 C

o
ll

e
g

e
 

N
E

S
C

 

P
a

th
s 

fo
r 

A
ll 

P
F

A
 

P
E

 L
e

a
d

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
(A

C
C

) 
P

E
LO

 

R
o

b
e

rt
 G

o
rd

o
n

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y 
R

G
U

 

S
co

tt
is

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

in
g

 B
o

d
y 

R
e

g
io

n
a

l D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

N
G

B
 R

D
M

 

S
p

o
rt

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

S
A

 

sp
o

rt
sc

o
tl

a
n

d
 

ss
 

S
tr

e
e

tS
p

o
rt

 
S

t 
S

p
 

T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 E

xt
re

m
e

 
T

E
 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 o

f 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

  
U

o
A

 

 

Page 132



    

1
1

 

  A
n

 A
ct

iv
e

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

T
h

is
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 is

 f
o

r 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

. 
 I

t 
is

 n
o

t 
a

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 f
o

r 
a

 s
in

g
le

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

o
n

e
 t

h
a

t 
ta

k
e

s 
a

 m
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n

cy
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 w

it
h

 a
 m

ix
 o

f 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

ll
 o

f 
w

h
o

m
 

h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 v

is
io

n
s 

a
n

d
 b

u
si

n
e

ss
 p

la
n

s.
  

T
h

is
 i

s 
w

h
a

t 
m

a
k

e
s 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 u
n

iq
u

e
 a

n
d

 e
xc

it
in

g
. 

  H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it

 a
ls

o
 m

a
k

e
s 

it
 c

h
a

ll
e

n
g

in
g

 b
e

ca
u

se
 t

h
e

 

cr
e

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
 c

u
lt

u
re

 o
f 

tr
u

st
 a

n
d

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 a

m
o

n
g

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

, 
w

h
o

 c
o

m
p

e
te

 a
g

a
in

st
 e

a
ch

 o
th

e
r 

fo
r 

cu
st

o
m

e
rs

, 
is

 p
a

ra
m

o
u

n
t 

if
 t

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y 

is
 t

o
 b

e
 

su
cc

e
ss

fu
l 

a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
a

re
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
xi

m
is

e
d

. 
  

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
b

e
in

g
 o

ff
e

re
d

 a
cr

o
ss

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 b

y 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
, 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

a
re

 f
ra

g
m

e
n

te
d

, 

b
o

o
k

in
g

 is
 c

o
m

p
le

x 
a

n
d

 t
h

is
 c

a
n

 m
a

k
e

 i
t 

m
o

re
 d

if
fi

cu
lt

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 b
e

co
m

e
 i

n
v

o
lv

e
d

. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 t

h
e

 A
ct

iv
e

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 f
o

rm
a

lly
 a

n
d

 w
il

l 
fa

ci
li

ta
te

 a
 s

te
p

-c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 b
o

th
 t

h
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
li

ve
ry

 o
f 

sp
o

rt
 a

n
d

 

p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
. 

 W
it

h
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
ll

ia
n

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l,

 t
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

il
l 

a
ls

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 C
it

y
’s

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s,
 i

t 
w

il
l 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

e
xp

e
rt

 i
n

p
u

t 
to

, 
a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

r 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

th
a

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
im

s 
o

f 
th

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 S
in

g
le

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t,

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y

 H
e

a
lt

h
 &

 S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 
F

o
r 

th
is

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

 t
o

 b
e

 f
u

ll
y

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 t
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 a
n

 im
p

a
ct

 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

 o
f 

sp
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 w

il
l 

b
e

 e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 it

s 
o

b
je

ct
iv

e
s.

 

W
e

 w
a

n
t 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 e
a

rl
y

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

yo
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 b

e
co

m
e

 i
n

vo
lv

e
d

 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
ys

ic
a

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

, 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
so

m
e

b
o

d
y

 b
e

co
m

e
s 

in
v

o
lv

e
d

 t
h

e
n

 t
h

e
y

 c
a

n
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
h

e
ir

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

ir
 l

if
e

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y 
ca

n
 a

ls
o

 s
w

o
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

a
s 

th
e

ir
 l

if
e

 c
ir

cu
m

st
a

n
ce

s 

ch
a

n
g

e
. 

 F
o

r 
th

is
 t

o
 h

a
p

p
e

n
 w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
a

b
le

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 a
 g

o
o

d
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
p

ti
o

n
s,

 w
it

h
 a

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
va

il
a

b
il

it
y

 o
f 

g
o

o
d

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
. 

   

T
h

is
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 u

se
s 

th
e

 w
id

e
st

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 d

e
fi

n
it

io
n

s 
o

f 
sp

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
ys

ic
a

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
, 

a
ct

iv
e

 p
la

y
, 

w
a

lk
in

g
 c

y
cl

in
g

, 
u

si
n

g
 g

ym
s,

 o
u

td
o

o
r 

a
n

d
 a

d
v

e
n

tu
re

 

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s,

 a
n

d
 b

o
th

 r
e

cr
e

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
e

ti
ti

v
e

 s
p

o
rt

s.
   

It
 i

s 
k

n
o

w
n

 t
h

a
t 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 p

h
y

si
ca

l a
ct

iv
it

y
 p

re
ve

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

a
n

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 t

re
a

t 
m

a
n

y
 c

h
ro

n
ic

 d
is

e
a

se
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 s

u
it

a
b

le
, 

sp
e

ci
a

li
st

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

th
o

se
 s

u
ff

e
ri

n
g

 o
r 

a
ff

e
ct

e
d

 in
 t

h
is

 w
a

y
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 t

o
 a

ss
is

t 
b

o
th

 t
h

e
ir

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
. 

  

W
it

h
 t

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 w
e

 w
il

l m
a

ke
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 m

o
re

 a
cc

e
ss

ib
le

 t
o

 a
 w

id
e

r 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

m
a

k
in

g
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 a
ct

iv
e

 c
it

y 

in
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 b

y 
2

0
2

0
. 

Page 133



    

1
2

 

 Y
e

a
r 

Z
e

ro
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 

La
y

in
g

 f
ir

m
 f

o
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s 

M
u

ch
 h

a
s 

a
lr

e
a

d
y

 b
e

e
n

 a
ch

ie
v

e
d

 b
y

 s
in

g
le

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 s

o
m

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

 (
A

p
p

e
n

d
ic

e
s 

5
 a

n
d

 6
).

  
H

o
w

e
v

e
r 

m
u

ch
 m

o
re

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
ch

ie
v

e
d

 a
n

d
 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

o
p

ti
m

is
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

re
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

ct
iv

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i

ts
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

. 

C
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
ti

o
n

 w
il

l 
b

e
 c

ru
ci

a
l 

fo
r 

u
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e

 t
h

e
 o

b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

a
n

d
 t

o
 s

u
st

a
in

 t
h

e
 s

u
cc

e
ss

. 
 F

o
r 

so
m

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

h
is

 i
s 

a
 f

u
n

d
a

m
e

n
ta

l 
sh

if
t 

fr
o

m
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
y

 h
a

ve
 

p
re

v
io

u
sl

y
 b

e
e

n
 d

o
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
y

 w
il

l 
n

e
e

d
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 t

o
 m

a
ke

 s
o

m
e

 a
d

ju
st

m
e

n
ts

. 
 S

im
il

a
rl

y 
it

 i
s 

e
a

rl
y 

d
a

y
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 

b
u

il
d

in
g

 b
lo

ck
s 

a
re

 m
a

in
ly

 in
 p

la
ce

, 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

g
ro

u
n

d
w

o
rk

 i
s 

n
e

e
d

e
d

. 

It
 i

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 r

e
a

so
n

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 a
re

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

in
g

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 f
ir

st
 y

e
a

r 
o

f 
th

is
 S

tr
a

te
g

y,
 “

Y
e

a
r 

Z
e

ro
” 

fo
cu

se
s 

o
n

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 c
o

h
e

si
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

, 
a

g
re

e
in

g
 

d
ir

e
ct

io
n

, 
p

u
tt

in
g

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 m

e
ch

a
n

is
m

s 
to

 a
ll

o
w

 c
o

ll
e

ct
io

n
 o

f 
d

a
ta

 a
n

d
 g

re
a

te
r 

sh
a

ri
n

g
. 

  
In

 t
h

is
 p

re
p

a
ra

to
ry

 p
e

ri
o

d
 w

o
rk

 c
a

n
 t

a
k

e
 p

la
ce

 b
u

il
d

in
g

 f
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 f

in
d

in
g

 c
o

ll
e

ct
iv

e
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s 

to
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

fr
a

g
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 b
y

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 Y

e
a

r 
1

 A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
. 

K
e

y 
to

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
n

e
ss

 o
f 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 i
s 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

, 
a

n
d

 b
y 

th
a

t 
w

e
 m

e
a

n
 b

o
th

 t
h

o
se

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 w

h
o

 g
iv

e
 u

p
 h

u
g

e
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 t
im

e
 t

o
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
 

a
n

d
 g

ro
w

 t
h

e
ir

 s
p

o
rt

s 
a

n
d

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s,

 a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 t
h

o
se

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 p
a

id
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
s.

  
T

h
e

y
 a

ll 
sh

o
u

ld
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t

h
e

 im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
ro

le
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v

e
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y 

th
e

re
fo

re
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 i
s 

e
ss

e
n

ti
a

l t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 t
h

e
m

 a
n

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

m
 i

n
 t

h
e

ir
 r

o
le

, 
w

h
a

te
ve

r 
th

a
t 

m
ig

h
t 

b
e

. 
  

O
n

ly
 b

y
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
ve

ra
ll

 v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 r

o
le

 w
il

l 
th

e
y

 b
e

co
m

e
 c

o
m

m
it

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
li

ve
ry

. 

T
h

e
 p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
sp

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 r

a
is

e
d

 o
ve

r 
re

ce
n

t 
ye

a
rs

, 
w

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 w
il

l m
a

ke
 m

o
re

 o
f 

o
u

r 
su

cc
e

ss
e

s;
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
rs

, 
co

a
ch

e
s,

 

o
ff

ic
ia

ls
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
, 

to
 d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
 t

h
e

 im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

e
 a

re
 m

a
k

in
g

. 
 

    

Page 134



    

1
3

 

   Y
E

A
R

 Z
E

R
O

 A
C

T
IO

N
 P

LA
N

 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 

 

T
a

sk
s 

T
a

rg
e

ts
  

T
im

e
sc

a
le

 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
ce

 
A

g
re

e
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
s,

 t
e

rm
s 

o
f 

re
fe

re
n

ce
, 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
s,

 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
s 

a
n

d
 l

in
k

a
g

e
s 

to
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 T

e
rm

s 
o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n

ce
 

a
g

re
e

d
 

T
h

e
m

e
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 G
ro

u
p

s 
e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 

2
0

1
6

 

P
la

n
 

A
g

re
e

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 s

p
o

rt
s,

 t
a

rg
e

t 
g

ro
u

p
s 

a
n

d
 a

ss
e

ss
 n

e
e

d
s 

in
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 

g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
l 

a
re

a
s 

a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 t

h
e

 S
p

o
rt

s 
 C

lu
b

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 i
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 s

p
o

rt
s 

a
g

re
e

d
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
G

ro
u

p
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 

S
p

o
rt

s 
cl

u
b

s 
a

u
d

it
e

d
 

2
0

1
6

 

 
Id

e
n

ti
fy

 f
u

tu
re

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 o

f 
fi

t 
fo

r 
p

u
rp

o
se

 f
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
  

  

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
ll

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 a

n
d

 o
p

ti
m

is
e

 u
se

 o
f 

a
ll

 f
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 

si
m

p
li

fy
 b

o
o

k
in

g
s 

Le
is

u
re

 F
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
ve

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 l

a
u

n
ch

e
d

 

2
0

1
6

 

 
A

g
re

e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

, 
b

a
se

li
n

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

d
a

ta
 c

o
ll

e
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
  m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 

e
va

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
’s

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
 

R
e

-e
n

g
in

e
e

r 
th

e
 A

cc
e

ss
2

Le
is

u
re

, 
B

o
o

k
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 L

e
tt

in
g

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 G

ra
n

ts
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

  

F
in

a
li

se
 t

h
e

 A
ct

iv
e

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 A

p
p

 

B
a

se
li

n
e

 a
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
g

re
e

d
  

N
e

w
 v

e
rs

io
n

 o
f 

A
cc

e
ss

2
Le

is
u

re
 l

a
u

n
ch

e
d

 

B
o

o
k

in
g

s 
a

n
d

 L
e

tt
in

g
s 

P
o

li
cy

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 

G
ra

n
ts

  
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 p
u

b
li

ci
se

d
 

A
ct

iv
e

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 A

p
p

 l
a

u
n

ch
e

d
 

2
0

1
6

 

 
P

re
p

a
re

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

su
lt

 o
n

 t
h

e
 Y

e
a

r 
1

 A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
 

A
m

e
n

d
 a

s 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s 

to
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
in

g
le

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

Y
e

a
r 

1
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 

A
m

e
n

d
, 

if
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

2
0

1
7

 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
u

d
it

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
s 

o
f 

th
e

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 

p
la

n
 (

vo
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
n

d
 p

a
id

 s
ta

ff
) 

th
a

t 
m

e
e

ts
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
th

e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 
2

0
1

7
 

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e

 A
ct

iv
e

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
n

ti
re

 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 n

e
w

sl
e

tt
e

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 A
ct

iv
e

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
  

2
0

1
6

 

 
P

la
n

 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
ti

n
g

 c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 t

o
 “

A
ct

iv
a

te
 t

h
e

 C
it

y
”,

 l
a

u
n

ch
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

, 
A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

ct
iv

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 A
p

p
 

C
o

m
b

in
e

d
 o

r 
se

p
a

ra
te

 l
a

u
n

ch
e

s 
2

0
1

6
-1

7
 

 
R

a
is

e
 t

h
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

sp
o

rt
 &

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
, 

ce
le

b
ra

te
 s

u
cc

e
ss

e
s 

a
ch

ie
v

e
d

 

(e
v

e
n

ts
, 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 t

a
le

n
te

d
 a

th
le

te
s)

 

Q
u

a
rt

e
rl

y
 p

re
ss

 r
e

le
a

se
s 

d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 

su
cc

e
ss

e
s 

o
f 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

 

2
0

1
6

 -
1

7
 

Page 135



    

1
4

 

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

  
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 L
o

ca
l 

P
o

li
cy

 C
o

n
te

x
t 

Le
t’

s 
M

a
k

e
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 M

o
re

 A
ct

iv
e

 (
2

0
0

3
) 

S
in

ce
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
3

 r
e

p
o

rt
 L

e
ts

 M
a

k
e

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

 M
o

re
 A

ct
iv

e
 ,

 T
h

e
 S

co
tt

is
h

 G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 i

ts
 a

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
n

xi
o

u
s 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
, 

it
s 

p
ro

p
e

n
si

ty
 t

o
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 a
 p

o
o

r 
d

ie
t,

 n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 p

h
y

si
ca

lly
 a

ct
iv

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

a
l w

o
rr

ie
s 

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
se

ri
o

u
s 

il
ln

e
ss

e
s 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
th

a
t 

ca
n

 b
e

 p
re

ve
n

te
d

 

b
y

 t
a

k
in

g
 m

o
re

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
. 

S
co

tt
is

h
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 –

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
O

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

(2
0

0
7

) 
a

n
d

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 (
2

0
1

1
) 

In
 2

0
0

7
 t

h
e

 S
co

tt
is

h
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
se

t 
o

u
t 

it
s 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e

fr
e

sh
e

d
 i

n
 2

0
1

1
 a

s 
fo

ll
o

w
s:

 

•
 

W
e

a
lt

h
ie

r 
a

n
d

 f
a

ir
e

r 

•
 

S
m

a
rt

e
r 

•
 

H
e

a
lt

h
ie

r 

•
 

S
a

fe
r 

a
n

d
 s

tr
o

n
g

e
r 

•
 

G
re

e
n

e
r 

O
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 N

P
F

 in
 2

0
1

1
 w

a
s:

 

In
cr

e
a

se
 

p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y 

In
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 le
ve

ls
 i

s 
a

 k
e

y
 l

e
g

a
cy

 a
sp

ir
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

o
n

w
e

a
lt

h
 G

a
m

e
s.

 T
h

e
re

 

is
 a

ls
o

 a
 s

tr
o

n
g

 h
e

a
lt

h
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
a

s 
in

cr
e

a
se

s 
e

q
u

a
te

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

ss
in

g
 t

h
e

 im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 s
e

d
e

n
ta

ry
 l

if
e

st
y

le
s 

w
h

ic
h

 c
a

n
 l

e
a

d
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

s 
in

 h
e

a
lt

h
 

is
su

e
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

ty
p

e
 2

 d
ia

b
e

te
s,

 h
e

a
rt

 d
is

e
a

se
 a

n
d

 b
lo

o
d

 p
re

ss
u

re
. 

 T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
ls

o
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 d
e

li
v

e
rs

 b
e

tt
e

r 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s 

fo
r 

m
il

d
 d

e
p

re
ss

io
n

 t
h

a
n

 p
re

sc
ri

b
e

d
 m

e
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
. 

 R
e

a
ch

in
g

 H
ig

h
e

r:
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 S
u

cc
e

ss
 o

f 
S

p
o

rt
 2

1
 (

2
0

0
7

) 

T
h

e
 S

co
tt

is
h

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s 

st
ra

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

sp
o

rt
 i

s 
R

e
a

ch
in

g
 H

ig
h

e
r 

w
h

o
se

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
sp

o
rt

 i
n

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

 i
s 

a
s 

fo
llo

w
s:

 

•
 

A
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
 w

h
e

re
 s

p
o

rt
 i

s 
m

o
re

 w
id

e
ly

 a
va

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 a
ll 

•
 

A
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
 w

h
e

re
 s

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

a
le

n
t 

is
 r

e
co

g
n

is
e

d
 a

n
d

 n
u

rt
u

re
d

 

•
 

A
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
 a

ch
ie

v
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
u

st
a

in
in

g
 w

o
rl

d
 c

la
ss

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

s 
in

 s
p

o
rt

 

Page 136



    

1
5

 

 T
o

ro
n

to
 C

h
a

rt
e

r 
fo

r 
P

h
y

si
ca

l 
A

ct
iv

it
y

: 
A

 G
lo

b
a

l 
C

a
ll

 f
o

r 
A

ct
io

n
. 

(2
0

1
0

) 

It
 s

ta
te

s,
 “

P
h

y
si

ca
l i

n
a

ct
iv

it
y

 i
s 

th
e

 f
o

u
rt

h
 l

e
a

d
in

g
 c

a
u

se
 o

f 
d

e
a

th
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 n

o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

b
le

 d
is

e
a

se
 w

o
rl

d
w

id
e

 –
 h

e
a

rt
 d

is
e

a
se

, 
st

ro
ke

, 
d

ia
b

e
te

s 
a

n
d

 c
a

n
ce

rs
 

–
 a

n
d

 e
a

ch
 y

e
a

r 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
 o

v
e

r 
3

 m
il

lio
n

 p
re

v
e

n
ta

b
le

 d
e

a
th

s.
  P

h
ys

ic
a

l 
in

a
ct

iv
it

y
 i

s 
re

la
te

d
 (

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 a

n
d

 in
d

ir
e

ct
ly

) 
to

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
le

a
d

in
g

 r
is

k
 f

a
ct

o
rs

 f
o

r 

N
C

D
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

h
ig

h
 b

lo
o

d
 p

re
ss

u
re

, 
h

ig
h

 c
h

o
le

st
e

ro
l 

a
n

d
 h

ig
h

 g
lu

co
se

 le
ve

ls
, 

a
n

d
, 

to
 t

h
e

 r
e

ce
n

t 
st

ri
k

in
g

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

s 
in

 c
h

il
d

h
o

o
d

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
 o

b
e

si
ty

, 
n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 i

n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 c
o

u
n

tr
ie

s 
b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 i

n
 m

a
n

y 
d

e
ve

lo
p

in
g

 c
o

u
n

tr
ie

s.
” 

“T
h

e
re

 i
s 

st
ro

n
g

 e
v

id
e

n
ce

 t
o

 g
u

id
e

 t
h

e
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
e

s 
to

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 p
h

ys
ic

a
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
. 

 R
e

v
e

rs
in

g
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d

s 
in

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 

w
il

l 
re

q
u

ir
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
ie

s 
to

 c
o

m
m

it
 t

o
 a

 c
o

m
b

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
st

ra
te

g
ie

s 
a

im
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l,
 s

o
ci

a
l-

cu
lt

u
ra

l,
 e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

a
n

d
 p

o
li

cy
 d

e
te

rm
in

a
n

ts
 o

f 
in

a
ct

iv
it

y”
 

“T
h

e
re

 i
s 

n
o

 s
in

g
le

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 i
n

cr
e

a
si

n
g

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
, 

a
n

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 w

il
l 

re
q

u
ir

e
 m

u
lt

ip
le

 c
o

n
cu

rr
e

n
t 

st
ra

te
g

ie
s 

to
 b

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

. 
 T

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

o
u

n
tr

ie
s 

re
a

d
y

 t
o

 r
e

sp
o

n
d

, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 s
e

v
e

n
 ‘

b
e

st
 i

n
ve

st
m

e
n

ts
’ 

fo
r 

p
h

ys
ic

a
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y

 g
o

o
d

 e
v

id
e

n
ce

 o
f 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

w
il

l h
a

v
e

 w
o

rl
d

w
id

e
 a

p
p

li
ca

b
il

it
y

.”
 

T
h

e
se

 7
 i

n
v

e
st

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

: 

1
. 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

sc
h

o
o

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
 

2
. 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 p
o

li
ci

e
s 

a
n

d
 s

y
st

e
m

s 
th

a
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
se

 w
a

lk
in

g
, 

cy
cl

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
c 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

  

3
. 

U
rb

a
n

 d
e

si
g

n
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
 f

o
r 

e
q

u
it

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 s
a

fe
 a

cc
e

ss
 f

o
r 

re
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y,

 a
n

d
 r

e
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

-r
e

la
te

d
 w

a
li

n
g

 a
n

d
 c

y
cl

in
g

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 l

if
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
  

4
. 

P
h

y
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

it
y

 a
n

d
 N

C
D

 (
n

o
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

b
le

 d
is

e
a

se
) 

p
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 h
e

a
lt

h
ca

re
 s

y
st

e
m

s 
 

5
. 

P
u

b
li

c 
e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

, 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 m

a
ss

 m
e

d
ia

 t
o

 r
a

is
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 s
o

ci
a

l n
o

rm
s 

o
n

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
  

6
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

-w
id

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
in

v
o

lv
in

g
 m

u
lt

ip
le

 s
e

tt
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 s

e
ct

o
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
m

o
b

il
iz

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

7
. 

S
p

o
rt

s 
sy

st
e

m
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

s 
th

a
t 

p
ro

m
o

te
 ‘

sp
o

rt
 f

o
r 

a
ll

’ 
a

n
d

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 l

if
e

 s
p

a
n

. 

P
re

v
e

n
ti

n
g

 O
v

e
rw

e
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 O

b
e

si
ty

 –
 a

 r
o

u
te

 m
a

p
 t

o
w

a
rd

s 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
 w

e
ig

h
t 

(2
0

1
0

) 

T
h

e
 S

co
tt

is
h

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 t
h

is
 r

o
u

te
 m

a
p

 a
n

d
 o

u
tl

in
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
e

n
ti

v
e

 a
ct

io
n

s 
n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
ke

 c
o

n
tr

o
l o

f 
o

b
e

si
ty

 i
n

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

; 

•
 

E
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 –
 c

o
n

tr
o

ll
in

g
 e

xp
o

su
re

 t
o

, 
d

e
m

a
n

d
 f

o
r 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

su
m

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
xc

e
ss

iv
e

 q
u

a
n

ti
ti

e
s 

o
f 

h
ig

h
 c

a
lo

ri
fi

c 
fo

o
d

s 
a

n
d

 d
ri

n
k

s 

•
 

E
n

e
rg

y
 e

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
 –

 i
n

cr
e

a
si

n
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

a
n

d
 u

p
ta

k
e

 o
f 

w
a

lk
in

g
, 

cy
cl

in
g

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y 

in
 o

u
r 

d
a

il
y 

li
v

e
s 

a
n

d
 m

in
im

is
in

g
 

se
d

e
n

ta
ry

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

•
 

E
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 –
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
in

g
 l

if
e

-l
o

n
g

 h
a

b
it

s 
a

n
d

 s
k

il
ls

 f
o

r 
p

o
si

ti
ve

 h
e

a
lt

h
 b

e
h

a
v

io
u

r 
th

ro
u

g
h

 

Page 137



    

1
6

 

 

e
a

rl
y

 l
if

e
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s 
 

•
 

W
o

rk
in

g
 l

iv
e

s 
–

 i
n

cr
e

a
si

n
g

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
y 

o
f 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 e
m

p
lo

ye
e

s 

S
ta

rt
 A

ct
iv

e
, 

S
ta

y
 A

ct
iv

e
 -

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 f

o
r 

h
e

a
lt

h
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 f

o
u

r 
h

o
m

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

ie
s’

 C
h

ie
f 

M
e

d
ic

a
l 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 (

2
0

1
1

) 

In
 2

0
1

1
 t

h
e

 C
h

ie
f 

M
e

d
ic

a
l O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 U

K
 c

a
m

e
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
e

 P
h

y
si

ca
l 

A
ct

iv
it

y
 G

u
id

e
li

n
e

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 g
ro

u
p

s.
  S

e
e

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

d
e

ta
il

e
d

 g
u

id
e

li
n

e
s 

fo
r 

e
a

ch
 o

f 
th

e
 a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

s 

•
 

U
n

d
e

r 
5

s 
n

o
t 

y
e

t 
w

a
lk

in
g

 

•
 

E
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 (
u

n
d

e
r 

5
s)

 f
o

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 c

a
p

a
b

le
 o

f 
w

a
lk

in
g

 

•
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 (

5
 –

 1
8

 y
e

a
rs

) 

•
 

A
d

u
lt

s 
(1

9
 –

 6
4

 y
e

a
rs

) 

•
 

O
ld

e
r 

a
d

u
lt

s 
(6

5
+

 y
e

a
rs

) 

T
h

e
se

 C
h

ie
f 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 a

 “
li

fe
 c

o
u

rs
e

” 
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 a

n
d

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 e
a

si
e

st
 a

n
d

 m
o

st
 a

cc
e

p
ta

b
le

 f
o

rm
s 

o
f 

p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 a

re
 t

h
o

se
 t

h
a

t 
ca

n
 b

e
 

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i

n
to

 d
a

ily
 l

if
e

 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 F

u
tu

re
 D

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
P

u
b

li
c 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

(2
0

1
1

) 

T
h

e
 C

h
ri

st
ie

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

S
co

tl
a

n
d

’s
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
n

e
e

d
e

d
 o

ve
rh

a
u

le
d

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

b
u

d
g

e
t 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
ch

a
ll

e
n

g
e

s.
  I

t 
re

co
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 r
a

d
ic

a
l 

ch
a

n
g

e
 i

n
 i

n
te

g
ra

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
e

si
g

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
se

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

m
o

v
e

d
 t

o
 a

 m
o

re
 p

re
v

e
n

ta
ti

v
e

 a
g

e
n

d
a

. 
 I

t 
e

st
im

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

ro
u

n
d

 

4
0

%
 o

f 
sp

e
n

d
in

g
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

v
o

id
e

d
 i

f 
a

 m
o

re
 p

re
ve

n
ta

ti
v

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 w

a
s 

ta
k

e
n

. 
 I

t 
w

a
s 

cr
it

ic
a

l o
f 

a
 f

ra
g

m
e

n
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

 i
s 

tr
y

in
g

 t
o

 

a
v

o
id

, 
a

n
d

 i
t 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
b

e
co

m
e

 m
o

re
 i

n
vo

lv
e

d
 i

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
y

 n
e

e
d

. 
 

G
e

tt
in

g
 i

t 
R

ig
h

t 
fo

r 
E

v
e

ry
 C

h
il

d
 (

2
0

1
2

) 
 

T
h

is
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
t 

o
u

tl
in

e
s 

8
 in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 o

f 
a

 c
h

il
d

’s
 w

e
ll

b
e

in
g

, 
tw

o
 o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 “

h
e

a
lt

h
y

” 
a

n
d

 “
a

ct
iv

e
”.

 

E
a

rl
y

 Y
e

a
rs

 C
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
ti

v
e

 (
2

0
1

2
) 

E
Y

C
 i

s 
a

 q
u

a
li

ty
 im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
je

ct
  

fo
r 

ch
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
il

ie
s 

in
vo

lv
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s 

a
n

d
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
e

st
a

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 

tr
a

n
sf

o
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

. 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 l
o

ca
l 

w
o

rk
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
in

g
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s 
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y

 h
o

p
e

 w
il

l 
h

a
ve

 t
h

e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l t

o
 m

a
k

e
 a

n
 i

m
p

a
ct

 o
n

 t
h

e
 a

im
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v

e
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 K

e
y 

C
h

a
n

g
e

 t
h

e
m

e
s 

a
s 

fo
ll

o
w

s:
 

Page 138



    

1
7

 

 

•
 

E
a

rl
y

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
p

re
g

n
a

n
cy

 a
n

d
 b

e
y

o
n

d
 

•
 

A
tt

a
ch

m
e

n
t,

 c
h

il
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 

•
 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

it
y 

o
f 

ca
re

 i
n

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
s 

•
 

2
7

 –
 3

0
 m

o
n

th
 c

h
il

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 r
e

v
ie

w
 

•
 

P
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 s

k
il

ls
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
il

y 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 

•
 

A
d

d
re

ss
in

g
 c

h
il

d
 p

o
ve

rt
y 

•
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 

•
 

P
la

y 

S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

 (
S

e
lf

-d
ir

e
ct

e
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

) 
(S

co
tl

a
n

d
) 

A
ct

 2
0

1
3
 

In
 2

0
1

3
 T

h
e

 S
co

tt
is

h
 P

a
rl

ia
m

e
n

t 
p

a
ss

e
d

 a
 n

e
w

 l
a

w
 o

n
 s

o
ci

a
l c

a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
th

e
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 (

Se
lf

-d
ir

e
ct

e
d

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

) 
(S

co
tl

a
n

d
) 

A
ct

 2
0

1
3

. 
 T

h
is

 A
ct

 g
iv

e
s 

p
e

o
p

le
 a

 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

h
o

w
 t

h
e

ir
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 w
il

l b
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

, 
b

e
yo

n
d

 j
u

st
 d

ir
e

ct
 p

a
ym

e
n

ts
, 

a
ll

o
w

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 d

e
ci

d
e

 h
o

w
 m

u
ch

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

a
n

d
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y 

th
e

y
 w

a
n

t 
o

v
e

r 
th

e
ir

 o
w

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

T
h

e
 A

ct
 p

la
ce

s 
a

 d
u

ty
 o

n
 c

o
u

n
ci

l's
 t

o
 o

ff
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 c
h

o
ic

e
s 

a
s 

to
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
y

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 t

h
e

ir
 s

o
ci

a
l c

a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

. 

A
 M

o
re

 A
ct

iv
e

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

: 
B

u
il

d
in

g
 a

 L
e

g
a

cy
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
o

n
w

e
a

lt
h

 G
a

m
e

s 
(1

0
 Y

e
a

r 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

) 
(2

0
1

4
) 

T
h

e
 v

is
io

n
 i

s 
th

a
t 

“T
h

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
f 

Sc
o

tl
a

n
d

 w
il

l 
e

n
jo

y
 m

o
re

 a
ct

iv
e

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

liv
e

s”
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

 c
o

n
ta

in
s 

fi
v

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 t
h

e
m

e
s 

w
it

h
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 

2
0

1
4

, 
fo

r 
2

0
1

9
 a

n
d

 2
0

2
4

. 
 T

h
e

 d
e

li
ve

ry
 a

re
a

s 
a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

•
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

•
 

W
o

rk
p

la
ce

 s
e

tt
in

g
s 

•
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 

•
 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 s

e
tt

in
g

s 

•
 

S
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 A

ct
iv

e
 R

e
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
 

Le
t’

s 
G

e
t 

S
co

tl
a

n
d

 W
a

lk
in

g
 –

 T
h

e
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

W
a

lk
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 2

0
1

4
 

T
h

re
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
im

s:
 

•
 

C
re

a
te

  
cu

lt
u

re
 o

f 
w

a
lk

in
g

 

•
 

B
e

tt
e

r 
w

a
lk

in
g

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
S

co
tl

a
n

d
 

•
 

E
n

su
re

 e
a

sy
, 

co
n

v
e

n
ie

n
t 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

m
o

b
il

it
y

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 

 
 

Page 139



    

1
8

 

 P
u

b
li

c 
B

o
d

ie
s 

(J
o

in
t 

W
o

rk
in

g
) 

(S
co

tl
a

n
d

) 
A

ct
 2

0
1

4
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 
co

m
e

 i
n

to
 b

e
in

g
 o

n
 1

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
6

 a
n

d
 a

re
 a

 r
e

su
lt

 o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 i

n
te

g
ra

te
 t

h
e

 N
H

S
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
g

e
n

d
a

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 L
o

ca
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 t

h
ir

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
se

ct
o

rs
. 

 T
h

e
ir

 g
o

a
l 

is
 t

o
 im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 c

a
re

 o
ff

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

re
v

io
u

s 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 

so
ci

a
l 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

  
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 9

 N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
th

a
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 lo

ca
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 
a

s 
fo

ll
o

w
s:

 

1
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 l
o

o
k 

a
ft

e
r 

a
n

d
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 l
iv

e
 i

n
 g

o
o

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 f
o

r 
lo

n
g

e
r 

2
. 

P
e

o
p

le
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 t
h

o
se

 w
it

h
 d

is
a

b
il

it
ie

s 
o

r 
lo

n
g

 t
e

rm
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s,
 o

r 
w

h
o

 a
re

 f
ra

il
, 

a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 l

iv
e

, 
a

s 
fa

r 
a

s 
re

a
so

n
a

b
ly

 p
ra

ct
ic

a
b

le
, 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
tl

y
 

a
n

d
 a

t 
h

o
m

e
 o

n
 i

n
 a

 h
o

m
e

ly
 s

e
tt

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

3
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 u
se

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
h

a
ve

 p
o

si
ti

v
e

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
s 

o
f 

th
o

se
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s,
 a

d
 h

a
v

e
 t

h
e

ir
 d

ig
n

it
y

 r
e

sp
e

ct
e

d
 

4
. 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
a

re
 c

e
n

tr
e

d
 o

n
 h

e
lp

in
g

 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 o

r 
im

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
li

fe
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 u

se
 t

h
o

se
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 

5
. 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
ci

n
g

 h
e

a
lt

h
 i

n
e

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s 

6
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 u

n
p

a
id

 c
a

re
 a

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 lo

o
k 

a
ft

e
r 

th
e

ir
 o

w
n

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

ce
 a

n
y

 n
e

g
a

ti
ve

 im
p

a
ct

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 c

a
ri

n
g

 

ro
le

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

-b
e

in
g

 

7
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 u

si
n

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
re

 s
a

fe
 f

ro
m

 h
a

rm
 

8
. 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 w
o

rk
 i

n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l c

a
re

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

fe
e

l 
e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 t

h
e

y
 d

o
 a

n
d

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

o
u

sl
y

 im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

su
p

p
o

rt
, 

ca
re

 a
n

d
 t

re
a

tm
e

n
t 

th
e

y
 p

ro
v

id
e

 

9
. 

R
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
a

re
 u

se
d

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl

y
 i

n
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 

T
h

is
 i

s 
o

n
e

 o
f 

S
co

tl
a

n
d

 m
a

jo
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

to
 r

e
fo

rm
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

, 
to

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
p

ro
v

id
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
o

se
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 n

e
e

d
 

th
e

se
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
g

e
t 

th
e

 r
ig

h
t 

ca
re

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 w

h
a

te
v

e
r 

th
e

ir
 n

e
e

d
s.

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 E
m

p
o

w
e

rm
e

n
t 

(S
co

tl
a

n
d

) 
A

ct
 (

2
0

1
5

) 

T
h

is
 A

ct
 a

ck
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

s 
th

a
t 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

h
a

v
e

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

 a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y

 c
a

n
 b

e
 e

m
p

o
w

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 

la
n

d
 o

r 
b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

a
s 

a
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
w

a
y 

to
 

d
e

li
v

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e

s.
  I

t 
p

ro
v

id
e

s 
th

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

 f
o

r 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

 g
ro

u
p

s,
 o

r 
sp

o
rt

 c
lu

b
s 

to
 t

a
ke

 o
v

e
r 

th
e

 o
w

n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
u

b
li

c 
se

ct
o

r 
b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 l

a
n

d
. 

  

  

Page 140



    

1
9

 

 D
ir

e
ct

o
ra

te
 o

f 
C

h
ie

f 
M

e
d

ic
a

l 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

(O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

) 
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 P

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 H
e

a
lt

h
 S

e
rv

ic
e

: 
A

ct
io

n
 i

n
 S

e
co

n
d

a
ry

 C
a

re
 S

e
tt

in
g

 (
k

n
o

w
n

 a
s 

a
 C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 L
e

tt
e

r)
 

In
 O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

0
1

5
 t

h
e

 C
h

ie
f 

M
e

d
ic

a
l O

ff
ic

e
r,

 D
r 

C
a

th
e

ri
n

e
 C

a
ld

e
rw

o
o

d
 s

e
n

t 
a

 l
e

tt
e

r 
to

 N
H

S
 C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
v

e
s 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

rs
 e

m
p

h
a

si
si

n
g

 N
H

S
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
’s

 “
k

e
y 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 f

o
r 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i

t 
se

rv
ic

e
s”

. 
  

It
 g

o
e

s 
o

n
 t

o
 s

ta
te

 t
h

a
t,

 “
T

h
e

 v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
a

 H
e

a
lt

h
 P

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 H
e

a
lt

h
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 (

H
P

H
S

) 
is

 a
 c

u
lt

u
ra

l t
ra

n
sf

o
rm

a
ti

o
n

 t
h

a
t 

e
n

su
re

s 
th

a
t 

e
ve

ry
 h

e
a

lt
h

ca
re

 c
o

n
ta

ct
 i

s 
a

 h
e

a
lt

h
 i

m
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
. 

 P
re

ve
n

ti
o

n
 l

ie
s 

a
t 

th
e

 h
e

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 H
P

H
S

 p
o

li
cy

. 
 I

t 
is

 a
b

o
u

t 
p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 h
e

a
lt

h
ie

r 
b

e
h

a
v

io
u

rs
 a

n
d

 d
is

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 d
e

tr
im

e
n

ta
l o

n
e

s 
b

y
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
h

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

ch
o

ic
e

s 
a

re
 t

h
e

 e
a

si
e

r 
o

n
e

s 
a

n
d

 

th
a

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

y
st

e
m

s 
a

re
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

in
fo

rc
e

 t
h

e
se

 c
h

o
ic

e
s”

. 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

in
cl

u
d

e
 i

n
 S

e
ct

io
n

 H
, 

P
h

y
si

ca
l 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
a

n
d

 A
ct

iv
e

 T
ra

ve
l 

a
n

d
 i

t 
is

 a
n

ti
ci

p
a

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
ct

io
n

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 a

n
d

 a
ct

iv
e

 t
ra

v
e

l w
ill

 i
m

p
a

ct
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 t
h

re
e

 H
P

H
S

 t
h

e
m

e
s 

o
f;

 p
e

rs
o

n
 c

e
n

tr
e

d
 c

a
re

, 
st

a
ff

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 h

o
sp

it
a

l e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t.

 

R
a

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 B
a

r 
2

0
1

5
 –

 2
0

1
9

 –
 s

p
o

rt
sc

o
tl

a
n

d
’s

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
la

n
 

T
h

is
 h

a
s 

tw
o

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
th

a
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
re

 e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
:  

•
 

 E
v

e
ry

o
n

e
 w

il
l 

h
a

ve
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
to

 g
e

t 
in

vo
lv

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 s

ta
y

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o

u
t 

th
e

ir
 l

if
e

. 

•
 

E
v

e
ry

o
n

e
 w

il
l h

a
v

e
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

, 
p

ro
g

re
ss

 a
n

d
 a

ch
ie

v
e

 s
u

cc
e

ss
 a

t 
th

e
ir

 c
h

o
se

n
 l

e
v

e
l o

f 
sp

o
rt

. 

O
th

e
r 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

ie
s:

 

•
 

G
o

o
d

 P
la

ce
s,

 B
e

tt
e

r 
H

e
a

lt
h

: 
A

 N
e

w
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

  
(2

0
0

8
) 

•
 

C
y

cl
in

g
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
S

co
tl

a
n

d
 (

2
0

1
0

) 
 

•
 

S
co

tl
a

n
d

’s
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l D

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

  (
2

0
1

3
 –

 1
6

) 

     

Page 141



    

2
0

 

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 

In
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

4
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 h
a

d
 a

n
 e

st
im

a
te

d
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

2
8

,9
9

0
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
th

e
 8

th
 h

ig
h

e
st

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

to
ta

l 
in

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

 f
o

r 
4

.3
%

 o
f 

S
co

tl
a

n
d

’s
 

to
ta

l p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

. 
  

B
e

tw
e

e
n

 2
0

1
2

 a
n

d
 2

0
3

7
 t

h
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 i
s 

e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 r
is

e
 t

o
 a

lm
o

st
 3

0
0

,0
0

0
. 

T
h

e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i

s 
p

ro
je

ct
e

d
 t

o
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 b

y
 1

9
%

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 6
5

+
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 i

s 
p

ro
je

ct
e

d
 t

o
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 b

y
 5

5
%

 

A
cc

o
rd

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 2

0
1

1
 c

e
n

su
s 

a
ro

u
n

d
 1

6
%

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 h
a

v
e

 lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 il
ln

e
ss

, 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m
s 

o
r 

d
is

a
b

il
it

y
 t

h
a

t 
li

m
it

s 
th

e
ir

 d
a

il
y

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

o
r 

th
e

 

w
o

rk
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 d
o

. 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 S

in
g

le
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2

0
1

3
  

B
e

lo
w

 a
re

 t
h

e
 t

h
e

m
a

ti
c 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
fr

o
m

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
’s

 S
in

g
le

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

. 
 T

w
o

 o
f 

th
e

 k
e

y
 p

ri
n

ci
p

le
s 

a
re

 t
o

 

ta
rg

e
t 

th
o

se
 m

o
st

 i
n

 n
e

e
d

 a
n

d
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
ce

 i
so

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

m
in

o
ri

ty
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

  T
h

e
 S

O
A

 i
s 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y

 b
e

in
g

 r
e

fr
e

sh
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

 v
e

rs
io

n
 w

a
s 

n
o

t 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

is
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

 P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s 

Le
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e
 

•
 

R
e

d
u

ce
d

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
u

n
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

•
 

U
n

iv
e

rs
a

l 
lit

e
ra

cy
 

•
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s 

in
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 r
e

ce
iv

e
 a

 “
li

v
in

g
 w

a
g

e
” 

•
 

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 l
if

e
lo

n
g

 le
a

rn
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 v

o
ca

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 a
ca

d
e

m
ic

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g

 f
ro

m
 s

e
co

n
d

a
ry

 s
ch

o
o

l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 

•
 

P
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 w
h

o
 c

o
n

su
m

e
 a

lc
o

h
o

l d
ri

n
k

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ly

 a
n

d
 w

it
h

in
 s

e
n

si
b

le
 w

e
e

k
ly

 d
ri

n
k

in
g

 g
u

id
e

li
n

e
s 

•
 

R
e

d
u

ce
d

 i
n

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

in
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l

if
e

 e
xp

e
ct

a
n

cy
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

h
ys

ic
a

l 
a

n
d

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 

a
ct

iv
it

y 

•
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
d

 m
e

n
ta

l 
a

n
d

 p
h

ys
ic

a
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
a

l 
in

cl
u

si
o

n
 o

f 
lo

n
g

 t
e

rm
 u

n
e

m
p

lo
y

e
d

 b
y 

e
q

u
a

l 
a

cc
e

ss
 t

o
 e

m
p

lo
y

a
b

il
it

y 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
 

 
•
 

O
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 h
a

v
e

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
ce

 

•
 

M
o

re
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 a

re
 b

e
n

e
fi

ti
n

g
 f

ro
m

 “
A

ct
iv

e
 a

g
in

g
” 

•
 

C
a

re
rs

 a
re

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 &
 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
•
 

E
v

e
ry

 c
h

il
d

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

rs
o

n
 i

n
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 e
n

jo
y

s 
b

e
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g

 a
n

d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e

 f
e

e
ls

 s
a

fe
, 

n
u

rt
u

re
d

, 
h

e
a

lt
h

y
, 

a
ct

iv
e

, 
in

cl
u

d
e

d
, 

re
sp

e
ct

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 

Page 142



    

2
1

 

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 T
h

e
m

a
ti

c 
G

ro
u

p
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 h

a
s 

a
s 

a
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

it
s 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 m

e
ch

a
n

is
m

 a
 T

h
e

m
a

ti
c 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 G
ro

u
p

 (
T

IG
) 

fo
r 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 w

h
o

se
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
 

(A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
5

 –
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
) 

h
a

s 
a

s 
o

n
e

 o
f 

it
s 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s:
  

•
 

R
e

d
u

ce
d

 i
n

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

in
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l

if
e

 e
xp

e
ct

a
n

cy
 a

n
d

 im
p

ro
v

e
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y 

A
ll

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

lic
ie

s 
a

re
 p

o
in

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 a
g

e
n

d
a

, 
w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
o

se
 m

o
st

 i
n

 n
e

e
d

, 
p

e
o

p
le

 b
e

co
m

in
g

, 
a

n
d

 b
e

in
g

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

co
m

e
, 

m
o

re
 

p
h

y
si

ca
ll

y
 a

ct
iv

e
 t

h
e

re
b

y 
a

vo
id

in
g

 m
a

n
y

 o
f 

th
e

 d
is

e
a

se
s 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
b

ro
u

g
h

t 
o

n
 b

y
 o

r 
e

xa
ce

rb
a

te
d

 b
y

 p
h

ys
ic

a
l 

in
a

ct
iv

it
y

. 

T
h

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
  

  
  

T
h

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
’s

 v
is

io
n

 i
s,

 “
A

 c
a

ri
n

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 o
u

r 
ci

ty
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 e

n
a

b
le

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 

a
ch

ie
v

e
 f

u
lf

il
li

n
g

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

li
v

e
s 

a
n

d
 w

e
ll

b
e

in
g

”.
 

F
it

 f
o

r 
th

e
 F

u
tu

re
 A

 S
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 P

h
y

si
ca

l 
A

ct
iv

it
y

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

 f
o

r 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 2

0
0

9
 –

 2
0

1
5

 

T
h

e
 p

re
v

io
u

s 
st

ra
te

g
y

 f
o

r 
sp

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

it
y

 w
a

s 
p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
9

. 
 I

t 
o

u
tl

in
e

d
 5

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s.
 

1
. 

P
ro

m
o

te
 a

n
d

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 in

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 f
o

r 
e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 i
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
  

2
. 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
ve

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li

ty
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

sp
o

rt
s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

in
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

3
. 

M
a

xi
m

is
e

 t
h

e
 s

o
ci

a
l,

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
a

l,
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
sp

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
ys

ic
a

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 i
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

4
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 s

u
st

a
in

 p
a

th
w

a
y

s 
w

h
ic

h
 n

u
rt

u
re

 lo
ca

l,
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l s

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 r
e

a
ch

 t
h

e
ir

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 

5
. 

R
a

is
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
sp

o
rt

 i
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

U
n

fo
rt

u
n

a
te

ly
 a

n
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

is
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

a
s 

n
o

t 
a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s 
to

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l s
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
a

n
d

 p
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 

a
n

d
 i

t 
w

a
s 

in
e

v
it

a
b

le
 t

h
a

t 
n

e
w

 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

m
a

k
in

g
 i

t 
d

if
fi

cu
lt

 f
o

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 c

o
ll

a
b

o
ra

te
. 

 D
e

sp
it

e
 t

h
is

, 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

d
id

 

p
u

rs
u

e
 t

h
e

 F
it

 f
o

r 
th

e
 F

u
tu

re
 o

b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

a
n

d
 m

u
ch

 w
a

s 
a

ch
ie

v
e

d
; 

n
e

w
 f

a
ci

lit
ie

s 
b

u
ilt

, 
n

e
w

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

cr
e

a
te

d
, 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 a

th
le

te
s 

re
a

ch
e

d
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

st
 

le
v

e
ls

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

sp
o

rt
 i

n
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 w
a

s 
ra

is
e

d
. 

 

P
le

a
se

 s
e

e
 t

h
e

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ic
e

s 
5

 a
n

d
 6

 f
o

r 
a

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

so
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
’ 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
a

ch
ie

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 s

u
cc

e
ss

e
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 p
e

ri
o

d
. 

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
it

 i
s 

st
re

ss
e

d
 

th
a

t 
th

e
se

 i
n

 m
o

st
 c

a
se

s 
th

e
se

 s
u

cc
e

ss
e

s 
ca

n
 b

e
 a

tt
ri

b
u

te
d

 t
o

 s
in

g
le

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s,

 n
o

t 
a

s 
a

 r
e

su
lt

 o
f 

th
e

 F
it

 f
o

r 
th

e
 F

u
tu

re
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

w
it

h
 m

in
im

a
l p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 o

r 
sh

a
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
w

e
re

 n
o

t 
m

a
xi

m
is

e
d

. 

 

Page 143



    

2
2

 

 O
th

e
r 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

lo
ca

l 
st

ra
te

g
ie

s 
 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
b

o
v

e
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 a

 S
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 S
tr

a
te

g
y 

th
e

re
fo

re
 l

in
k

s 
n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s 

co
n

si
st

e
n

cy
 o

f 
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 a

cr
o

ss
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s,
 l

in
k

s 
m

a
d

e
 a

n
d

 o
v

e
ra

ll
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s 

a
re

 a
g

re
e

d
. 

•
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 A

ct
iv

e
 T

ra
v

e
l 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
 

 
 

 

•
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

o
re

 P
a

th
 N

e
tw

o
rk

s 

•
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 L

o
ca

l T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 S
tr

a
te

g
y 

 

•
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 O

p
e

n
 S

p
a

ce
s 

St
ra

te
g

y 

•
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y

 C
e

n
tr

e
 M

a
st

e
r 

P
la

n
 

•
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 P

la
y

 S
p

a
ce

s 
R

e
v

ie
w

 

•
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 O

u
td

o
o

r 
Le

a
rn

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y 

  

            

Page 144



    

2
3

 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

  
 

T
h

e
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 

T
h

e
 S

co
tt

is
h

 S
p

o
rt

s 
A

ll
ia

n
ce

 –
 A

 M
a

n
if

e
st

o
 f

o
r 

S
co

tt
is

h
 S

p
o

rt
 2

0
1

5
 

S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

 

•
 

3
0

%
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 f

a
ll

s 

•
 

3
6

 –
 6

8
%

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

 h
ip

 f
ra

ct
u

re
 r

is
k 

•
 

3
8

%
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 c

o
g

n
it

iv
e

 d
e

cl
in

e
 r

is
k 

•
 

3
0

 –
 5

-%
 r

e
d

u
ce

d
 o

n
se

t 
o

f 
fu

n
ct

io
n

a
l 

lim
it

a
ti

o
n

s 

•
 

D
e

la
y

e
d

 d
e

m
e

n
ti

a
 

•
 

D
e

cr
e

a
se

d
 lo

n
e

li
n

e
ss

 

•
 

E
n

h
a

n
ce

d
 m

e
n

ta
l w

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 

E
co

n
o

m
ic

 p
ro

d
u

ct
iv

it
y

 

•
 

2
7

%
 f

e
w

e
r 

si
ck

 d
a

y
s 

•
 

4
 –

 5
%

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 w

o
rk

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
ce

 

•
 

8
-1

5
%

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

 s
ta

ff
 t

u
rn

o
ve

r 

A
ct

iv
e

 c
it

iz
e

n
sh

ip
 

•
 

S
o

ci
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
iv

ic
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 

•
 

S
o

ci
a

l 
a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 c
o

h
e

si
o

n
 

•
 

In
te

r-
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 i
n

te
rc

u
lt

u
ra

l 
in

te
g

ra
ti

o
n

 

•
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 e
m

p
o

w
e

rm
e

n
t 

•
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 s
p

ir
it

 

•
 

S
o

ci
a

l 
co

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 

“B
e

st
 b

u
y

” 
in

 p
u

b
li

c 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

•
 

S
a

v
e

 2
,4

4
7

 l
iv

e
s 

p
e

r 
ye

a
r 

•
 

R
e

d
u

ce
d

 i
n

ci
d

e
n

ce
 o

f:
 

o
 

P
re

m
a

tu
re

 d
e

a
th

s 
b

y
 1

6
.9

%
 

o
 

H
e

a
rt

 d
is

e
a

se
 b

y
 1

0
5

%
 

o
 

T
y

p
e

 2
 d

ia
b

e
te

s 
b

y
 1

3
%

 

o
 

B
re

a
st

 c
a

n
ce

r 
b

y
 1

7
.9

%
 

o
 

C
o

lo
n

 c
a

n
ce

r 
b

y
 1

8
.7

%
 

o
 

S
tr

o
ke

s 
b

y 
1

2
%

 

C
ri

m
e

 P
re

v
e

n
ti

o
n

 

•
 

A
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 p

o
si

ti
v

e
 b

e
h

a
v

io
u

ra
l 

ch
a

n
ce

 

•
 

A
 p

o
si

ti
v

e
 d

iv
e

rs
io

n
a

ry
 a

ct
iv

it
y 

•
 

A
 v

e
h

ic
le

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

o
 

R
e

d
u

ce
d

 r
e

-o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 

o
 

R
e

d
u

ce
d

 a
n

ti
-s

o
ci

a
l 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

Le
a

rn
in

g
 

•
 

1
5

%
 l

ik
e

li
h

o
o

d
 o

f 
g

o
in

g
 t

o
 c

o
ll

e
g

e
/u

n
iv

e
rs

it
y 

•
 

4
0

%
 h

ig
h

e
r 

te
st

 s
co

re
s 

 

 

 C
o

u
n

tl
e

ss
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s,
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 N

H
S

, 
h

a
v

e
 a

ck
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

d
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

a
n

d
 s

o
ci

e
ta

l 
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 
m

o
re

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 b
e

in
g

 m
o

re
 a

ct
iv

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 i

n
 p

h
y

si
ca

l a
ct

iv
it

y 
o

r 
in

 s
p

o
rt

. 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

d
v

a
n

ta
g

e
s 

to
 b

o
th

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
. 

 B
e

in
g

 p
h

y
si

ca
ll

y
 a

ct
iv

e
 c

a
n

 h
e

lp
 p

re
v

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
re

a
t;

 

o
b

e
si

ty
, 

ty
p

e
 2

 d
ia

b
e

te
s,

 v
a

ri
o

u
s 

ca
n

ce
rs

, 
st

ro
k

e
s,

 h
e

a
rt

 d
is

e
a

se
, 

d
e

p
re

ss
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
n

xi
e

ty
. 

   

Page 145



    

2
4

 

  T
h

e
 e

st
im

a
te

d
 c

o
st

 t
o

 t
h

e
 N

H
S

 o
f 

p
h

y
si

ca
l i

n
a

ct
iv

it
y 

is
 d

e
ta

il
e

d
 b

e
lo

w
 b

u
t 

th
e

re
 a

re
 o

th
e

r 
co

st
s 

to
 t

h
e

 lo
ca

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
, 

so
ci

a
l w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
se

rv
ic

e
s,

  
to

 

e
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 a
n

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 e
co

n
o

m
y

 o
f 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
. 

T
h

e
 C

h
ri

st
ie

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 s
u

g
g

e
st

e
d

 a
 m

o
re

 p
re

v
e

n
ta

ti
v

e
 a

n
d

 a
n

ti
ci

p
a

to
ry

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

re
fl

e
ct

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

is
 

st
ra

te
g

y
. 

 B
y

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 b

e
co

m
e

 m
o

re
 p

h
ys

ic
a

ll
y

 a
ct

iv
e

 a
n

d
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 m

o
re

 e
a

rl
y

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
e

n
 m

u
ch

 o
f 

th
is

 s
p

e
n

d
 c

a
n

 b
e

 a
vo

id
e

d
. 

        In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
a

n
y

 h
e

a
lt

h
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 t

h
e

re
 i

s 
in

cr
e

a
si

n
g

 e
v

id
e

n
ce

 o
f 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y 
m

a
k

in
g

 a
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

th
e

r 
so

ci
a

l 

o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
o

f 
e

q
u

a
li

ty
, 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
. 

 

 

 

 
 

“
C

o
st

in
g

 t
h

e
 b

u
rd

e
n

 o
f 

il
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

in
a

ct
iv

it
y

 f
o

r 

S
co

tl
a

n
d

” 
A

u
g

u
st

 2
0

1
2

 

“P
h

y
si

ca
l 

in
a

ct
iv

it
y

 c
o

st
 t

h
e

 N
H

S
 i

n
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 £

9
4

.1
M

 (
£

9
1

.8
M

 t
o

 £
9

6
.4

M
) 

in
 

2
0

1
0

-1
1

” 

D
r 

C
h

a
rl

ie
 F

o
st

e
r 

a
n

d
 D

r 
S

te
v

e
n

 A
lle

n
d

e
r,

 B
H

F
 H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
 R

e
se

a
rc

h
 

G
ro

u
p

, 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

 o
f 

O
xf

o
rd

 o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 B

ri
ti

sh
 H

e
a

lt
h

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 P

ro
m

o
ti

o
n

 R
e

se
a

rc
h

 G
ro

u
p

 f
o

r 
th

e
 S

co
tt

is
h

 P
h

y
si

ca
l 

A
ct

iv
it

y
 

R
e

se
a

rc
h

 C
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
ti

o
n

 (
SP

A
R

C
o

ll
) 

Page 146



    

2
5

 

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 3

 

W
h

y
 d

o
 w

e
 n

e
e

d
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
y

?
 

•
 

P
h

y
si

ca
l i

n
a

ct
iv

it
y 

re
su

lt
s 

in
 a

ro
u

n
d

 7
 p

re
m

a
tu

re
 d

e
a

th
s 

in
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 p

e
r 

d
a

y 

•
 

2
1

%
 o

f 
th

e
 S

co
tt

is
h

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 i
s 

in
a

ct
iv

e
 

•
 

P
h

y
si

ca
l i

n
a

ct
iv

it
y 

co
st

s 
th

e
 N

H
S

 a
ro

u
n

d
 £

9
4

 m
il

lio
n

 a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
 

•
 

B
e

in
g

 p
h

y
si

ca
ll

y 
a

ct
iv

e
 c

a
n

 h
e

lp
 p

re
ve

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

re
a

t 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 2
0

 c
h

ro
n

ic
 d

is
e

a
se

s 
 

•
 

In
 2

0
1

2
 2

7
.1

%
 a

d
u

lt
s 

in
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 w

e
re

 o
b

e
se

 a
n

d
 6

4
.3

%
 w

e
re

 o
v

e
rw

e
ig

h
t 

(i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 o

b
e

se
) 

•
 

In
 2

0
1

2
 t

h
e

 f
ig

u
re

 f
o

r 
o

v
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 o
b

e
si

ty
) 

in
 b

o
y

s 
w

a
s 

3
3

.6
%

 a
n

d
 f

o
r 

g
ir

ls
 2

7
.4

%
 

•
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 o
f 

p
a

re
n

ts
 w

h
o

 a
re

 o
f 

a
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 w

e
ig

h
t 

o
r 

u
n

d
e

rw
e

ig
h

t 
a

re
 l

e
ss

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
t 

ri
sk

 o
f 

o
v

e
rw

e
ig

h
t 

o
r 

o
b

e
se

 t
h

a
n

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 o
f 

o
b

e
se

 p
a

re
n

ts
  

•
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 1

5
%

 m
o

st
 d

e
p

ri
v

e
d

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

S
co

tl
a

n
d

 a
re

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
tl

y 
m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
t 

ri
sk

 o
f 

o
b

e
si

ty
 t

h
a

n
 t

h
o

se
 l

iv
in

g
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

 (
1

8
.7

%
 

co
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 1
4

.5
%

).
  

•
 

S
co

tl
a

n
d

 h
a

s 
o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 h
ig

h
e

st
 l

e
v

e
ls

 o
f 

o
b

e
si

ty
 i

n
 O

E
C

D
7

 c
o

u
n

tr
ie

s;
 o

n
ly

 t
h

e
 U

SA
 a

n
d

 M
e

xi
co

 h
a

v
in

g
 h

ig
h

e
r 

le
ve

ls
 

•
 

1
7

%
 o

f 
ch

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

 a
re

 a
t 

ri
sk

 o
f 

o
b

e
si

ty
 

T
h

e
 s

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
a

b
o

v
e

 a
re

 w
o

rr
y

in
g

 a
n

d
 w

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 t

a
ke

 a
ct

io
n

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e

 l
if

e
 c

h
a

n
ce

s 
o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 o
ff

e
ri

n
g

 m
o

re
 a

cc
e

ss
ib

le
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
fo

r 
th

e
m

 

to
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

. 
 

R
e

se
a

rc
h

 h
a

s 
in

fo
rm

e
d

  m
a

n
y

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l a
n

d
 l

o
ca

l 
p

o
li

ci
e

s 
w

h
ic

h
 i

n
 t

u
rn

 s
u

g
g

e
st

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 m

o
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 m
o

re
 a

ct
iv

e
 

a
n

d
 s

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 

 T
h

e
se

 p
o

li
ci

e
s 

a
re

 c
o

n
ta

in
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
. 

 

In
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 m
a

n
y

 s
e

p
a

ra
te

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

, 
fr

a
g

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 h

a
s 

e
xi

st
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
e

 b
e

lie
ve

 t
h

a
t 

b
y

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
w

e
 c

a
n

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

 o
u

r 
re

so
u

rc
e

s 
b

e
tt

e
r,

 

o
ff

e
r 

a
 b

ro
a

d
e

r 
ra

n
g

e
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 t

a
rg

e
t 

th
o

se
 w

h
o

 n
e

e
d

 i
t 

m
o

st
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
ce

 h
e

a
lt

h
 i

n
e

q
u

a
li

ti
e

s.
  

T
h

e
 A

ct
iv

e
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 t

o
 

m
a

ke
 t

h
is

 h
a

p
p

e
n

. 
 A

ll
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 w

il
l w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 m
a

xi
m

is
e

 r
e

so
u

rc
e

s 
a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
w

a
rd

s 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
a

n
d

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s.
  T

h
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

’s
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
s 

w
il

l e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i

s 
a

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 m
in

im
is

in
g

 g
a

p
s 

a
n

d
 o

v
e

rl
a

p
s 

in
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
. 

 
 

Page 147



    

2
6

 

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

  
 

 S
ta

rt
 A

ct
iv

e
, 

S
ta

y
 A

ct
iv

e
 -

 a
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
n

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 f

o
r 

h
e

a
lt

h
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 f

o
u

r 
h

o
m

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

ie
s’

 C
h

ie
f 

M
e

d
ic

a
l 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
 (

2
0

1
1

) 

 P
h

y
si

ca
l 

A
ct

iv
it

y
 G

u
id

e
li

n
e

s 

 

U
n

d
e

r 
5

s 
n

o
t 

y
e

t 

w
a

lk
in

g
 

1
. 

P
h

y
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

it
y

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

d
 f

ro
m

 b
ir

th
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 f
lo

o
r-

b
a

se
d

 p
la

n
 a

n
d

 w
a

te
r-

b
a

se
d

 

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

in
 s

a
fe

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ts

 

2
. 

A
ll

 u
n

d
e

r 
5

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 m

in
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
ti

m
e

 s
p

e
n

t 
b

e
in

g
 s

e
d

e
n

ta
ry

 (
b

e
in

g
 r

e
st

ra
in

e
d

 o
r 

si
tt

in
g

) 
fo

r 

e
xt

e
n

d
e

d
 p

e
ri

o
d

s 
(e

xc
e

p
t 

ti
m

e
 s

p
e

n
t 

sl
e

e
p

in
g

) 

 

E
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

 (
U

n
d

e
r 

5
s)

 

fo
r 

ch
il

d
re

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 

ca
p

a
b

le
 o

f 
w

a
lk

in
g

 

1
. 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 o
f 

p
re

-s
ch

o
o

l 
a

g
e

 w
h

o
 a

re
 c

a
p

a
b

le
 o

f 
w

a
lk

in
g

 u
n

a
id

e
d

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

h
y

si
ca

ll
y

 a
ct

iv
e

 d
a

il
y

 f
o

r 
a

t 
le

a
st

 1
8

0
 

m
in

u
te

s 
(3

 h
o

u
rs

),
 s

p
re

a
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 d

a
y

.*
  

2
. 

 A
ll

 u
n

d
e

r 
5

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 m

in
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
ti

m
e

 s
p

e
n

t 
b

e
in

g
 s

e
d

e
n

ta
ry

 (
b

e
in

g
 r

e
st

ra
in

e
d

 o
r 

si
tt

in
g

) 
fo

r 

e
xt

e
n

d
e

d
 p

e
ri

o
d

s 
(e

xc
e

p
t 

ti
m

e
 s

p
e

n
t 

sl
e

e
p

in
g

).
  

*
 M

o
st

 U
K

 p
re

-s
ch

o
o

l c
h

il
d

re
n

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 s

p
e

n
d

 1
2

0
–

1
5

0
 m

in
u

te
s 

a
 d

a
y

 i
n

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
, 

so
 a

ch
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
is

 g
u

id
e

li
n

e
 

w
o

u
ld

 m
e

a
n

 a
d

d
in

g
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
3

0
–

6
0

 m
in

u
te

s 
p

e
r 

d
a

y
. 

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 

p
e

o
p

le
 (

5
 -

1
8

 y
e

a
rs

) 

1
. 

A
ll

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 s

h
o

u
ld

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 i
n

 m
o

d
e

ra
te

 t
o

 v
ig

o
ro

u
s 

in
te

n
si

ty
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 f
o

r 
a

t 
le

a
st

 6
0

 

m
in

u
te

s 
a

n
d

 u
p

 t
o

 s
e

v
e

ra
l h

o
u

rs
 e

v
e

ry
 d

a
y

. 
 

2
. 

V
ig

o
ro

u
s 

in
te

n
si

ty
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s,
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 t
h

o
se

 t
h

a
t 

st
re

n
g

th
e

n
 m

u
sc

le
 a

n
d

 b
o

n
e

, 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i

n
co

rp
o

ra
te

d
 a

t 
le

a
st

 

th
re

e
 d

a
y

s 
a

 w
e

e
k

. 
 

3
. 

A
ll

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 s

h
o

u
ld

 m
in

im
is

e
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 

o
f 

ti
m

e
 s

p
e

n
t 

b
e

in
g

 s
e

d
e

n
ta

ry
 (

si
tt

in
g

) 
fo

r 
e

xt
e

n
d

e
d

 

p
e

ri
o

d
s.

  

 

A
d

u
lt

s 
(1

9
-6

4
 y

e
a

rs
) 

1
. 

A
d

u
lt

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 a

im
 t

o
 b

e
 a

ct
iv

e
 d

a
ily

. 
O

v
e

r 
a

 w
e

e
k

, 
a

ct
iv

it
y 

sh
o

u
ld

 a
d

d
 u

p
 t

o
 a

t 
le

a
st

 1
5

0
 m

in
u

te
s 

(2
½

 h
o

u
rs

) 
o

f 

m
o

d
e

ra
te

 i
n

te
n

si
ty

 a
ct

iv
it

y
 in

 b
o

u
ts

 o
f 

1
0

 m
in

u
te

s 
o

r 
m

o
re

 –
 o

n
e

 w
a

y
 t

o
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

h
is

 i
s 

to
 d

o
 3

0
 m

in
u

te
s 

o
n

 a
t 

le
a

st
 5

 d
a

ys
 a

 w
e

e
k

. 
 

2
. 

A
lt

e
rn

a
ti

ve
ly

, 
co

m
p

a
ra

b
le

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 c
a

n
 b

e
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 7
5

 m
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
v

ig
o

ro
u

s 
in

te
n

si
ty

 a
ct

iv
it

y
 s

p
re

a
d

 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 w

e
e

k
 o

r 
co

m
b

in
a

ti
o

n
s 

o
f 

m
o

d
e

ra
te

 a
n

d
 v

ig
o

ro
u

s 
in

te
n

si
ty

 a
ct

iv
it

y
. 

 

3
. 

A
d

u
lt

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

ve
 m

u
sc

le
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
 o

n
 a

t 
le

a
st

 t
w

o
 d

a
y

s 
a

 w
e

e
k

. 
 

4
. 

A
ll

 a
d

u
lt

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 m

in
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
ti

m
e

 s
p

e
n

t 
b

e
in

g
 s

e
d

e
n

ta
ry

 (
si

tt
in

g
) 

fo
r 

e
xt

e
n

d
e

d
 p

e
ri

o
d

s.
  

Page 148



    

2
7

 

 O
ld

e
r 

a
d

u
lt

s 
(6

5
+

 y
e

a
rs

) 
1

. 
O

ld
e

r 
a

d
u

lt
s 

w
h

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 a
n

y
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
p

h
y

si
ca

l a
ct

iv
it

y
 g

a
in

 s
o

m
e

 h
e

a
lt

h
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 o
f 

g
o

o
d

 p
h

ys
ic

a
l 

a
n

d
 c

o
g

n
it

iv
e

 f
u

n
ct

io
n

. 
S

o
m

e
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 i
s 

b
e

tt
e

r 
th

a
n

 n
o

n
e

, 
a

n
d

 m
o

re
 

p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 p

ro
v

id
e

s 
g

re
a

te
r 

h
e

a
lt

h
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
. 

 

2
. 

O
ld

e
r 

a
d

u
lt

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 a

im
 t

o
 b

e
 a

ct
iv

e
 d

a
ily

. 
O

v
e

r 
a

 w
e

e
k

, 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

d
d

 u
p

 t
o

 a
t 

le
a

st
 1

5
0

 m
in

u
te

s 
(2

½
 

h
o

u
rs

) 
o

f 
m

o
d

e
ra

te
 i

n
te

n
si

ty
 a

ct
iv

it
y

 i
n

 b
o

u
ts

 o
f 

1
0

 m
in

u
te

s 
o

r 
m

o
re

 –
 o

n
e

 w
a

y
 t

o
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

h
is

 i
s 

to
 d

o
 3

0
 

m
in

u
te

s 
o

n
 a

t 
le

a
st

 5
 d

a
y

s 
a

 w
e

e
k

. 
 

3
. 

F
o

r 
th

o
se

 w
h

o
 a

re
 a

lr
e

a
d

y 
re

g
u

la
rl

y
 a

ct
iv

e
 a

t 
m

o
d

e
ra

te
 i

n
te

n
si

ty
, 

co
m

p
a

ra
b

le
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 c

a
n

 b
e

 a
ch

ie
v

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

7
5

 m
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
v

ig
o

ro
u

s 
in

te
n

si
ty

 a
ct

iv
it

y
 s

p
re

a
d

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 w

e
e

k 
o

r 
a

 c
o

m
b

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

o
d

e
ra

te
 a

n
d

 v
ig

o
ro

u
s 

a
ct

iv
it

y
. 

 

4
. 

O
ld

e
r 

a
d

u
lt

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 p
h

y
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

it
y 

to
 im

p
ro

v
e

 m
u

sc
le

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

 o
n

 a
t 

le
a

st
 t

w
o

 d
a

y
s 

a
 w

e
e

k
. 

 

5
. 

O
ld

e
r 

a
d

u
lt

s 
a

t 
ri

sk
 o

f 
fa

ll
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 i
n

co
rp

o
ra

te
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 b
a

la
n

ce
 a

n
d

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

t 
le

a
st

 

tw
o

 d
a

y
s 

a
 w

e
e

k
. 

 

6
. 

A
ll

 o
ld

e
r 

a
d

u
lt

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 m

in
im

is
e

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
ti

m
e

 s
p

e
n

t 
b

e
in

g
 s

e
d

e
n

ta
ry

 (
si

tt
in

g
) 

fo
r 

e
xt

e
n

d
e

d
 p

e
ri

o
d

s.
  

 

  
 

Page 149



    

2
8

 

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 5

  
 

Il
lu

st
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

u
rr

e
n

t 
R

e
a

ch
 o

f 
F

a
ci

li
ti

e
s,

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s,

 S
p

o
rt

s 
C

lu
b

s 
a

n
d

 E
v

e
n

ts
  

T
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 t
a

b
le

s 
a

tt
e

m
p

t 
to

 i
ll

u
st

ra
te

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y 
a

cr
o

ss
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

. 

V
e

n
u

e
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
M

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 

V
is

it
s 

V
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 F

o
o

tb
a

ll
 C

lu
b

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

T
ru

st
 

B
e

ca
m

e
 a

 s
ta

n
d

a
lo

n
e

 c
h

a
ri

ty
 i

n
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
4

  

N
o

t 
a

p
p

li
ca

b
le

 
2

0
1

5
 –

 1
6

 (
o

n
ly

 h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
a

so
n

) 

7
1

,0
0

0
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

s 
in

vo
lv

in
g

 9
,5

2
2

 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
 

1
4

6
.5

 h
o

u
rs

 t
o

 d
a

te
 t

h
is

 s
e

a
so

n
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 S

n
o

w
sp

o
rt

s 
C

e
n

tr
e

 

S
e

t 
u

p
 2

0
0

5
 

 

N
o

t 
a

p
p

li
ca

b
le

 
2

0
1

4
 -

 1
5

 

7
0

,9
6

6
 v

is
it

s 

A
 1

6
%

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
vi

o
u

s 
ye

a
r 

(F
o

o
tb

a
ll

 –
 3

4
,9

1
5

 

S
n

o
w

sp
o

rt
s 

–
 3

6
,0

4
5

) 

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 S

p
o

rt
s 

V
il

la
g

e
 

V
il

la
g

e
  

o
p

e
n

e
d

 i
n

 A
u

g
u

st
 2

0
0

9
 

A
q

u
a

ti
cs

 C
e

n
tr

e
 o

p
e

n
e

d
 i

n
 M

a
y

 

2
0

1
4

 

 

2
0

1
0

 -
 2

0
1

6
  

M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 d
o

u
b

le
d

  

5
,0

4
6

 t
o

 1
0

,2
7

2
 

2
0

1
4

 –
 1

5
 

9
9

7
,7

0
1

 

1
0

,9
7

9
 o

f 
w

h
o

m
 w

e
re

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 (
w

it
h

 a
n

 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

1
0

3
1

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 s

p
o

rt
s 

ca
m

p
s)

 

S
e

n
io

rs
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

2
0

1
4

 –
 1

5
 

1
8

,6
5

0
 

 

A
ct

iv
e

 S
ch

o
o

ls
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 
N

o
t 

a
p

p
li

ca
b

le
 

2
0

1
4

 -
1

5
  

1
8

0
,4

9
7

 P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
t 

se
ss

io
n

s 

M
a

le
 –

 9
3

,3
0

2
 

F
e

m
a

le
 –

 8
7

,1
9

5
 

6
0

 s
p

o
rt

s 
cl

u
b

s 
li

n
k

e
d

 t
o

 a
t 

le
a

st
 o

n
e

 

sc
h

o
o

l 

3
0

 %
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 i

n
 s

e
ss

io
n

s 
fo

r 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 

w
it

h
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 N

e
e

d
s 

4
4

7
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 (
1

5
8

 q
u

a
li

fi
e

d
) 

2
2

 y
o

u
n

g
 a

m
b

a
ss

a
d

o
rs

  

6
7

 q
u

a
li

fi
e

d
 s

e
co

n
d

a
ry

 p
u

p
il

s 
 

 

Page 150



    

2
9

 

 A
d

v
e

n
tu

re
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

, 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 

a
n

d
 C

h
il

d
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s,

 A
C

C
 

N
o

t 
a

p
p

li
ca

b
le

 
2

0
1

4
-1

5
 

6
3

9
  

fo
u

r 
h

o
u

r 
se

ss
io

n
s 

 

A
n

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 o
f 

4
7

%
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 p

re
v

io
u

s 

y
e

a
r.

 U
sa

g
e

 w
a

s 
 

1
5

%
  

 S
e

co
n

d
a

ry
 s

ch
o

o
ls

   

2
4

%
  

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 s

ch
o

o
ls

  
  

1
8

%
  

 A
S

N
   

 

4
%

   
  5

0
+

   
 

 

C
u

rl
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

O
p

e
n

e
d

 2
0

0
5

 

 

2
0

0
9

 t
o

 2
0

1
5

 

7
0

0
 r

e
la

ti
ve

ly
 s

ta
ti

c 
  

T
a

k
e

s 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 f

ro
m

 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 e

a
st

 o
f 

S
co

tl
a

n
d

 

4
5

 t
e

a
m

s 
fr

o
m

 3
0

 C
lu

b
s 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i

n
 it

s 

S
u

p
e

r 
Le

a
g

u
e

  

 

D
e

n
is

 L
a

w
 L

e
g

a
cy

 T
ru

st
  

(S
tr

e
e

ts
p

o
rt

) 

E
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
6

 

N
o

t 
a

p
p

li
ca

b
le

  

F
re

e
 m

o
b

ile
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

b
a

se
d

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

2
0

0
9

 –
 2

,7
5

8
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

s 

2
0

1
5

 –
 8

,1
3

8
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

s 

B
a

n
k

 o
f 

o
v

e
r 

5
0

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
  

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 

N
o

t 
a

p
p

li
ca

b
le

 
A

 v
a

ri
e

ty
 o

f 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s 
fo

cu
si

n
g

 o
n

 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s 

 

P
E

 i
n

 S
ch

o
o

ls
 

N
o

t 
a

p
p

li
ca

b
le

 
S

e
co

n
d

a
ry

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 a

ch
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 

2
 p

e
ri

o
d

s 
o

f 
P

E
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k

 =
 1

0
0

%
 

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 s

ch
o

o
ls

 a
ch

ie
v

in
g

 t
h

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 

2
 

h
o

u
rs

 o
f 

P
E

 p
e

r 
w

e
e

k
 =

 9
6

%
 

 (
th

o
se

 n
o

t 
a

ch
ie

v
in

g
 i

t 
a

re
 c

o
n

st
ra

in
e

d
 

b
y

 t
h

e
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
) 

 

R
G

U
 S

p
o

rt
 

 

2
0

0
9

 -
 3

7
8

0
 

2
0

1
5

 -
 3

2
9

0
 

  

2
0

0
9

 -
  

2
2

5
,0

0
0

 

2
0

1
5

 –
 2

3
5

,0
0

0
 

1
2

0
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 T
o

p
 U

p
 S

w
im

m
in

g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

P
7

 p
u

p
il

s 
in

 3
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

sc
h

o
o

ls
 

S
p

o
rt

s 
sc

h
o

la
rs

h
ip

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
r 

1
8

 

st
u

d
e

n
ts

  

2
0

1
5

 

V
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
fo

r 
sp

o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
  

4
6

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
  

 

Page 151



    

3
0

 

 S
p

o
rt

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

   

M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

  

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
0

9
 –

 9
5

0
 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

6
 –

 3
,5

5
6

 

 

2
0

1
4

 -
 2

0
1

5
 

1
.2

 m
il

li
o

n
 v

is
it

s 

8
9

,6
5

3
 r

o
u

n
d

s 
o

f 
g

o
lf

 

5
2

,4
4

8
 u

si
n

g
 o

u
td

o
o

r 
p

it
ch

e
s 

4
,9

1
1

 s
w

im
m

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 le

a
rn

 t
o

 s
w

im
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

 W
a

lk
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
s 

in
cr

e
a

se
d

 f
ro

m
 3

5
9

 t
o

 1
3

7
9

 

(2
0

1
3

 –
 1

5
) 

 

 M
o

v
e

 M
o

re
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

1
5

1
 r

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 (

D
e

c 
1

4
 -

 M
a

rc
h

 1
5

) 

7
1

%
 f

ro
m

 N
H

S
 

2
9

%
 s

e
lf

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 

 A
ct

iv
e

 A
g

in
g

 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
s 

in
cr

e
a

se
d

 f
ro

m
 3

8
2

 t
o

 2
5

6
9

  

(2
0

1
3

 –
 2

0
1

5
) 

       B
e

tw
e

e
n

 2
0

1
3

 –
 1

5
  

1
6

1
 w

a
lk

 l
e

a
d

e
rs

 t
ra

in
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
1

5
 

se
ss

io
n

s 

 2
3

 a
ct

iv
e

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
 

2
2

 w
a

lk
 le

a
d

e
rs

 t
ra

in
e

d
 

1
3

 G
e

n
tl

e
 M

o
v

e
m

e
n

t 
tr

a
in

e
d

 

 

T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 E

x
tr

e
m

e
 o

p
e

n
e

d
 2

0
0

7
 

 

 
1

0
0

,0
0

0
 v

is
it

s 
p

e
r 

a
n

n
u

m
 

(2
5

,0
0

0
 s

k
a

te
p

a
rk

 s
e

ss
io

n
s 

a
n

d
 3

0
,0

0
0

 

cl
im

b
in

g
 s

e
ss

io
n

s 
p

e
r 

ye
a

r)
 

O
u

tr
e

a
ch

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 o

f 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 S
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

E
x

e
rc

is
e

 T
e

a
m

 

S
tu

d
e

n
t 

S
p

o
rt

s 
U

n
io

n
 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 h
a

s 
st

a
y

e
d

 

st
a

ti
c 

o
v

e
r 

5
 y

e
a

rs
 

S
tu

d
e

n
ts

 u
se

 A
S

V
 

2
,0

0
0

  
P

ri
m

a
ry

 s
ch

o
o

l 
p

u
p

il
s(

fr
o

m
 5

 lo
ca

l 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

ch
o

o
ls

) 
 a

tt
e

n
d

e
d

 t
h

e
 S

a
lt

ir
e

 

S
ch

o
o

ls
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 

1
4

 S
tu

d
e

n
ts

 o
n

 s
p

o
rt

 s
ch

o
la

rs
h

ip
s 

 

N
O

T
E

: 
 

•
 

T
h

is
 i

s 
fo

r 
il

lu
st

ra
ti

v
e

 p
u

rp
o

se
s 

u
si

n
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 c
o

ll
e

ct
e

d
 b

y 
e

a
ch

 o
p

e
ra

to
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

se
 c

a
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 a

g
g

re
g

a
te

d
 b

e
ca

u
se

 o
f 

th
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

d
a

ta
 

co
ll

e
ct

e
d

, 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l 

y
e

a
rs

, 
th

e
 s

e
a

so
n

a
li

ty
 o

f 
so

m
e

 s
p

o
rt

s 
e

tc
 

Page 152



    

3
1

 

 

•
 

T
h

e
re

 w
il

l 
b

e
 d

u
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 i

e
 o

n
e

 p
e

rs
o

n
 e

it
h

e
r 

b
e

in
g

 a
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 o
n

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 o
r 

v
is

it
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 o
n

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

 

•
 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 m
e

a
n

s 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
th

in
g

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 e

a
ch

 o
f 

th
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 b

e
in

g
 a

 m
e

m
b

e
r 

d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
m

e
a

n
 t

h
a

t 
a

 p
e

rs
o

n
 u

se
s 

th
e

 f
a

ci
li

ty
 o

n
 a

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

b
a

si
s 

•
 

S
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 v

is
it

o
rs

 m
a

y 
n

o
t 

b
e

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ts
 o

f 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
p

o
rt

s 
C

lu
b

s 
in

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

B
y

 t
h

e
ir

 v
e

ry
 n

a
tu

re
 it

 i
s 

d
if

fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
p

o
rt

s 
cl

u
b

s 
b

e
ca

u
se

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

g
u

la
r 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

m
a

d
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 o

ff
ic

e
 b

e
a

re
rs

, 
 

fe
w

 c
lu

b
s 

h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 p

re
m

is
e

s 
so

 i
t 

is
 j

u
d

g
e

d
 o

n
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 s
e

cr
e

ta
ry

 l
iv

e
s.

  
 W

it
h

 t
h

e
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l b
o

u
n

d
a

ri
e

s 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
 a

n
d

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
sh

ir
e

 it
 i

s 

in
e

v
it

a
b

le
 t

h
a

t 
“c

it
y”

 c
lu

b
s 

ca
te

r 
fo

r 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

sh
ir

e
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
is

 c
a

n
 a

d
d

 a
 le

v
e

l o
f 

co
m

p
le

xi
ty

 t
o

 d
e

d
u

ce
 t

h
e

 c
lu

b
’s

 h
o

m
e

 b
a

se
. 

   

 I
t 

is
 u

n
fo

rt
u

n
a

te
 t

h
e

re
 i

s 
n

o
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
k

e
p

t 
u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

. 
 H

o
w

e
v

e
r 

in
 2

0
1

3
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 S
p

o
rt

s 
C

o
u

n
ci

l c
o

m
p

il
e

d
 a

 li
st

 t
h

a
t 

in
cl

u
d

e
d

 9
2

 c
lu

b
s 

o
ff

e
ri

n
g

 a
t 

le
a

st
 3

2
 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

sp
o

rt
s 

a
n

d
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s.
  

E
st

im
a

te
d

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

cl
u

b
s 

in
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 (
n

o
te

: 
d

u
e

 t
o

 m
e

th
o

d
s 

o
f 

co
u

n
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
re

 m
a

y 
b

e
 a

n
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
d

u
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

it
 i

s 

a
ls

o
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

h
a

t 
n

o
t 

a
ll 

cl
u

b
s 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
a

p
tu

re
d

).
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

l g
ro

u
p

s 
o

n
 t

h
e

 g
ro

u
n

d
 o

rg
a

n
is

in
g

 w
a

lk
s,

 c
yc

le
 r

id
e

s 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 n
o

t 
ca

p
tu

re
d

 b
e

lo
w

. 
  

E
st

im
a

te
d

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
p

o
rt

s 
cl

u
b

s 
(p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

fo
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 o
n

e
 c

lu
b

) 

 
E

st
im

a
te

d
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
cl

u
b

s 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
p

o
rt

 c
lu

b
s 

9
2

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

 C
lu

b
s 

5
0

+
 

R
G

U
:S

p
o

rt
 C

lu
b

s 
3

2
 

 T
h

e
 r

e
a

ch
 o

f 
a

 s
e

le
ct

io
n

 o
f 

m
a

jo
r 

sp
o

rt
s 

e
v

e
n

ts
 i

n
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

  
  

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 Y

o
u

th
 G

a
m

e
s 

F
o

r 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
ch

o
o

l p
u

p
il

s 

1
1

0
0

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 3

8
 

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 

 

G
o

ld
e

n
 G

a
m

e
s 

F
o

r 
o

v
e

r 
6

5
s 

2
0

1
1

 –
 8

0
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 

2
0

1
5

 –
 4

2
5

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 

 

 

B
a

k
e

r 
H

u
g

h
e

s 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

  
1

0
K

 

 

1
0

k 
- 

5
,4

4
0

 e
n

tr
ie

s 
 

2
k

 –
 1

4
0

 e
n

tr
ie

s 

2
0

0
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 

Page 153



    

3
2

 

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 6

  
  
 

A
 s

e
le

ct
io

n
 o

f 
su

cc
e

ss
e

s 
a

g
a

in
st

 t
h

e
 o

b
je

ct
iv

e
s 

o
f 

F
it

 f
o

r 
th

e
 F

u
tu

re
 2

0
0

9
 –

 2
0

1
5

 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 1
 –

 P
ro

m
o

te
 a

n
d

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 f

o
r 

e
v

e
ry

o
n

e
 i

n
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

 In
cr

e
a

se
 o

v
e

ra
ll

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 y

e
a

r 
o

n
 y

e
a

r 
to

 r
e

a
ch

 a
n

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 o
f 

1
0

%
 

b
y

 2
0

1
5

 

•
 

A
ll

 v
e

n
u

e
 o

p
e

ra
to

rs
 a

n
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s 
to

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 s

p
o

rt
. 

 

S
o

m
e

 h
a

v
e

 e
v

id
e

n
ce

 o
f 

in
cr

e
a

se
d

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 

•
 

H
a

rd
 t

o
 r

e
a

ch
 g

ro
u

p
s 

in
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

l 
a

re
a

s,
 t

h
o

se
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

a
ct

iv
e

 a
n

d
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 d

is
a

b
il

it
ie

s 
a

n
d

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 

m
e

d
ic

a
l 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s 
h

a
v

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i

n
 s

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 a

cr
o

ss
 a

ll
 o

f 
th

e
 v

e
n

u
e

s 
a

n
d

 

in
 a

 w
id

e
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

•
 

3
1

%
 o

f 
th

e
 g

ro
u

p
s 

th
a

t 
A

d
v

e
n

tu
re

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 w

o
rk

s 
w

it
h

 a
re

 t
h

o
se

 w
it

h
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 n
e

e
d

s 
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 

w
it

h
 a

 d
is

a
b

il
it

y
 h

a
v

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i

n
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
sp

o
rt

s 
a

n
d

 a
d

a
p

te
d

 v
e

rs
io

n
s 

li
k

e
 w

a
lk

in
g

 

fo
o

tb
a

ll
  

•
 

A
d

v
e

n
tu

re
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 h
a

s 
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 i

t 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 w

it
h

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

su
p

p
o

rt
 n

e
e

d
s 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

 r
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

 

a
re

a
s 

in
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 e
it

h
e

r 
re

-e
n

g
a

g
e

 o
r 

to
 s

ta
y

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h

 m
a

in
st

re
a

m
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

a
l 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

•
 

T
h

e
  

A
d

v
e

n
tu

re
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 5
0

+
 s

e
ss

io
n

s 
h

a
s 

re
a

li
g

n
e

d
 i

ts
 o

ff
e

r 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
re

 l
o

w
 r

is
k

 a
d

v
e

n
tu

re
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 

a
n

d
 f

e
w

e
r 

a
d

v
e

n
tu

ro
u

s 
a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 

•
 

S
e

ss
io

n
s 

o
ff

e
re

d
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m
s 

a
n

d
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 

•
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 W

a
lk

s 
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

 w
it

h
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
d

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

w
n

. 

•
 

S
ch

o
o

ls
 i

n
 r

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s 
a

re
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 C
u

rl
in

g
’s

 C
o

o
l 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

•
 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
re

 i
n

 r
e

ce
ip

t 
o

f 
b

e
tt

e
r 

q
u

a
li

ty
 P

h
y

si
ca

l 
E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 P

E
 L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

in
v

e
st

m
e

n
t 

•
 

T
h

e
 5

0
+

 a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
 h

a
v

e
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
 i

n
 v

a
ri

o
u

s 

v
e

n
u

e
s 

•
 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
p

o
rt

s 
cl

u
b

s 
a

re
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

o
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
ir

 s
p

o
rt

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 B

o
d

y
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

•
 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 w

it
h

 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 m

e
d

ic
a

l 
co

n
d

it
io

n
s 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

rs
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

a
ct

iv
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

le
v

e
ls

 o
f 

w
a

lk
in

g
 

g
ro

u
p

s 

•
 

2
5

 c
lu

b
s 

a
re

 n
o

w
 a

cc
re

d
it

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

lu
b

C
a

p
 s

ch
e

m
e
 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 a

n
d

 r
e

m
o

v
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 “
h

a
rd

 t
o

 r
e

a
ch

” 
g

ro
u

p
s 

a
n

d
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
se

 g
ro

u
p

s 
b

y
 2

5
%

 b
y

 2
0

1
5

 

 A
ll

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
cc

e
ss

 t
o

 q
u

a
li

ty
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

se
tt

in
g

s 

T
o

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i

n
 t

h
e

 o
v

e
r 

5
0

s 
a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 b
y

 2
0

%
 b

y
 2

0
1

5
 

W
o

rk
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 d

ri
v

e
 u

p
 t

h
e

 o
v

e
ra

ll
 m

a
rk

e
t 

in
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

E
n

su
re

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 l

e
v

e
ls

 a
re

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 a

n
d

 s
u

st
a

in
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 s
p

o
rt

s 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

In
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

sp
o

rt
s 

cl
u

b
s 

a
cc

re
d

it
e

d
 t

o
 a

 r
e

co
g

n
iz

e
d

 q
u

a
li

ty
 

sy
st

e
m

 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 2
 P

ro
v

id
e

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

v
e

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li

ty
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

sp
o

rt
s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

in
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

 C
a

te
r 

fo
r 

a
ll

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 s
p

o
rt

sc
o

tl
a

n
d

 d
e

fi
n

e
d

 s
p

o
rt

s 
a

t 
a

 l
o

ca
l 

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
t 

le
v

e
l 

in
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 b
y

 2
0

1
5

 

•
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 S

p
o

rt
s 

V
il

la
g

e
 o

p
e

n
e

d
 i

n
 2

0
0

9
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 A

q
u

a
ti

cs
  

C
e

n
tr

e
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 i

n
 2

0
1

4
 

•
 

C
u

rl
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 i
s 

a
 w

o
rl

d
 c

la
ss

 d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 c

u
rl

in
g

 f
a

ci
li

ty
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
d

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 f
o

r 
e

li
te

 c
u

rl
e

rs
 

•
 

A
d

v
e

n
tu

re
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 m
o

v
e

d
 i

n
to

 a
 p

u
rp

o
se

 b
u

il
t 

co
n

v
e

rs
io

n
 i

n
 2

0
1

0
 p

ro
v

id
in

g
 a

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a

li
ty

 f
a

ci
li

ty
 

•
 

T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 E

xt
re

m
e

 w
h

ic
h

 o
ri

g
in

a
ll

y
 o

p
e

n
e

d
 i

n
 2

0
0

7
, 

re
ce

n
tl

y
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
e

d
  

it
s 

 s
k

a
te

p
a

rk
  

Im
p

ro
v

e
 t

h
e

 o
v

e
ra

ll
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

sp
o

rt
s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 r
e

d
u

ci
n

g
 t

h
e

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
o

o
r 

q
u

a
li

ty
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 n
o

t 
fi

t 
fo

r 
p

u
rp

o
se

 

E
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
’s

 t
a

rg
e

t 
sp

o
rt

s 
ca

n
 b

e
 c

a
te

re
d

 f
o

r 
a

t 
a

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 

Page 154



    

3
3

 

 tr
a

in
in

g
/ 

co
m

p
e

ti
ti

o
n

 l
e

v
e

l 
b

y
 2

0
1

5
 

•
 

T
u

ll
o

s 
P

o
o

l 
re

fu
rb

is
h

e
d

 

•
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
d

e
 t

o
 g

o
lf

 c
o

u
rs

e
s 

a
n

d
 f

o
o

tb
a

ll
 p

it
ch

e
s 

a
n

d
 p

a
v

il
io

n
s 

 

•
 

G
y

m
n

a
st

ic
s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

a
t 

th
e

 G
o

rd
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 i
n

st
a

ll
e

d
 

•
 

W
a

lk
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
y

cl
in

g
 r

o
u

te
s 

su
rf

a
ce

s 
a

n
d

 s
ig

n
a

g
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

•
 

B
o

cc
ia

 c
o

u
rt

s 
in

st
a

ll
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 g

a
m

e
s 

h
a

ll
 a

t 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 G
ra

m
m

a
r 

S
ch

o
o

l 
 

•
 

4
5

 f
ir

st
 a

id
 a

n
d

 c
h

il
d

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 c
o

u
rs

e
s 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 A

p
ri

l 
1

3
 a

n
d

 D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
1

5
 w

it
h

 5
3

9
 p

e
o

p
le

 

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 

•
 

T
h

e
 C

it
y

 i
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 2

8
 t

ra
in

in
g

 c
o

u
rs

e
s 

a
n

d
 C

P
D

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

to
 3

8
4

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 

2
0

1
1

 -
 2

0
1

5
 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 3
 M

a
x

im
is

e
 s

o
ci

a
l,

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
a

l,
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

sp
o

rt
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
si

ca
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 i

n
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

 

E
n

co
u

ra
g

e
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
, 

tr
a

in
in

g
, 

v
o

lu
n

te
e

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
a

th
w

a
y

s 
to

 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
th

ro
u

g
h

 s
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 p

h
y

si
ca

l 
a

ct
iv

it
y
 

•
 

D
e

n
is

 L
a

w
 L

e
g

a
cy

 T
ru

st
 (

S
tr

e
e

ts
p

o
rt

) 
is

 o
ff

e
ri

n
g

 p
o

p
-u

p
 s

e
ss

io
n

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
v

e
n

u
e

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 o

f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 s
o

m
e

 d
iv

e
rs

io
n

a
ry

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

•
 

A
F

C
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 T

ru
st

 b
e

ca
m

e
 a

 s
ta

n
d

a
lo

n
e

 c
h

a
ri

ty
 i

n
 2

0
1

4
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

to
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 

o
f 

a
ll

 a
g

e
s 

a
n

d
 a

b
il

it
ie

s 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 w

a
lk

in
g

 f
o

o
tb

a
ll

 

•
 

T
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
 E

xt
re

m
e

 o
p

e
ra

te
s 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
ch

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 m

a
k

e
 p

o
si

ti
v

e
 l

if
e

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
s 

b
y

 p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
 

w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
n

o
v

a
ti

v
e

 s
p

o
rt

s,
 d

iv
e

rs
io

n
a

ry
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
a

b
il

it
y

 a
n

d
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

 

•
 

S
e

v
e

ra
l 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
re

 o
ff

e
ri

n
g

 a
 g

o
o

d
 c

o
a

ch
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

g
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 b

o
d

y
  

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
co

u
rs

e
s 

fo
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
 i

n
 C

h
il

d
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n
, 

F
ir

st
 A

id
 e

tc
 t

o
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 a
ss

is
ti

n
g

 w
it

h
 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 

•
 

W
a

lk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
s 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 s
o

ci
a

l 
co

n
ta

ct
 f

o
r 

e
ld

e
rl

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
e

lp
in

g
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v

e
 t

h
e

ir
 h

e
a

lt
h

 

•
 

S
e

v
e

ra
l 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 o
ff

e
re

d
 A

p
p

re
n

ti
ce

sh
ip

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s 

to
 g

iv
e

 l
o

ca
l 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

 e
n

tr
y

 i
n

to
 w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 

sp
o

rt
  

•
 

S
e

v
e

ra
l 

m
a

jo
r 

e
v

e
n

ts
 h

e
ld

 a
tt

ra
ct

in
g

 p
la

y
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
p

e
ct

a
to

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 e
v

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 

d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

sh
a

re
d

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 4
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
 a

n
d

 s
u

st
a

in
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s 

w
h

ic
h

 n
u

rt
u

re
 l

o
ca

l,
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

sp
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 r
e

a
ch

 t
h

e
ir

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 

 W
o

rk
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s 

a
re

 a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 

•
 

G
o

v
e

rn
in

g
 B

o
d

y
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 i

n
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 h
a

v
e

 h
ig

h
li

g
h

te
d

 c
lu

b
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
y

 w
il

l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e

 p
la

y
e

r 
p

a
th

w
a

y
s 

a
n

d
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 a
th

le
te

s 
fr

o
m

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
s 

a
re

 h
a

v
in

g
 s

u
cc

e
ss

e
s 

in
 l

o
ca

l 

a
n

d
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

co
m

p
e

ti
ti

o
n

s 

•
 

T
h

e
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 I

n
st

it
u

te
 o

f 
S

p
o

rt
s 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y

 (
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
) 

su
p

p
o

rt
s 

8
 a

th
le

te
s 

 f
ro

m
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 s
p

o
rt

s 

o
 

C
u

rl
in

g
 

o
 

M
o

d
e

rn
 p

e
n

ta
th

lo
n

 

o
 

R
o

w
in

g
 (

3
) 

o
 

S
h

o
o

ti
n

g
 

W
o

rk
 i

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 r

e
a

ch
in

g
 t

h
e

 

le
v

e
l 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
y

 c
a

n
 b

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti

o
n

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 

In
st

it
u

te
 o

f 
S

p
o

rt
 b

y
 2

0
%

 b
y

 2
0

1
0

 

Page 155



    

3
4

 

 

o
 

S
n

o
w

sp
o

rt
s 

o
 

S
w

im
m

in
g

  

•
 

2
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 a
th

le
te

s 
in

 G
B

 s
q

u
a

d
s 

O
b

je
ct

iv
e

 5
 R

a
is

e
 t

h
e

 p
ro

fi
le

 o
f 

sp
o

rt
 i

n
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

A
tt

ra
ct

 5
 I

n
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
sp

o
rt

in
g

 e
v

e
n

ts
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r 

to
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 S
n

o
w

sp
o

rt
s 

C
e

n
tr

e
 

•
 

S
co

tt
is

h
 A

rt
if

ic
ia

l 
S

lo
p

e
st

y
le

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
sh

ip
s 

(2
0

1
3

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

4
) 

•
 

G
o

 B
ig

 o
r 

G
o

 H
o

m
e

 (
A

u
g

u
st

 2
0

1
5

) 

•
 

G
u

in
n

e
ss

 W
o

rl
d

 R
e

co
rd

 a
tt

e
m

p
t 

(S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
4

) 

A
S

V
  

•
 

C
a

m
e

ro
o

n
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 T
e

a
m

 T
ra

in
in

g
 C

a
m

p
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
2

 w
it

h
 R

G
U

 S
p

o
rt

 

•
 

N
e

tb
a

ll
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 T

h
is

tl
e

s 
v

 S
ri

 L
a

n
k

a
 (

M
a

y
 2

0
1

1
) 

•
 

N
e

tb
a

ll
 S

co
tt

is
h

 T
h

is
tl

e
s 

v
 W

a
le

s 
te

st
 s

e
ri

e
s 

(D
e

c 
1

1
) 

•
 

N
e

tb
a

ll
 E

u
ro

p
e

 O
p

e
n

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
sh

ip
s 

(M
a

y
 2

0
1

3
) 

 

•
 

N
e

tb
a

ll
 E

u
ro

p
e

a
n

 U
2

1
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

sh
ip

s 
(O

ct
 2

0
1

5
) 

•
 

C
o

m
m

o
n

w
e

a
lt

h
 W

a
te

r 
P

o
lo

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
sh

ip
s 

(A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
4

) 

•
 

C
a

m
e

ro
o

n
 a

n
d

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

 A
q

u
a

ti
cs

 t
e

a
m

s 
C

o
m

m
o

n
w

e
a

lt
h

 G
a

m
e

s 
T

ra
in

in
g

 C
a

m
p

s 
(J

u
ly

 2
0

1
4

) 
w

it
h

 R
G

U
 

•
 

S
co

tt
is

h
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

A
th

le
ti

cs
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

sh
ip

s 
(A

u
g

 2
0

1
5

) 

C
u

rl
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

  

•
 

E
u

ro
p

e
a

n
 C

u
rl

in
g

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
sh

ip
s 

2
0

0
9

 

•
 

S
co

tt
is

h
 J

u
n

io
r 

C
u

rl
in

g
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

sh
ip

s 
2

0
0

9
 –

 1
6

 

•
 

W
o

rl
d

 R
o

ta
ry

 C
u

rl
in

g
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

sh
ip

 2
0

1
4

  

•
 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

S
p

e
ci

a
l 

O
ly

m
p

ic
s 

T
ra

in
in

g
 C

a
m

p
s 

•
 

S
co

tt
is

h
 W

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir
 C

u
rl

in
g

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
sh

ip
s 

2
0

1
1

 

R
G

U
: 

S
p

o
rt

  
C

a
m

e
ro

o
n

 a
n

d
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 T

ra
in

in
g

 C
a

m
p

s 
(a

s 
b

e
fo

re
) 

W
e

st
b

u
rn

 O
u

td
o

o
r 

C
e

n
tr

e
 

T
h

e
 S

co
tt

is
h

 D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 S

p
o

rt
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

La
w

n
 B

o
w

ls
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

sh
ip

s 
h

e
ld

 e
v

e
ry

 y
e

a
r 

fr
o

m
 2

0
0

9
 t

o
 2

0
1

5
 

S
co

tt
is

h
 O

p
e

n
 G

o
lf

  
H

e
ld

 a
t 

R
o

y
a

l 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 G
o

lf
 C

lu
b

 i
n

 2
0

1
4

 

In
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
sp

o
rt

in
g

 e
v

e
n

ts
 a

tt
ra

ct
e

d
 t

o
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 s
p

o
rt

in
g

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

In
cr

e
a

se
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

sp
o

rt
s 

re
p

re
se

n
te

d
 i

n
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

e
v

e
n

ts
 

in
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 y
e

a
r 

o
n

 y
e

a
r.

 

Page 156



    

3
5

 

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 F

C
 

•
 

R
u

g
b

y
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 v

 S
a

m
o

a
 N

o
v

 2
0

1
0

 

•
 

R
u

g
b

y
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 v

 T
o

n
g

a
 N

o
v

 2
0

1
2

 

     
 

 

Page 157



    

3
6

 

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 7

  

 Li
st

 o
f 

C
o

n
su

lt
e

e
s 

 F
il

ip
p

o
  

A
n

to
n

ia
zz

i 
 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

o
f 

S
p

o
rt

  
R

G
U

: 
S

p
o

rt
 

K
a

ti
e

  
B

a
rn

e
tt

 
S

e
cr

e
ta

ry
  

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 S

p
o

rt
s 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

A
li

  
B

e
ll

 
A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
In

st
it

u
te

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 I

n
st

it
u

te
 o

f 
S

p
o

rt
 

sp
o

rt
sc

o
tl

a
n

d
 

Jo
  

B
e

ll
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
sp

o
rt

sc
o

tl
a

n
d

 

T
o

m
  

B
re

w
st

e
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
C

u
rl

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

E
m

m
a

  
B

ro
a

d
h

u
rs

t 
Lo

ca
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 L
e

g
a

cy
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

S
co

tt
is

h
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
iv

e
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 T

e
a

m
 

M
a

g
  

C
a

m
p

b
e

ll
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 I

m
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s 
S

o
u

th
 L

o
ca

li
ty

 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 

A
la

n
  

C
la

rk
 

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

H
ig

h
la

n
d

s 
&

 I
sl

a
n

d
s 

a
n

d
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
  

sp
o

rt
sc

o
tl

a
n

d
 

C
a

ro
li

n
e

  
C

o
m

e
rf

o
rd

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 
C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r 

P
u

b
li

c 
H

e
a

lt
h

 D
ir

e
ct

o
ra

te
 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 

G
ra

e
m

e
  

D
a

le
 

A
ct

iv
e

 S
ch

o
o

ls
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

S
p

o
rt

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

Li
li

a
n

e
 

d
e

 R
u

it
e

r 
P

u
b

li
c 

H
e

a
lt

h
 C

o
o

rd
in

a
to

r 
N

o
rt

h
 C

lu
st

e
r 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 

Jo
y

ce
  

D
u

n
ca

n
 

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

 
A

C
V

O
 

Ji
ll

  
F

ra
n

k
s 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 D
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
D

ir
e

ct
o

r 
S

p
o

rt
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

S
a

n
to

sh
  

G
a

ih
re

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s 

N
o

rt
h

 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 

G
a

ry
  

G
il

e
s 

P
h

y
si

ca
l 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 L

e
a

d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Ja
n

  
G

ri
ff

it
h

s 
S

p
o

rt
s 

D
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 S

p
o

rt
s 

V
il

la
g

e
 

A
li

so
n

  
H

o
p

e
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 T
ra

in
e

e
 L

o
ca

l 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 T
e

a
m

 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

S
a

n
d

ra
  

H
o

w
a

rd
 

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

D
a

ve
  

Ja
co

b
s 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 S
n

o
w

sp
o

rt
s 

C
e

n
tr

e
 

Ly
n

d
sa

y
  

Jo
h

n
st

o
n

e
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Jo
n

a
th

a
n

  
K

it
ch

in
g

 
T

e
a

m
 L

e
a

d
e

r 
A

d
ve

n
tu

re
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

S
in

cl
a

ir
  

La
in

g
 

T
e

a
m

 L
e

a
d

e
r 

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

P
o

li
cy

 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

H
a

n
n

a
h

  
Le

sl
ie

 
S

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 P
h

y
si

ca
l 

A
ct

iv
it

y
 D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
 

R
G

U
:S

p
o

rt
 

Page 158



    

3
7

 

 

     

Je
n

n
y

  
M

cC
a

n
n

 
S

e
n

io
r 

D
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

(A
ct

iv
e

 L
if

e
st

y
le

s)
 

S
p

o
rt

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

E
la

in
e

  
M

cC
o

n
n

a
ch

ie
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 I

m
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
S

ch
o

o
ls

 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

/A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

D
a

ve
  

M
cH

e
n

ry
 

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 D

ir
e

ct
o

r 
K

K
P

 

Lu
d

w
ik

  
M

e
te

ls
k

i 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
S

p
o

rt
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

M
h

a
ir

i 
 

M
il

le
r 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

 a
n

d
 F

in
a

n
ce

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 S
n

o
w

sp
o

rt
s 

C
e

n
tr

e
 

F
a

iz
a

  
N

a
ce

f 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

E
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s 

T
e

a
m

 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

Lo
u

is
e

  
N

a
p

ie
r 

S
e

n
io

r 
P

la
n

n
e

r 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 a

n
d

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

  
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

S
h

a
m

in
i 

 
O

m
n

e
s 

P
u

b
li

c 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
o

o
rd

in
a

to
r 

S
o

u
th

 C
lu

st
e

r 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 

G
ra

h
a

m
e

  
P

a
te

rs
o

n
 

C
h

ie
f 

E
xe

cu
ti

v
e

 
T

ra
n

si
ti

o
n

 E
xt

re
m

e
 S

p
o

rt
s 

Li
m

it
e

d
 

D
o

n
a

ld
  

P
ir

ie
 

S
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 E

xe
rc

is
e

 T
e

a
m

 
U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

 o
f 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

A
ll

y
  

P
ro

ck
te

r 
C

h
ie

f 
E

xe
cu

ti
v

e
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 F

C
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 T

ru
st

 

B
e

rn
ie

  
R

e
id

 
C

lu
b

, 
C

o
a

ch
 &

 V
o

lu
n

te
e

r 
D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
S

p
o

rt
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

A
li

st
a

ir
  

R
o

b
e

rt
so

n
 

M
a

n
a

g
in

g
 D

ir
e

ct
o

r 
S

p
o

rt
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

S
a

ra
h

  
S

in
g

e
r 

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
S

p
o

rt
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

Li
n

d
a

  
S

m
it

h
 

P
u

b
li

c 
H

e
a

lt
h

 L
e

a
d

 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

  
C

it
y

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 S
o

ci
a

l 
C

a
re

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 

Jo
n

a
th

a
n

  
S

m
it

h
 

V
ic

e
 C

h
a

ir
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

iv
ic

 F
o

ru
m

 

N
ig

e
l 

 
S

p
e

n
ce

r 
G

o
lf

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
S

p
o

rt
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 

S
im

o
n

  
S

ta
rr

 
In

te
ri

m
 S

p
o

rt
 &

 P
h

y
si

ca
l 

A
ct

iv
it

y
 D

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

S
p

o
rt

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

P
a

u
li

n
e

  
S

ti
rl

in
g

 
C

h
a

ir
 

G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 S

p
o

rt
 

S
te

v
e

n
  

S
w

e
e

n
e

y
 

S
e

n
io

r 
S

co
tt

is
h

 F
A

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 C
o

a
ch

 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 F
C

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 T
ru

st
 

Le
sl

e
y

 
T

h
o

m
so

n
 

C
u

lt
u

ra
l 

P
o

li
cy

 a
n

d
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

K
e

v
in

  
W

a
ll

a
ce

 
In

sp
e

ct
o

r 
P

o
li

ce
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 

B
il

l 
 

W
a

ts
o

n
 

A
rc

h
it

e
ct

  
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

M
a

rk
  

W
il

li
a

m
s 

S
tr

e
e

t 
S

p
o

rt
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

D
e

n
is

 L
a

w
 L

e
g

a
cy

 T
ru

st
 

H
e

le
n

  
W

il
so

n
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
P

a
th

s 
fo

r 
A

ll
 

G
a

il
  

W
o

o
d

co
ck

 
In

te
g

ra
te

d
 L

o
ca

li
ti

e
s 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
  

C
it

y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

o
ci

a
l 

C
a

re
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 w
it

h
 a

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
il

it
y

 f
o

r 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
G

o
ve

rn
in

g
 B

o
d

ie
s 

o
f 

S
p

o
rt

 

Page 159



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

   
   

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 

 
7

- 
E

H
R

IA
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 a

n
d

  
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
n

in
g

  
 

R
e
p

o
rt

 T
it

le
 

 
T

h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

a
n

 A
c

ti
v
e

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 2

0
1
6

-2
0
 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

n
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

 
  

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

A
s

 a
 r

e
s

u
lt

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

n
g

 t
h

is
 a

s
s

e
s
s

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

a
t 

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 o
r 

re
d

u
c
e

 a
n

y
 r

is
k

s
 o

f 
a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

. 
 

 I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 t
o

 w
h

o
m

: 
 

 
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 A
c

ti
o

n
s
: 

 
R

e
s

p
o

n
s
ib

le
 

L
e
a

d
: 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
D

a
te

: 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

D
a
te

: 

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

in
 s

p
e
c

if
ic

 t
a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

in
c

re
a

s
e

 
                

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 s
p

e
c

if
ic

a
ll

y
 t

a
rg

e
t 

re
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 a

t 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 
w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 w

it
h

 e
x

p
e
rt

is
e

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
s

e
 g

ro
u

p
s
 

 

A
c

ti
v
e

 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 

2
0

2
0
 

A
n

n
u

a
ll

y
 

  

Page 161



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

   
   

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 

8
: 

S
ig

n
 o

ff
 

 

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
  

(N
a

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

) 
: 

 

 S
im

o
n

 S
ta

rr
, 

In
te

ri
m

 S
p

o
rt

 &
 P

h
y

si
ca

l 
A

ct
iv

it
y

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
ir

e
ct

o
r 

 

 S
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
 b

y
 (

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

) 
: 

 

E
u

a
n
 C

o
u
p

e
rw

h
it
e

, 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
, 

P
o

lic
y
, 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
, 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 O
n

ly
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 7

 a
n
d

 8
  
w

ill
 b

e
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 

 T
h
e

 f
u

ll 
E

H
R

IA
  

w
ill

 b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 o
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 u
n
d

e
r 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/x

e
q
_

E
H

R
IA

_
S

e
a

rc
h
.a

s
p

 
 P

le
a

s
e

 s
e

n
d

 a
n

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 f

o
rm

a
t 
o
f 

th
e

 f
u

ll 
E

H
R

IA
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
s
ig

n
a

tu
re

 t
o

 S
H

o
w

a
rd

@
a

b
e

rd
e

e
n

c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

    

Page 162



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE: Education and Children’s Services   
 
DATE: 2nd June 2016  

 
DIRECTOR: Gayle Gorman  
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  Update on readiness for full implementation of 

Parts 4, 5 and 18 of the Children and Young People 
(Scotland) Act 2014.  

 
REPORT NUMBER: ECS/16/025 
 
CHECKLIST COMPLETED: Yes 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise Committee of progress made towards preparing for full 

implementation of Parts 4, 5 and 18 of the Children and Young People 
(Scotland) Act 2014. 

 
1.2 To advise Committee of detailed costs associated with the implementation of 

the Action Plan. 
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

(i) Note the content of this report, the Action Plan contained within 
Appendix 1 and documentation within subsequent Appendices 
 

(ii) Instruct officers to continue to implement the Action Plan contained 
within Appendix 1 and collaborate with Partners to update the plan for 
August 2016 

 
(iii) Instruct officers to use performance measures and national best 

practice to improve the wellbeing of children and young people. 
 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no additional financial implications associated with the 
recommendations above.  Costs will be met from existing budgets and 
additional Scottish Government funding as detailed as in Appendix 1. 
 
 

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 163



 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Legal 
 As an Authority we have a duty to fully implement Parts 4, 5 and 18 of 

Children and Young People’s Act from 31st August 2016.  Failure to implement 
the Action Plan could lead to our not complying with legislation and being open 
to legal challenge. 

 
4.2 Resources 

Officer time and expenditure will be met from existing budgets and additional 
Scottish Government funding. 

 
4.3 Personnel 

 Streamlining of Getting it Right for Every Child (GIRFEC) processes will 
enable those undertaking the role of Named Person to discharge their duties 
confidently, in a timely and efficient manner and in keeping with the legislation. 

 
4.4 Property 
 There are no implications. 
 
4.5 Equipment 

The SEEMiS module has been joint funded by all Local Authorities and will be 
place for August 2016. 

 
4.6 Sustainability and environmental 
 There are no implications. 
 
4.7 Health and safety 
 Streamlining processes will reduce bureaucracy and associated pressures on 

those delivering the Named Person Service on behalf of the Authority. 
 
4.8 Policy 
 The GIRFEC Operational Guidance has been reviewed in line with legislation.  

As Education and Children’s Services policies are reviewed they will continue 
to be aligned to ensure the use of common language and adherence to the 
guiding principles of Girfec. 
 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1. The Introduction of GIRFEC 
 
The Scottish Government first consulted on the implementation of Girfec in 2006 
following pathfinder work in early 2006.  Girfec supports multi-agency working to 
improve outcomes for children and young people through shared ways of working.  
The Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014 enshrined elements of GIRFEC 
into statute in May 2014 with the final parts of the Act coming into force on 31st 
August 2016. 
 

Page 164



 

Each Local Authority must provide a Named Person Service.  The Named Person 
has responsibility for making sure that every child or young person has appropriate 
interventions in place to support their wellbeing.  They do this by: 

• being the first point of contact for children, young people and families; 

• compiling a chronology of significant events to help build an accurate picture 
of wellbeing; 

• identifying and sourcing any additional support that a child or young person 
needs in a timely manner; 

• managing and sharing information related to the wellbeing of the child or 
young person;  

• preparing a Child’s Plan when appropriate and ensuring regular review of the 
plan; 

• supporting and promoting multi-agency working; and 

• communicating effectively with parents/carers. 
 
A report and Action Plan was presented to Committee on September 5th 2015 prior 
to the publication of the revised Statutory Guidance.  It was acknowledged at that 
time that the updated Statutory Guidance would result in changes to the Action Plan. 
 
5.2  Revised Statutory Guidance 
 
The revised Draft Guidance was published on 1st December provides clarity on how 
The Authority and Partnership should fulfil their legislative requirements from August 
2016; the finalised Statutory Guidance is expected in May/June 2016. 
 
The key aspects of the revised Draft Statutory Guidance to note are: 

• how children’s rights link to wellbeing with a strong emphasis on the voice of 
the child; 

• that communication or learning impairment cannot be seen as a barrier to 
seeking views; 

• that assessments of wellbeing must be based on strengths and undertaken in 
collaboration with the child and family; 

• clarity on how to handle, store, process and share information through existing 
means wherever possible; 

• two considerations used to determine if a Child’s Plan is required; and 

• the relationship between statutory and non-statutory plans and how they 
support improved outcomes for children and young people.  

 
The Revised Statutory Guidance was well received and has helped streamline 
approaches to develop more consistent practice. 
 
5.3  Additional National Supports 
 
The Management Information System (SEEMiS) used by all Local Authority Schools 
across Scotland, has been nationally commissioned to provide an application to 
support the delivery of GIRFEC.  Aberdeen City has opted into Phase One of the roll 
out of the application and we anticipate a series of training opportunities being 
available to staff from May 2016.   
 

Page 165



 

The module will reduce bureaucracy around information handling and information 
sharing and support assessment and planning, thereby providing an important help 
to those undertaking the role of the Named Person. 
 
The Scottish Government has produced a series of Practice Materials.  These are 
based on some of the tests that have been undertaken by Local Authorities and 
shaped by Lead Officers from all Local Authorities.  Publication of the materials was 
phased and has helped shape decision making. 
 
Following requests from Lead Officers across Scotland, The Scottish Government 
has produced information suitable for a range of audiences to ensure that families 
and children and young people access consistent information.  This will form the 
basis of our communications with stakeholders. 
 
The publication of How Good Is Our School 4 along with aligned documents for 
Community Learning and Early Learning and Childcare, have promoted new ways of 
working collectively to support the very different needs of our communities and our 
plans have been amended to reflect these key national drivers. 
 
5.4 To advise Committee of progress made and our readiness for full 

implementation of Parts 4,5 and 18 of the Children and Young People 
(Scotland) Act 2014. 

 
Delivery of the Named Person Service 
All staff discharging the duties of Named Person have been invited to attend the 
mandatory training in June.  An agreement on the discharge of the Named Person 
Service for vulnerable groups has been reached and includes support for children 
and young people over holiday periods, for 16 – 18 year olds who are not in full time 
education, for children and young people from travelling families and for those who 
are home educated.  
 
Child’s Plan 
Following consultation on our revised Child’s Plan and consideration of the Child’s 
Plan Order, a finalised Child’s Planning format was endorsed by the Integrated 
Children’s Services Board in April 2015.  The format contained in Appendix 2 will be 
subject to yearly review to ensure that it supports improving outcomes for children 
and young people.  The Child’s Plan will be used to request assistance from others 
who have a duty to support the Named Person, thus reducing the number of 
processes to follow when seeking assistance from others across the Partnership. 
 
A Child’s Plan is required when a wellbeing need has been identified and the need 
cannot be met through the provision of what is ‘generally available’, the need 
requiring a more ‘targeted intervention’.  Services are currently clarifying interventions 
that are ‘targeted’ with The Family Information Service canvassing Third Sector 
organisations to identify their ‘general’ and ‘targeted’ availability.   A visual to display 
this information will be prepared for publication by June 2016.  
 
SEEMiS 
An extensive training programme has been planned for June to ensure key staff are 
confident in the use of the SEEMiS wellbeing module.  The module will support best 

Page 166



 

practice in the keeping of chronologies and further streamline processes.  Officers 
have been developing a Carefirst solution to provide a similar support for Social Work 
colleagues. 
 
Professional Learning 
Multi-Agency Training has been reviewed by practitioners across the Partnership.  
Practitioners identified that locality based training should be available to help develop 
collaborative working practices and strengthen relationships in keeping with GIRFEC 
principals.  There was a strong request for differing levels of training to ensure more 
in-depth training is available to those undertaking key duties and several requests for 
both multi-agency and single service training during the early stages of 
implementation.  This feedback has informed approaches to training from April 2016. 
 
An on-line Learning Together Guide is due to be published in recognition of the 
increasing difficulty in releasing staff to attend training.  A GIRFEC and Child 
Protection Module has been updated for all practitioners working across Education 
and Children’s Services to complete on a yearly basis.  A Named Person Network 
has been established.  The Network enables concerns to be raised at the earliest 
opportunity so that solutions can be identified, tested and put in place. 
 
Professional Learning tools have been developed as colleagues have identified a 
lack of confidence/consistency in particular areas.  Tools developed to date include a 
booklet to support the chairing of effective Child’s Plan meetings and a range of 
resources designed to enable children and young people to engage in discussions 
around their own wellbeing.  All materials will be formally launched at the Named 
Person training in June. 
 
Girfec Operational Guidance 
The Girfec Operational Guidance has been reviewed to ensure it is in keeping with all 
national guidance and is being shared during the Named Person training to ensure 
that children, young people and families experience consistency.  This mandatory 
approach is helping to address some issues around the consistency of chronologies 
with a range of training tools developed to support best practice exemplification.  The 
training is also helping to provide clarity about the duty of others in supporting those 
delivering the Named Person Service.    Areas identified for improvement in the ICS 
Inspection have been further addressed during the development of the guidance.  
The Operational Guidance will be subject to 6 monthly review to ensure that we are 
responsive to any emerging difficulties. 
 
Information Sharing 
The GIRFEC group collaborated to produce a scaffold for staff to guide their thinking 
around information sharing.  The two page visual summarises local guidance and the 
Named Person Network believe it will be a helpful aid memoire.  Early tests suggest 
that it is helping to build confidence in information sharing. 
 
Partnership Working 
Officers across and beyond the Service along with partners are currently 
collaborating to agree wellbeing priorities across each Associated School Group 
(ASG).  We anticipate that ASG Partnerships will be operational from August 2016 
and will pool expertise, help shape supports on offer locally and reduce timescales in 

Page 167



 

accessing support.  This approach will help empower those involved by sharing skill 
sets across a partnership.   
 
Communication 
A suite of leaflets has been developed for children, young people and parents and 
carers.  The documentation summarises how the Named Person Service will be 
exercised and contact arrangements.  This information will be enhanced through 
direct engagement with children, young people and families across each Associated 
School Group planned over June to coincide with the National Communication 
Strategy. 
 
The Girfec Website has been refined and hosts all of the information available to 
partners, children and young people and families.  This work is closely aligned with 
the Integrated Children’s Services Communication Strategy to ensure consistency 
across the Partnership and make best use of existing channels of communication. 
 
5.5  Readiness for Full Implementation of the Act 
 
The Service is well placed to meet the legislative requirements of the Act from August 
31st 2016. 
 
The Action Plan within Appendix 1 has been updated to reflect work to date and also 
contains detailed information of how resource has been allocated.  This 
demonstrates that Aberdeen City Council will be in a position to meet the legislative 
requirement of Parts 4, 5 and 18 of the Act. 
 
A risk register was put in place to guide our work and has ensured timescales for full 
implementation of the Act have been met. 
 
Officers have responded flexibly as refined information has been made available and 
have amended plans to ensure readiness for full implementation by August 31st 
2016.  The recent review of the Operational Guidance provided a further opportunity 
to evaluate our processes against The Scottish Government Touchpoints.  This 
review has helped ensure that approaches are in keeping with legislation.  
 
Procedures and practice will be kept under regular review and set timescales for 
formal review of both the Child’s Plan format and the Girfec Operational Guidance 
have been set.   A further partnership Action Plan will therefore be developed to 
guide our work over school session 2016/2017. 
 
5.6  Summary of Associated Costs 
 
Aberdeen City Council received £14,000 from the Scottish Government to support 
the preparations for the implementation of Parts 4, 5 and 18 in 15/16.  This money 
was used to meet some of the costs of the Multi-agency training and added to that 
already identified from existing budgets to support partnership working. 
 
The settlement figure for Aberdeen City for 16/17 includes an increased allocation to 
support implementation.  A proportion of the allocation has part funded the SEEMiS 
module with remaining funds detailed on the Action Plan in Appendix 1. 

Page 168



 

6. IMPACT 
 
6.1  Corporate 
 
Single outcome agreement – the agreement states that partners will: 
 

• Make a decisive shift from reactive problem solving to root cause prevention; 

• Capitalise on Aberdeen’s existing strengths to build sustainable positive 
outcomes; 

• Make significant progress toward the radical collaboration required to meet the 
long term social and financial challenges 

 
Early intervention and close partnership working are fundamental to GIRFEC. 
 
6.2 Inclusion Service Improvement Plan  
 
Key objectives within the Inclusion Service Improvement Plan include: 
 

• Ensure partnership approaches and GIRFEC arrangements are supporting 
children and young people 
 

• Decisions on resources are designed around the needs of children and young 
people  

 

• Improve our use of data in helping identify priorities for improvement and in 
monitoring improvement, of outcomes for children and young people 
 

These key objectives evidence how the Inclusion agenda is closely aligned with 
GIRFEC and the Children and Young People’s Act. 
 
6.3 Public 
 
This report is likely to be of some interest to the public given the recent challenge in 
the Supreme Court. 
 
 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
Failure to instruct officers to use performance measures and national best practice to 
guide the  modification of approaches to maximise their impact on the wellbeing of 
children and young people could result in systems and processes being put in place 
that do not directly impact on the wellbeing of children and young people across 
Aberdeen City. 
 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

• Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014 

• Touchpoints (Scottish Government 2015) 
 

Page 169



 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Eleanor Sheppard, Inclusion Implementation Manager 
E-mail – esheppard@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
Tel         01224 522707 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 170



P
ro

g
re

ss
 t

o
w

a
rd

s 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 A

ct
 A

ct
io

n
 P

la
n

 

K
E

Y
 

D
e

la
y

e
d

  
O

n
 t

ra
ck

  
C

o
m

p
le

te
  

 
 

 

 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

  
A

ct
io

n
 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 U

p
d

a
te

 
R

A
G

 

R
a

ti
n

g
 

 1
.S

h
a

ri
n

g
 o

f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 

th
e

 i
n

co
m

in
g

 n
a

m
e

d
 

p
e

rs
o

n
 (

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 

re
co

rd
in

g
 w

h
e

n
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i

s 

sh
a

re
d

, 
st

e
p

s 
in

 

e
st

a
b

li
sh

in
g

 w
h

a
t 

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
e

 s
h

a
re

d
 

a
n

d
 w

it
h

 w
h

o
m

) 

co
m

p
li

e
s 

w
it

h
 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 

 R
e

v
ie

w
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
sf

e
r 

o
f 

N
a

m
e

d
 

P
e

rs
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 f
ro

m
 N

H
S

 t
o

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
. 

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 m

e
t 

in
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 t

o
 r

e
vi

e
w

 a
n

d
 f

o
rm

a
li

se
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 p

ro
to

co
l 

is
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
to

o
d

 b
y

: 
 

•
 

d
e

fi
n

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 t
e

rm
 ‘

re
le

v
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
’ 

•
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 f

lo
w

ch
a

rt
  

•
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 g
u

id
a

n
ce

 o
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

ro
le

s 

•
 

o
ff

e
ri

n
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
 

•
 

re
v

is
in

g
 l

e
a

fl
e

t 
fo

r 
p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
  

•
 

th
e

 p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
a

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
in

cl
u

si
o

n
 i

n
 

sc
h

o
o

l 
h

a
n

d
b

o
o

k
s 

  

•
 

th
e

 T
h

ir
d

 S
e

ct
o

r 
e

st
a

b
li

sh
in

g
 a

 q
u

a
li

ty
 a

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 

g
ro

u
p

   

A
 M

u
lt

i-
a

g
e

n
cy

 g
ro

u
p

 m
e

t 
to

 d
e

ve
lo

p
 a

 f
lo

w
ch

a
rt

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 m
a

k
in

g
, 

th
is

 h
a

s 

b
e

e
n

 a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 G
IR

F
E

C
 g

ro
u

p
. 

 A
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
vi

su
a

l 
il

lu
st

ra
te

s 
th

e
 i

n
te

rr
e

la
te

d
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 

th
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
m

e
d

 P
e

rs
o

n
 a

n
d

 L
e

a
d

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l.

 B
o

th
 a

id
s 

h
a

ve
 b

e
e

n
 t

e
st

e
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 

N
a

m
e

d
 P

e
rs

o
n

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 c
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
 i

n
 J

u
n

e
. 

  
 

A
 M

u
lt

i-
a

g
e

n
cy

  
g

ro
u

p
 i

s 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
 r

e
vi

e
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 l

e
a

fl
e

t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

b
e

 

te
st

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

 T
h

ir
d

 S
e

ct
o

r 
G

ro
u

p
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 c
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
. 

  

 T
h

e
 S

E
E

M
iS

 W
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 M

o
d

u
le

 w
il

l 
im

p
a

ct
 o

n
 h

o
w

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 r

e
co

rd
 a

n
d

 s
h

a
re

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 

a
n

d
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 w

il
l 

b
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 s

y
st

e
m

 i
s 

a
va

il
a

b
le

 i
n

 M
a

y
 f

o
r 

te
st

in
g

. 
 C

a
se

 

st
u

d
ie

s 
h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 d

ra
ft

e
d

 i
n

 p
re

p
a

ra
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

o
ll

 o
u

t 
o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

. 

 T
h

e
 M

u
lt

i-
a

g
e

n
cy

 G
IR

F
E

C
 G

ro
u

p
 r

e
vi

e
w

e
d

 t
h

e
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

G
u

id
a

n
ce

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

. 
 T

h
is

 w
il

l 

b
e

 s
h

a
re

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 N

a
m

e
d

 P
e

rs
o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g

 i
n

 J
u

n
e

. 
  

 W
e

 a
n

ti
ci

p
a

te
 s

a
m

p
li

n
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 s
h

a
ri

n
g

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
s 

in
 J

u
n

e
. 

 

 

 

 2
.G

u
id

a
n

ce
 a

n
d

 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 p
ro

ce
ss

 i
n

 

p
la

ce
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 

N
P

 r
e

q
u

e
st

in
g

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 

o
th

e
rs

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 

in
te

rn
a

l/
e

x
te

rn
a

l 

se
rv

ic
e

s,
 o

th
e

r 

a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
a

n
d

 

G
u

id
a

n
ce

 p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 f
o

r 
re

q
u

e
st

in
g

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e

s 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
: 

•
 

h
o

w
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 r

e
q

u
e

st
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
 r

e
q

u
e

st
s 

•
 

h
o

w
 t

o
 r

e
sp

o
n

d
 w

h
e

n
 r

e
q

u
e

st
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 w
h

e
n

 

th
e

y
 a

re
 d

e
cl

in
e

d
  

   
 

•
 

h
o

w
 t

o
 r

e
co

rd
 a

ct
io

n
 t

a
k

e
n

   

   

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

lo
ca

l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

( 
A

S
G

 

T
w

o
 t

e
st

s 
o

f 
ch

a
n

g
e

 w
e

re
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

e
n

 t
o

 a
sc

e
rt

a
in

 i
f 

th
e

 C
h

il
d

’s
 P

la
n

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 u
se

d
 t

o
 

re
q

u
e

st
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

ro
m

 o
th

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e

se
 t

e
st

s 
w

e
re

 s
u

cc
e

ss
fu

l 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

a
s 

fo
rm

a
li

se
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
G

u
id

a
n

ce
 r

e
vi

e
w

. 

 T
h

e
 S

E
E

M
iS

 m
o

d
u

le
 i

s 
b

e
in

g
 r

a
p

id
ly

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 w

it
h

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o

 v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 

M
o

d
u

le
 i

n
 M

a
y

. 
T

h
e

 S
co

tt
is

h
 G

o
v

e
rn

m
e

n
t 

a
d

vo
ca

te
 t

h
e

 u
se

 o
f 

S
E

E
M

iS
 a

n
d

 f
u

ll
 s

ig
h

t 
o

f 
th

e
 

m
o

d
u

le
 w

il
l 

e
n

a
b

le
 u

s 
to

 f
o

rm
a

li
se

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
st

o
ra

l 
N

o
te

s 

w
h

e
re

 p
o

ss
ib

le
. 

 T
h

e
 H

o
w

 G
o

o
d

 I
s 

O
u

r 
D

o
cu

m
e

n
ts

 n
o

w
 g

u
id

e
 a

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
fo

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 f

a
m

il
ie

s 
to

 w
o

rk
 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
, 

th
e

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
vi

d
e

s 
a

 h
e

lp
fu

l 
b

lu
e

p
ri

n
t 

o
f 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
’s

 

 

Page 171



ch
il

d
/p

a
re

n
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s)
 t

o
 t

ri
a

l a
p

p
ro

a
ch

e
s 

to
: 

•
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 

•
 

re
q

u
e

st
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

•
 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
e

s 

  

e
xp

e
ct

a
ti

o
n

s.
  

S
e

rv
ic

e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 a

li
g

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 m
a

n
y

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

o
n

 o
ff

e
r 

to
 t

h
e

 

d
iv

e
rs

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

co
ll

e
ct

iv
e

ly
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

ss
 w

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 n
e

e
d

s.
 

 H
e

a
d

 T
e

a
ch

e
r 

co
ll

e
a

g
u

e
s 

e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 i

n
 a

 C
o

-D
e

si
g

n
 e

v
e

n
t 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 s
h

a
p

e
 t

h
e

 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
A

S
G

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

e
s.

 

 

 3
.T

h
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 

ch
ro

n
o

lo
g

ie
s 

is
 

im
p

ro
v

e
d

 

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
ch

ro
n

o
lo

g
ie

s 
im

p
ro

ve
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
: 

•
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

b
e

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

 e
xe

m
p

la
rs

  

•
 

si
n

g
le

 a
n

d
 m

u
lt

i-
a

g
e

n
cy

 t
ra

in
in

g
  

M
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n

cy
 t

ra
in

in
g

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
s 

to
 b

e
 w

e
ll

 a
tt

e
n

d
e

d
. 

 E
xe

m
p

la
r 

ch
ro

n
o

lo
g

ie
s 

a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

o
th

 s
in

g
le

 a
n

d
 m

u
lt

i-

a
g

e
n

cy
 t

ra
in

in
g

. 
 T

h
e

se
 w

il
l 

b
e

 h
o

st
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 I
C

S
 W

e
b

si
te

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

d
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
la

u
n

ch
e

d
 

in
 A

p
ri

l.
 

 F
u

ll
 s

ig
h

t 
o

f 
th

e
 S

E
E

M
iS

 m
o

d
u

le
 w

il
l 

e
n

a
b

le
 u

s 
to

 f
o

rm
a

li
se

 h
o

w
 S

E
E

M
iS

 w
il

l 
su

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 

k
e

e
p

in
g

 o
f 

ch
ro

n
o

lo
g

ie
s.

  
 

 

 

 4
. 

S
a

fe
 a

n
d

 s
e

cu
re

 

p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f 

re
co

rd
in

g
 

a
n

d
 s

to
ri

n
g

 w
h

e
n

 

th
e

 N
a

m
e

d
 P

e
rs

o
n

 

re
ce

iv
e

s 
a

 w
e

ll
-

b
e

in
g

 c
o

n
ce

rn
 b

y
 e

-

m
a

il
, 

v
e

rb
a

ll
y

 a
n

d
 i

n
 

h
a

rd
 c

o
p

y
 i

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 

a
n

d
 u

ti
li

se
d

 b
y

 a
ll

 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

. 

 P
ro

d
u

ce
 p

ro
to

co
l t

o
 e

n
su

re
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
 u

se
 o

f 
te

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

 

a
n

d
 M

IS
 s

ys
te

m
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

a
fe

 a
n

d
 s

e
cu

re
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 h
o

ld
in

g
: 

 

R
e

v
ie

w
 S

P
O

C
 a

n
d

 M
A

S
 p

ro
ce

ss
 i

n
 l

in
e

 w
it

h
 r

is
k

 a
n

d
 

co
n

ce
rn

 i
n

 r
e

a
d

in
e

ss
 f

o
r 

fu
ll

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

ct
 

fr
o

m
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
0

1
6

. 

 S
E

E
M

iS
 h

a
ve

 a
 c

le
a

r 
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 p

la
n

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 a

n
d

 a
sp

ir
e

 t
o

 d
e

si
g

n
 a

 M
o

d
u

le
 t

h
a

t 
is

 a
b

le
 

to
 ‘

ta
lk

’ 
to

 C
a

re
 F

ir
st

. 
 W

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 a
w

a
it

 d
e

ta
il

 o
n

 w
h

a
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 b
y

 A
u

g
u

st
 s

o
 

th
a

t 
w

e
 c

a
n

 t
a

k
e

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 w

it
h

 c
o

ll
e

a
g

u
e

s 
in

 o
u

r 
Le

g
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

. 

  O
u

r 
‘S

in
g

le
 P

o
in

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

ta
ct

’ 
(S

P
O

C
) 

h
a

s 
n

o
w

 r
e

lo
ca

te
d

 t
o

 M
a

ri
sc

h
a

l 
C

o
ll

e
g

e
. 

 T
h

is
 i

s 

h
e

lp
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 g
le

a
n

 a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

m
a

n
d

s 
o

f 
th

e
 r

o
le

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

vi
e

w
 p

ro
ce

ss
e

s 
in

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e

 S
E

E
M

iS
 M

o
d

u
le

. 

 

 

Page 172



 5
. 

P
ro

ce
ss

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 

a
t 

p
o

in
t 

o
f 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
 

to
 g

u
id

e
 t

h
e

  

id
e

n
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

e
n

su
re

 i
t 

is
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

, 

a
rc

h
iv

in
g

 o
th

e
r 

re
co

rd
s 

a
n

d
 

in
v

o
lv

in
g

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n

 

w
it

h
 C

/Y
P

 a
n

d
 

p
a

re
n

ts
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 

b
e

in
g

 h
a

n
d

e
d

 o
v

e
r 

to
 n

e
w

 N
a

m
e

d
 

P
e

rs
o

n
 

W
o

rk
 w

it
h

 a
ll

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 p
ro

d
u

ce
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 

th
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 b
e

in
g

 t
ra

n
sf

e
rr

e
d

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 r

e
v

ie
w

e
d

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
. 

 P
u

b
li

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

b
e

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e

 s
ce

n
a

ri
o

s 
a

n
d

 c
h

e
ck

li
st

s 
to

 

in
cr

e
a

se
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

ce
 l

e
v

e
ls

  

 A
g

re
e

d
 m

u
lt

i-
a

g
e

n
cy

 p
ro

ce
ss

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 a

n
d

 

re
co

rd
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
sf

e
r 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
  

 E
m

b
e

d
 G

IR
F

E
C

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
in

 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 p

o
li

cy
 o

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

ra
n

si
ti

o
n

s.
 

  

F
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
G

u
id

a
n

ce
 a

 c
h

e
ck

li
st

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 

a
id

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 a

n
d

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

a
ll

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 i
s 

tr
a

n
sf

e
rr

e
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

ly
. 

 T
h

is
 w

il
l 

b
e

 

te
st

e
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 N
a

m
e

d
 P

e
rs

o
n

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 c
ir

cu
la

ti
o

n
. 

 A
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 s

e
lf

-e
va

lu
a

te
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 

tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
e

s.
  

F
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 o

n
 t

h
is

 s
ca

ff
o

ld
 w

il
l 

b
e

 u
se

d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 s
h

a
p

e
 a

n
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

P
o

li
cy

 o
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 t
ra

n
si

ti
o

n
s.

 

 

 

 6
. 

C
a

se
 s

tu
d

ie
s 

tr
a

in
in

g
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
ly

  

b
u

il
d

in
g

 c
o

n
fi

d
e

n
ce

 

W
o

rk
sh

o
p

s 
h

e
ld

 o
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
m

e
d

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

 T
ra

in
in

g
/o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s 
to

 c
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
te

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 

to
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 r
o

le
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 

T
h

ir
d

 S
e

ct
o

r 
a

n
d

 y
o

u
th

 j
u

st
ic

e
 

 R
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 m
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n

cy
 t

ra
in

in
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i

n
 l

in
e

 

w
it

h
 m

o
st

 r
e

ce
n

t 
g

u
id

a
n

ce
. 

A
 b

a
se

li
n

e
 o

f 
co

n
fi

d
e

n
ce

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 t

a
k

e
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 N
a

m
e

d
 P

e
rs

o
n

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 a

re
a

s 

b
e

in
g

 a
d

d
re

ss
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

ra
in

in
g

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
t 

th
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 F
e

st
iv

a
l.

 

 F
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 a

 r
e

vi
e

w
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

, 
a

n
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 c
a

le
n

d
a

r 
is

 i
n

 u
se

 c
o

m
p

ri
si

n
g

 a
 m

ix
 o

f 

si
n

g
le

 a
n

d
 m

u
lt

i-
a

g
e

n
cy

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

 M
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 N

a
m

e
d

 P
e

rs
o

n
 t

ra
in

in
g

 i
s 

sc
h

e
d

u
le

d
 f

o
r 

Ju
n

e
. 

 

 

 7
. 

T
h

e
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
P

ra
ct

ic
e

 

M
o

d
e

l 
to

 m
a

k
e

 a
n

 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 

lo
o

k
in

g
 a

t 
w

h
a

t 

co
u

ld
 c

o
n

st
it

u
te

 a
 

w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 c

o
n

ce
rn

 i
s 

fi
rm

ly
 e

m
b

e
d

d
e

d
 

  G
e

n
e

ra
l 

a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 r

a
is

in
g

 o
f 

w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 w

it
h

 a
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 

id
e

n
ti

fy
in

g
 c

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 

lo
n

g
st

a
n

d
in

g
 e

ff
e

ct
s 

o
f 

a
b

u
se

 a
n

d
 n

e
g

le
ct

. 

 

 

 

 S
ta

ff
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
w

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s 
im

p
ro

ve
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
u

d
it

 o
f 

n
e

e
d

 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 w

e
ll

b
e

in
g

. 
 A

ll
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 n

o
w

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
. 

 R
e

ce
n

t 

a
d

m
is

si
o

n
s 

to
 s

p
e

ci
a

li
st

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n

s 
e

v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 q

u
a

li
ty

 o
f 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

is
 i

m
p

ro
vi

n
g

 i
n

 

m
o

st
 c

a
se

s 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 a

n
a

ly
si

s 
o

f 
ri

sk
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r.
 

 T
h

e
 r

e
fi

n
e

d
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 G
u

id
a

n
ce

 o
ff

e
rs

 g
re

a
te

r 
cl

a
ri

ty
 a

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 l

in
k

s 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 w

e
lf

a
re

 

a
n

d
 w

e
ll

b
e

in
g

. 
 T

h
is

 c
la

ri
ty

 h
e

lp
e

d
 s

h
a

p
e

 o
u

r 
w

o
rk

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

G
u

id
a

n
ce

. 

 

8
. 

N
a

m
e

d
 P

e
rs

o
n

 

G
u

id
a

n
ce

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 

fo
r 

ta
k

in
g

 a
ct

io
n

 i
n

 

li
n

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
ir

 

fu
n

ct
io

n
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 

d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
a

 

A
g

re
e

 a
 m

u
lt

i-
a

g
e

n
cy

 C
h

il
d

’s
 P

la
n

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 g
u

id
a

n
ce

  

 P
ro

v
id

e
 t

ra
in

in
g

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 w

ri
ti

n
g

 o
f 

S
M

A
R

T
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 l
in

ke
d

 t
o

 S
H

A
N

A
R

R
I 

re
la

te
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
a

n
d

 h
o

w
 

to
 e

n
g

a
g

e
 w

it
h

 C
/Y

P
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
il

ie
s 

in
 w

ri
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

 

A
 C

h
il

d
’s

 P
la

n
 f

o
rm

a
t 

w
a

s 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

d
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 o

ve
r 

su
m

m
e

r 
a

n
d

 s
a

n
ct

io
n

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
B

o
a

rd
 i

n
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r.
  

S
e

rv
ic

e
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
g

u
id

a
n

ce
 w

a
s 

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
ss

 s
o

m
e

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n

co
n

si
st

e
n

ci
e

s 
a

ro
u

n
d

 p
la

n
s.

 1
0

 t
ra

in
in

g
 e

v
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 s

ta
ff

 w
e

re
 h

e
ld

, 
e

a
ch

 w
it

h
 a

ro
u

n
d

 4
0

 a
tt

e
n

d
e

e
s.

  
T

ra
in

in
g

 s
e

ss
io

n
s 

a
n

d
 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 h

a
ve

 b
e

e
n

 e
va

lu
a

te
d

 h
ig

h
ly

. 
 

 T
h

e
 f

o
rm

a
t 

w
a

s 
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i

n
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 

  

Page 173



‘p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
’ 

re
sp

o
n

se
 a

n
d

 d
a

te
s 

to
 r

e
v

ie
w

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

. 

 Le
a

fl
e

t 
fo

r 
p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
u

rp
o

se
 o

f 

th
e

 C
h

il
d

’s
 P

la
n

 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s 
B

o
a

rd
 i

n
 A

p
ri

l.
 

 A
 l

e
a

fl
e

t 
to

 s
h

a
re

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 p

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
e

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

h
il

d
’s

 P
la

n
 w

il
l 

b
e

 

p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 f
o

r 
fa

m
il

ie
s 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
. 

 

 1
0

. 
G

u
id

a
n

ce
 o

n
 

d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
a

 

‘t
a

rg
e

te
d

 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

’ 
a

n
d

 

‘t
a

rg
e

te
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

’ 

A
g

re
e

in
g

 w
h

a
t 

is
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
lly

 a
va

il
a

b
le

 a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 

co
n

st
it

u
te

s 
a

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 b

y:
 

•
 

C
re

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
 o

n
e

 p
a

g
e

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
ig

n
p

o
st

 

st
a

ff
 t

o
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l s

o
u

rc
e

s 
o

f 
su

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

 

in
 n

e
e

d
 o

f 
u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l,

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 o
r 

sp
e

ci
a

li
st

 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s 
in

cl
u

si
v

e
 o

f 
T

h
ir

d
 S

e
ct

o
r 

•
 

R
o

ll
in

g
 o

u
t 

o
f 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
d

 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
a

cc
o

m
p

a
n

y
in

g
 

le
a

fl
e

t 
fo

r 
C

/Y
P

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

rs
 

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 c

le
a

re
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

th
re

sh
o

ld
s 

o
f 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 

•
 

C
o

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

h
o

w
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 S
ta

g
e

d
 

In
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 l

in
k

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 I

C
S 

tr
ia

n
g

le
 

 

T
h

e
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 S
ta

g
e

d
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 w

a
s 

d
e

v
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 i

ss
u

e
d

 t
o

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 i

n
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r.

  
T

h
e

 m
o

st
 r

e
ce

n
t 

S
ta

tu
to

ry
 G

u
id

a
n

ce
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
’s

 A
ct

 

h
a

s 
re

su
lt

e
d

 i
n

 a
 f

e
w

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s.
  

T
h

e
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 w

il
l 

b
e

 r
e

is
su

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

 l
e

a
fl

e
t 

fo
r 

fa
m

il
ie

s 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d

e
 a

va
il

a
b

le
. 

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 s

ta
ff

 c
o

ll
a

b
o

ra
ti

n
g

 t
o

 a
g

re
e

 o
u

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s 
in

 

M
a

rc
h

. 
 C

o
ll

e
a

g
u

e
s 

in
 t

h
e

 T
h

ir
d

 S
e

ct
o

r 
a

re
 b

e
in

g
 g

u
id

e
d

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 a
 s

im
il

a
r 

p
ro

ce
ss

 

w
h

il
st

 t
h

e
 F

a
m

il
y

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 w

il
l 

su
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
is

 p
ro

ce
ss

 l
e

a
d

in
g

 t
o

 a
 h

e
lp

fu
l 

vi
su

a
l 

g
u

id
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

. 

 T
h

e
 I

C
S

 t
ri

a
n

g
le

 n
o

w
 r

e
fl

e
ct

s 
th

e
 r

e
vi

se
d

 S
ta

g
e

d
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
s 

in
 p

la
ce

. 

 

1
1

. 
P

ro
ce

ss
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 

to
 m

a
n

a
g

e
 t

h
e

 

C
h

il
d

’s
 P

la
n

 w
h

e
n

 a
 

ch
il

d
 h

a
s 

le
ft

 s
ch

o
o

l 

A
g

re
e

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 t
h

a
t 

in
cl

u
d

e
s:

 

•
 

E
xp

lo
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 l

in
k

s 
w

it
h

 l
e

a
d

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
ls

 o
f 

e
xi

st
in

g
 p

la
n

s 

•
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
y

st
e

m
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
e

s 
fo

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

 

w
h

o
 a

re
 n

o
t 

k
n

o
w

n
 t

o
 A

C
C

 (
e

xa
m

p
le

 

tr
a

v
e

lle
rs

/c
h

il
d

 a
rr

iv
in

g
 f

ro
m

 a
b

ro
a

d
) 

•
 

D
e

ci
d

e
 w

h
a

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 i
s 

to
 b

e
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 a
n

d
 

b
y

 w
h

o
m

 r
e

g
a

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 f

o
r 

ch
il

d
re

n
 1

6
-

1
8

 

T
h

e
 p

ro
ce

ss
 w

a
s 

a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 w

h
e

n
 c

o
m

p
il

in
g

 M
u

lt
i-

a
g

e
n

cy
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

co
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
il

d
’s

 P
la

n
. 

 I
t 

a
ls

o
 f

e
a

tu
re

s 
in

 t
h

e
 O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

G
u

id
a

n
ce

. 
  

 

1
2

. 
N

a
m

e
d

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
 t

o
 a

ll
 

e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 a

n
d

 f
u

ll
y

 

p
u

b
li

ci
se

d
. 

 
 

 

S
co

p
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
m

e
d

 P
e

rs
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

e
xp

lo
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 im

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 

th
o

se
 n

o
t 

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 l

o
ca

l s
ch

o
o

ls
  

 E
st

a
b

li
sh

 w
h

o
 i

s 
b

e
st

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

  
th

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

N
a

m
e

d
 

P
e

rs
o

n
 f

o
r 

 t
h

o
se

 w
h

o
 a

re
: 

•
 

1
6

-1
8

  

•
 

T
ra

v
e

lle
rs

 

•
 

H
o

m
e

 e
d

u
ca

te
d

 

•
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

it
y 

(h
o

li
d

a
y

 a
n

d
 s

ic
k

n
e

ss
) 

•
 

G
y

p
sy

 t
ra

ve
ll

e
rs

 

 

 D
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
h

a
v

e
 b

e
e

n
 t

a
k

e
n

 a
ro

u
n

d
 w

h
o

 w
il

l 
p

ro
vi

d
e

 t
h

e
 N

a
m

e
d

 P
e

rs
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

g
ro

u
p

s.
  

T
h

e
se

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 w

id
e

ly
 b

y
 l

in
k

in
g

 w
it

h
 o

u
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

te
a

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
se

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
in

 k
e

e
p

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

. 

 

 

Page 174



1
3

. 
E

st
a

b
li

sh
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

a
 d

ra
ft

 I
C

S
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

st
ra

te
g

y
 t

o
 b

e
 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 I

C
S

 

B
o

a
rd

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y 

to
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
: 

•
 

H
o

w
 t

h
e

 N
a

m
e

d
 P

e
rs

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 is

 e
xe

rc
is

e
d

 

•
 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
co

n
ta

ct
in

g
 t

h
e

 

N
a

m
e

d
 P

e
rs

o
n

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 

•
 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
 N

a
m

e
d

 P
e

rs
o

n
 

•
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 

 

T
h

e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 w

a
s 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 t
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 

a
g

re
e

d
. 

 

1
4

. 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 o
f 

p
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 

su
p

p
o

rt
 

fo
r 

th
e

 N
a

m
e

d
 

P
e

rs
o

n
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 

E
st

a
b

li
sh

 a
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

co
n

ce
rn

s 
fr

o
m

 

th
o

se
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k

in
g

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

N
a

m
e

d
 P

e
rs

o
n

 c
a

n
 b

e
 

q
u

ic
k

ly
 r

e
so

lv
e

d
. 

 T
ra

in
in

g
 e

ve
n

ts
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 f

u
ll

 a
p

p
re

ci
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
h

o
w

 

e
v

e
ry

o
n

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s 

th
e

 N
a

m
e

d
 P

e
rs

o
n

 

T
h

e
 N

a
m

e
d

 P
e

rs
o

n
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
ll

o
w

s 
co

ll
e

a
g

u
e

s 
fr

o
m

 H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 c

o
n

ce
rn

s 
so

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 c

a
n

 b
e

 a
d

d
re

ss
e

d
. 

 T
ra

in
in

g
 i

n
 t

h
e

 r
o

le
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
m

e
d

 P
e

rs
o

n
 w

a
s 

a
va

il
a

b
le

 a
t 

th
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 F
e

st
iv

a
l 

a
n

d
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
se

ss
io

n
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 r
e

ce
n

tl
y

 p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 

e
xp

e
ct

a
ti

o
n

s 
fr

o
m

 T
h

e
 S

co
tt

is
h

 G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 f
o

r 
M

a
y

/J
u

n
e

. 

 

1
6

. 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 

le
a

rn
in

g
 T

o
g

e
th

e
r 

G
u

id
e

s 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
  

fl
e

x
ib

le
 t

ra
in

in
g

 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

Le
a

rn
in

g
 T

o
g

e
th

e
r 

G
u

id
e

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 

q
u

e
st

io
n

n
a

ir
e

s 
u

se
d

 t
o

 e
v

a
lu

a
te

 im
p

a
ct

 

T
h

e
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 t

ra
in

in
g

 t
o

o
ls

 i
s 

a
lm

o
st

 c
o

m
p

le
te

, 
fi

lm
in

g
 i

s 
cu

rr
e

n
tl

y
 u

n
d

e
rw

a
y

. 
 T

h
e

 

Le
a

rn
in

g
 T

o
g

e
th

e
r 

G
u

id
e

 w
il

l 
b

e
 l

a
u

n
ch

e
d

 b
y

 M
a

y
. 

  

 

1
7

. 
A

g
re

e
d

 r
o

le
s 

a
n

d
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

in
 

p
la

ce
 

A
g

re
e

 t
e

a
m

 a
n

d
 r

o
le

s 
to

 le
a

d
 w

o
rk

 t
o

w
a

rd
s 

fu
ll

 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 A
ct

 

R
o

le
s 

a
n

d
 r

e
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 G

IR
F

E
C

 g
ro

u
p

 i
n

 p
la

ce
 

 

1
8

. 
S

e
n

io
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
/w

o
rk

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
it

h
 t

h
o

se
 a

cr
o

ss
 

th
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

/S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 A
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
 s

h
a

re
d

 w
it

h
 

co
ll

e
a

g
u

e
s 

d
is

ch
a

rg
in

g
 t

h
e

 N
a

m
e

d
 P

e
rs

o
n

 r
o

le
 

C
o

ll
e

a
g

u
e

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 a

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
 

1
9

. 
C

le
a

r 
li

n
k

s 
w

it
h

 

S
E

E
M

iS
 /

C
a

re
 f

ir
st

 

te
a

m
 

Id
e

n
ti

fy
 I

T
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 b
e

 o
ve

rc
o

m
e

 

 E
st

a
b

li
sh

 w
o

rk
in

g
 g

ro
u

p
 t

o
 lo

o
k

 a
t 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
IT

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

s 

T
e

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

 M
e

e
ti

n
g

s 
re

g
u

la
rl

y
 h

e
ld

 t
o

 s
co

p
e

 n
e

xt
 s

te
p

s.
 

 

2
0

. 
E

st
a

b
li

sh
 a

 r
is

k
 

a
n

d
 i

ss
u

e
s 

re
g

is
te

r 

a
n

d
 m

e
a

n
s 

o
f 

e
sc

a
la

ti
o

n
 

A
g

re
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 w
it

h
 I

C
S

 B
o

a
rd

, 
G

IR
F

E
C

 G
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 H

o
S

 

In
cl

u
si

o
n

 

A
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 I
C

S
 B

o
a

rd
 i

n
 A

p
ri

l.
 

 

2
2

. 
K

e
e

p
 p

o
li

cy
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

 u
n

d
e

r 

re
v

ie
w

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 

im
p

ro
v

e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

y
st

e
m

 f
o

r 
th

e
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
e

va
lu

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

e
s 

a
n

d
 

p
ro

ce
ss

e
s 

 

 R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
O

p
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
l 

G
u

id
a

n
ce

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 i
t 

a
cc

u
ra

te
ly

 

re
fl

e
ct

s 
b

o
th

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l p
o

li
cy

 a
n

d
 l

o
ca

ll
y

 a
g

re
e

d
 p

o
li

ci
e

s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
e

s.
 

 

T
im

e
sc

a
le

s 
fo

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 
 

K
e

y
  

Page 175



H
 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 

E
 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
  

S
W

 
S

o
ci

a
l 

W
o

rk
 

P
 

P
o

li
ce

 S
co

tl
a

n
d

 

T
S

 
T

h
ir

d
 S

e
ct

o
r 

 E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 C
O

S
T

S
 B

A
S

E
D

 O
N

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 F
O

R
 1

6
/1

7
. 

(P
le

a
se

 n
o

te
 t

h
e

se
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
e

 P
ra

ct
ic

e
 G

u
id

a
n

ce
 f

ro
m

 S
co

tt
is

h
 G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t)
 

 
C

O
S

T
 

C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

 T
O

 S
E

E
M

iS
 

1
7

,7
9

9
 

M
U

LT
I-

A
G

E
N

C
Y

 T
R

A
IN

IN
G

 B
Y

 A
B

E
R

O
U

R
 

4
6

,6
3

9
 

P
R

IN
T

IN
G

 C
O

S
T

S
 

1
5

,5
0

0
 

P
R

O
V

IS
IO

N
 O

F
 T

H
E

 N
A

M
E

D
 P

E
R

S
O

N
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
 T

O
 V

U
LN

E
R

A
B

LE
 G

R
O

U
P

S
 

6
0

,0
0

0
 

S
P

O
C

 C
O

S
T

S
 

2
3

,0
0

0
 

S
E

C
O

N
D

E
D

 O
F

F
IC

E
R

 C
O

S
T

S
 

6
0

,0
0

0
 

P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L 

A
D

M
IN

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T
 T

O
 S

C
H

O
O

LS
 

9
3

,8
5

2
 

T
O

T
A

L 
B

U
D

G
E

T
 

3
1

6
,7

9
0

 

 

Page 176



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

   
   

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 

  
7

- 
E

H
R

IA
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 a

n
d

  
A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
n

in
g

  
 

R
e

p
o

rt
 T

it
le

 
 

U
p
d
a
te

 o
n
 r

e
a
d
in

e
s
s
 f
o
r 

fu
ll 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rt

s
 4

,5
 a

n
d
 1

8
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 (
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 
2
0
1
4

 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

n
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

 
   

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
  

� ���
 

A
s

 a
 r

e
s

u
lt

 o
f 

c
o

m
p

le
ti

n
g

 t
h

is
 a

s
s

e
s
s

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

a
t 

a
c

ti
o

n
s

 a
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
m

o
v
e

 o
r 

re
d

u
c

e
 a

n
y
 r

is
k

s
 o

f 
a
d

v
e

rs
e

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

. 
 

 I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 t
o

 w
h

o
m

: 
 

 
 R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 A
c

ti
o

n
s

: 
 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

L
e

a
d

: 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 

D
a

te
: 

R
e

v
ie

w
 

D
a

te
: 

R
is

k
 o

f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 p

e
rc

e
iv

in
g
 t

h
a

t 
G

IR
F

E
C

 i
n

v
a

d
e

s
 t
h

e
ir
 p

ri
v
a

te
 a

n
d

 
fa

m
ily

 l
if
e

. 

    

A
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
w

it
h

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
 w

ill
 

b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
p

a
re

n
ts

, 
c
a

re
rs

 a
n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 

h
o

w
 G

IR
F

E
C

 w
ill

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

w
it
h

o
u

t 
in

v
a

d
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 p

ri
v
a

te
 a

n
d

 f
a

m
ily

 
lif

e
. 

 

E
le

a
n
o

r 
S

h
e

p
p

a
rd

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
 i
n

 
p

la
c
e

 f
ro

m
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5
 

O
n

-g
o

in
g
 i
n

 
lig

h
t 

o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

fr
o
m

 T
h
e

 
S

c
o

tt
is

h
 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t.
 

    

8
: 

S
ig

n
 o

ff
 

 

Page 177



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

   
   

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

  C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
  

(N
a

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

) 
: 

 

E
le

a
n

o
r 

S
h

e
p

p
a

rd
 (

In
c
lu

s
io

n
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r)

 

 S
ig

n
e

d
 o

ff
 b

y
 (

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e

rv
ic

e
) 

: 
 

H
e

le
n

 S
h

a
n

k
s,

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

In
c
lu

si
o

n
 

 O
n

ly
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 7

 a
n
d

 8
  
w

ill
 b

e
 a

tt
a

c
h

e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 r

e
p
o

rt
 

 T
h
e

 f
u

ll 
E

H
R

IA
  

w
ill

 b
e

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 o
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 u
n
d

e
r 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/x

e
q
_

E
H

R
IA

_
S

e
a

rc
h

.a
s
p
 

 P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

n
d

 a
n

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 f

o
rm

a
t 
o
f 

th
e

 f
u

ll 
E

H
R

IA
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
s
ig

n
a

tu
re

 t
o

 S
H

o
w

a
rd

@
a

b
e

rd
e

e
n

c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

    

Page 178


	Agenda
	2.1 Minute of Meeting of 24 March 2016 - for approval
	3.1 Committee Business Statement
	3.2 Motions List
	5.2 Education and Children's Services Directorate Performance Report / Children and Young People (Scotland) 2014 Act Update
	Education and Children's Services Directorate Performance Report Charts
	ECS_16_026_Performance Report_Appendix B-OCE Report_final

	5.3 Education and Children's Services Directorate Business and Service Plans 2016-17
	6.1 Statutory Consultation - Consultation Reports on the Proposals to Make Changes to the School Zone Boundary for Airyhall School and Hazlehead School, and to Remove an Area of Dual Zoning Between Sunnybank School and Hanover Street School
	ECS_16_028_Statutory Consultation Airyhall-Sunnybank_EHRIA

	6.2 Interim Report on Review of Bookings and Lettings
	ECS_16_027_Lets Review update_EHRIA

	6.3 Culture Programme 2016/17
	ECS_16_024_Culture programme 2016-17_EHRIA

	6.4 The Strategy for an Active Aberdeen, 2016-20
	The Draft Strategy for an Active Aberdeen, 2016 - 20 appendix
	ECS_16_029_Strategy for an Active Aberdeen_EHRIA

	7.1 Update on Readiness for Full Implementation of Parts 4, 5 and 18 of the Children and Young People (Scotland) Act 2014
	GIRFEC & CYP Act further update_Appendix
	GIRFEC & CYP Act further update_EHRIA


